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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

= i

Ms. Chan Mee Sze ("Ms. Chan”), aged 49, has been an executive
director of the Company since 1 September 2018 and the Acting
Chairperson of the Board since 18 November 2022. She holds several
directorships in certain subsidiaries of the Company (together with its
subsidiaries, the "Group”) as well. Ms. Chan obtained a Bachelor's
degree in Laws from the University of London and a Master's degree
in Business Administration from the University of Dundee, United
Kingdom. Ms. Chan has been admitted to practice as a solicitor in
England and Wales. She is also a chartered secretary, a chartered
governance professional and a fellow member of The Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute and The Chartered Governance
Institute in the United Kingdom. Ms. Chan has extensive experience
in corporate administration and corporate finance and she has over
12 years of experience as director of listed companies in Hong Kong.

Dr. Wong Hoi Po (“Dr. Wong”), aged 47, has been an executive
director of the Company since 3 February 2020. Dr. Wong holds
a Doctoral Degree in Business Administration, a Master’s Degree
of Business Administration in Finance, and a Bachelor's Degree in
Accounting from the United States. He currently serves as Chief
Financial Officer at Jeju Shinhwa World, the flagship integrated
resort project of the Group, which is operated and developed by
Landing Jeju Development Co., Ltd. (“"Landing Jeju”). He served
as Senior Vice President at Landing Jeju from 1 March 2019 to 5
January 2020. In addition, Dr. Wong holds several directorships in
certain subsidiaries of the Group. Prior to joining Landing Jeju, he
worked as Chief Financial Officer at Creative Brilliant Investment
Company Limited, Macau from 2016 to 2019. Before 2016, Dr. Wong
had worked as an executive director of finance at Venetian Macau
Limited for 10 years. As an external auditor, he started his finance and
accounting career for an accounting firm in the United States in 2000.
With approximately 20 years of professional and practical experience
in the field of accounting and finance, Dr. Wong also served as a part-
time visiting associate professor at Macau University of Science &
Technology, lecturing a number of business administration programs
at the master’s degree level.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Wei (“Mr. Huang”), aged 42, has been an executive
director of the Company since 14 April 2021. He graduated from
Zhongnan University of Economics and Law with bachelor degree of
International Economics and Trading and obtained a master degree
of Business Administration. Mr. Huang is responsible for the senior
operation and management of hotels and theme parks of the Group.
He also holds a directorship in a subsidiary of the Group. Mr. Huang
was a director of Guanghe Landscape Culture Communication
Co., Ltd, ShanXi (shares of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, stock code: 600234) until October 2020. He has 20 years of
experience in finance and travel industries.

Mr. Li Chun Kei (“Mr. Li"), aged 40, has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company since 15 January 2020. Mr.
Li graduated from the University of Hull, United Kingdom with a
Bachelor’'s degree in Law in July 2007. He is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Li has over 10
years of experience in corporate finance and accounting. He also
worked at PricewaterhouseCoopers from 2008 to 2011.

Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham (“Mr. Shek"”), aged 78, has been an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since 14 August
2020. Mr. Shek graduated from the University of Sydney and holds
a Bachelor of Arts Degree and a Diploma in Education. He was
appointed as a Justice of the Peace in 1995 and was awarded the
Silver Bauhinia Star and the Gold Bauhinia Star by the government
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the “HKSAR") in
2007 and 2013 respectively. Mr. Shek was a member of the HKSAR
Legislative Council representing the Real Estate and Construction
Functional Constituency from 2000 to 2021. He is a member of the
Court and Council of The University of Hong Kong, an honorary
member of Court of The Hong Kong University of Science &
Technology, a court member of City University of Hong Kong and a
court member of Hong Kong Metropolitan University.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
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Previously, Mr. Shek was the Chairman and an executive director of
Goldin Financial Holdings Limited (shares of which were listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange, in liquidation and was delisted on
31 October 2023, stock code: 530). He is also an independent non-
executive director of China Resources Building Materials Technology
Holdings Limited (formerly known as China Resources Cement
Holdings Limited) (stock code: 1313), Chuang’s China Investments
Limited (stock code: 298), Chuang’s Consortium International Limited
(stock code: 367), Cosmopolitan International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 120), CSI Properties Limited (stock code: 497), Everbright
Grand China Assets Limited (stock code: 3699), Far East Consortium
International Limited (stock code: 35), Hao Tian International
Construction Investment Group Limited (stock code: 1341), Alliance
International Education Leasing Holdings Limited (formerly known as
International Alliance Financial Leasing Co., Ltd) (stock code: 1563),
ITC Properties Group Limited (stock code: 199), Lai Fung Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1125), NWS Holdings Limited (stock code: 659)
and Paliburg Holdings Limited (stock code: 617), all being listed
public companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Shek is also an independent
non-executive director of Eagle Asset Management (CP) Limited
(the manager of Champion Real Estate Investment Trust (stock code:
2778)) and Regal Portfolio Management Limited (the manager of
Regal Real Estate Investment Trust (stock code: 1881)), both trusts are
listed on the Stock Exchange.

During the last three years, Mr. Shek was an independent non-
executive director of SJM Holdings Limited (stock code: 880), Lifestyle
International Holdings Limited (shares of which were listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange, stock code:1212) and Country
Garden Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 2007).

Mr. Du Peng (“Mr. Du”), aged 42, has been an independent non-
executive Director of the Company since 12 March 2021. Mr. Du
graduated from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law with
a Doctoral degree of marketing in June 2009. He is the Head of
Department of Marketing, the Director of Management Case
Research Center and the Professor of School of Business and
Administration in Zhongnan University of Economics and Law. He has
over 12 years of experience in marketing consultancy and training.
In addition, Mr. Du is an independent director of Zhongbai Holdings
Group Co., Ltd. (shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, stock code: 000759).
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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Director(s)”) (the “Board”)
of Shin Hwa World Limited (the “Company”), | have the pleasure to
report on the financial results, operations and other aspects of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2023 (the “Year").

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Company is an investment holding company, and during the year
ended 31 December 2023 (the “Year”), the principal activities of the
Group are (i) development and operation of the integrated leisure
and entertainment resort (the “Integrated Resort Development”);
(i) operation of gaming and entertainment facilities (the “Gaming
Business”); and (iii) property development (the “Property
Development”).

Financial Results

For the Year, the Group's consolidated revenue was approximately
HK$1,036,268,000 (2022: approximately HK$1,386,800,000),
representing a decrease of approximately 25.3% when compared
to the year ended 31 December 2022. During the Year, non-gaming
revenue was approximately HK$989,503,000 (2022: approximately
HK$1,340,673,000) while gaming revenue was approximately
HK$46,765,000 (2022: approximately HK$46,127,000).

For the Year, the loss attributable to the owners of the Company was
approximately HK$522,439,000 (2022: approximately HK$216,911,000).
The basic and diluted loss per share attributable to owners of the
parent was HK12.36 cents (2022: HK5.13 cents). The increase in
consolidated net loss for the Year was mainly attributable to (i) the
pressure on the room price and occupancy rate due to intense
competition and domestic customers travelling abroad after the
easing of travel restrictions, leading to a decrease in revenue
generated from the integrated resort development segment; (ii)
the decrease in residential property sales owing to the downturn
in the property market and the interest rate rise; (iii) the increase in
marketing expenses, operating expenses resulting from inflation,
particularly utility costs and facilities maintenance costs, as well as an
increase in employee benefit expenses; and (iv) the absence of a net
amount of approximately HK$63 million from the reversal of trade
and other receivables impairment recorded in the previous financial
year 2022.

As at 31 December 2023, the consolidated net asset value of the
Company was approximately HK$7,405,721,000 (2022: approximately
HK$8,117,383,000) and the consolidated net asset value per number
of ordinary shares in issue attributable to owners of the parent was
approximately HK$1.75 (2022: approximately HK$1.92).
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
A

OPERATION AND BUSINESS REVIEW
Integrated Resort Development

Jeju Shinhwa World, an integrated resort located on Jeju Island,
South Korea is the core business of the Group. It is an iconic world-
class resort destination in Northeast Asia, comprising a selection of
premium hotels, a convention and exhibition centre, a retail mall,
food & beverage outlets, a leisure and entertainment complex, a
theme park, a water park, and one of the largest foreigners-only
casinos in Jeju.

More than 2,000 high-quality guest rooms and suites are available
for bookings, including the five-star rated Marriott Resort, the
new lifestyle Shinhwa Resort, Landing Resort and the full-serviced
Somerset family suites in Jeju. The hotels are strategically positioned
in Jeju to cater to all segments of guests, providing the perfect
accommodation options for every Jeju trip. All hotels in Jeju
Shinhwa World consistently receive high rankings and multiple
recommendations from guests and the hospitality industry. The
spectacular view of Jeju's natural horizon distinguishes Jeju Shinhwa
World as one of the best integrated resorts in Northeast Asia.

Themed with Larva characters from a popular local animated
production and offering more than 15 amazing rides and attractions
for children and families, including adventure games and a 4D
theater, Shinhwa Theme Park attracts both domestic and foreign
tourists. It also serves as an ideal venue for mega events, having been
used for New Year's Eve countdown party, FIFA World Cup soccer
event, dinning functions for USPGA golf tournament, and more.

Shinhwa Waterpark is the largest water park in Jeju with 18,000
square meters of space. It features wave pools, water slides, rapids,
spas, kids' pool, and a private cabana area suitable for visitors of all
ages. Shinhwa Waterpark has established itself as the top water park
attraction in Jeju.

Jeju Shinhwa World also boasts the most extensive food and
beverage outlets under one roof in Jeju, offering a wide selection of
local and international cuisines including legendary tastes of Jeju or
Korean specialties, Chinese classics, Western favorites and myriad
other styles to suit both tourists and local residents. The bar and pub
are the perfect place to relax after dinner or an exploratory day, by
enjoying a variety of delicious snacks and the starry night.
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OPERATION AND BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Integrated Resort Development (continued)

The MICE business capitalises on the largest column-free ballroom
in Jeju and the adjacent conference room facilities, the Convention
Centre in Jeju Shinhwa World has hosted many high-profile regional
and international events and is an ideal place for various conferences,
including wedding and family banquet. In addition, the Shinsegae
Simon Jeju Premium Center in Jeju Shinhwa World offers one-stop
shopping from foreign luxury brands to domestic fashion, golf, kids’
items and cosmetics, attracting both domestic and foreign tourists.

During the Year, most countries eased their border travel restrictions,
and China lifted its ban on group tours to Korea after six-year hiatus
in August 2023. Faced with intense competition and domestic
customers travelling abroad after the lift of travel restrictions, the
room prices and occupancy rates of our hotels were under pressure
during the Year. Nevertheless, our marketing team continued to offer
a series of promotional events bundled with our accommodations,
water and theme parks, as well as food and beverage options. We
also launched a wide variety of attraction events, such as count down
concert, lighting show with fireworks, seasonal flea market, art gallery,
and new facilities, such as a premium cinema and a media-based
story park, to enrich our customers’ experiences.

For the Year, the Integrated Resort Development generated segment
revenue of approximately HK$777,558,000 (2022: approximately
HK$946,200,000), which was mainly derived from its hotels, food
and beverage services, MICE events, attraction theme park, water
parks, and merchandise sales as well as leases of retail spaces in the
resort, representing a decrease of approximately 17.8% as compared
with the previous financial year. The segment loss of the Integrated
Resort Development was approximately HK$203,715,000 (2022:
approximately HK$154,120,000).

Gaming Business

Landing Casino, an integral part of Jeju Shinhwa World, is one of
the largest foreigners-only casinos in South Korea with 150 gaming
tables, 210 slot machines and electronic table games, occupying an
exclusive gaming area of approximately 5,500 square meters.

During the Year, the recovery momentum of the Gaming Business
became apparent, with both the rolling volume and non-rolling
volume increasing compared to the previous financial year. However,
the decline in the winning percentage resulted in a negative effect on
the segment revenue during the Year.

LETTER FROM THE BOARD
B

#8836 05 1ol e (46)
REERBERRE (&)
B Kt

EEEREEB %%E/H)Hﬁ“jiﬁ']ﬁﬁ
MOSRERE  BMNEEEARANEZPOE
%%yﬁﬁxﬁﬁmﬂ@&.*éQMI%%
e TASHEEH  PREEERREESMNE
B o e AN - T M A8 5 I R B Shinsegae
Simon Jeju Premium Center 2t —uf =X\ fEY) -
HEBINEZMEBEREEER  aRX BERXRK
{badn » B4 RBINRE

RAFE  REFPBERE RREHBEIKRER
#o MPER T _=F ) \ARRE B F
MIRITEEARBNES - RAFE - EHRIR
IRER B - BRGRFNE AR P LB RE S
BIVEENEERAETRERE S - BEWN
B RPN EHEERSERE -RIHFEE

B KEEREEBRAENURERHEIHEE
EJJ BT HESAZSEERS HMNES
m: AEEEY  BAFHREARE 6k
PKRTIS - BIMTEUARERE e fs &
HEWENE  NEERPHER -

HEAFTE RAEREZERBUEYH
777,558,000 JL(— & = — 4F : 49946,200,000

BIL) c WEFEREABIE - BRRY - 5
RETE SHETELE - KEEE - R
ELRERESEFERE  BRE—EAFRFE

HWAKI1T7 8% IFEERRERN D FEEL

203,715,000 7o( ==& = — 4 : #9154,120,000
BIT) °

BEEL

B MNP RE R — 2o M E SRS SRR R
ABINE AERIRES 2 —  IRH 150K B
R 20X ZRELRETRABEE  EENEY
B FEE £ 5,500 F 73K o

RAFEE  BREBORTTLEPE - 8
B RFEMEL - BSAELIFEHARGH
ﬁfribwﬁfﬁﬁ mERD BANFED B
PEEEZ

Annual Report 2023 4F# 9



LETTER FROM THE BOARD
A

OPERATION AND BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Gaming Business (continued)

For the Year, the Gaming Business recorded net revenue of
approximately HK$46,765,000 (2022: approximately HK$46,127,000),
and the segment loss from the Gaming Business was approximately
HK$258,417,000 (2022: approximately HK$173,965,000).

Impairment of approximately HK$12,943,000 (2022: approximately
HK$8,735,000) was made on the relevant intangible assets for the
Year based on the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit of Gaming Business which has been determined by value-in-
use calculations using cash flow projections of financial budgets
and referencing to the performance of the cash-generating unit
of Gaming Business. Besides, no impairment was recorded on the
relevant property, plant and equipment after the assessment.

Property Development

The sales of resort condominiums and villas in zone R of Jeju Shinhwa
World slowed down during the Year due to the downturn of the
Korea property market, which was affected by, among other things,
the rise in interest rate and market sentiment.

For the Year, revenue generated from sales of residential properties
and property management were amounted to approximately
HK$201,969,000 (2022: approximately HK$386,143,000) and
HK$9,976,000 (2022: approximately HK$8,330,000), respectively and
segment profit of the Property Development was approximately
HK$120,733,000 (2022: approximately HK$202,179,000).

As of 31 December 2023, approximately HK$345,807,000 (2022:

approximately HK$456,976,000) was classified as completed
properties for sale.
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OUTLOOK

In early 2023, mainland China and some other Asian countries
gradually eased their travel restrictions and control measures.
Although China has lifted pandemic-era restrictions on group tours
for South Korea, potentially benefiting their tourism industries since
August 2023, it had yet to return to pre-pandemic levels by the end
of 2023. Despite the pressure on room price and occupancy rate
during the Year, the Board believes that the reopening of the borders
will boost the tourism industries. In conjunction with repositioning
in marketing and service enhancements, the Group will seize the
opportunities for the rebound of tourism.

As previously disclosed by the Company, the Provisional License
to develop an integrated resort in the Philippines has lapsed and
therefore the Group will allocate its resources and remains focused
on its business in Jeju Shinhwa World, South Korea.

High interest rates, inflation, the war in Ukraine, as well as Gaza-Israel
conflict, continue to weigh on global economic activities. The rise in
interest rate has dampened the rebound of global economy, and the
markets expect interest rate cuts in 2024. However, it is believed that
interest rates will remain high for some time, and the forthcoming
years will remain challenging for the Group. Taking these macro
factors into consideration, the Group will remain cautious in capital
commitments and will act prudently in future development and
investment plans in order to maintain a healthy liquidity position.

During the Year, the Company made continued progress in the
maintenance, renovation, and upgrading of facilities in Jeju Shinhwa
World. A new premium cinema in our resort equipped with top-of-
the-range surround sound system and premium seating facilities, has
been in place to enrich our customers’ experience since August 2023.
Also, the Group has appraised the feasibility of a further residential
development in zone R of Jeju Shinhwa World. The Group expects
that the new residential development may better utilise the use of
land in Jeju Shinhwa World, thereby broadening the income stream
of the Group in the long run. Furthermore, the Group will continue to
evaluate its funding needs and financial position periodically and will
explore fund raising and financing facilities if and when opportunities
arise.
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
A

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is aware that it is exposed to various risks, including

general risk factors applied to the overall market and specific risk

factors applied to our respective business segments. There are risk

management and internal control systems established to ensure that

significant risks which may adversely affect the implementation of the

Group's business strategy and performance are identified, reported,

monitored, and managed on a continuous basis. Principal risks and

uncertainties of the Group include:

Integrated Resort Development

i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

12

market conditions and trends in the tourism industry: the
general market conditions and prospects of the global economy
will affect the growth and profitability of the tourism industry in
South Korea. Other factors can influence the tourism industry as
well, such as international tourism patterns, currency fluctuations
and the favourability of government policies. Any recession
in the global economy, deflation or change in government
policies, or deterioration in the tourism industry in South Korea
would adversely affect Jeju Shinhwa World's operations and
profitabilities;

shortage of labour and rising labour costs: the service industry
is generally labour intensive and the Group may encounter
difficulties staffing the operations. The operations in Jeju
Shinhwa World requires large number of labour from various
professions with specific skills. Significant increase in the costs
of labour would increase the Group's staff costs and adversely
affect the Group's profitability; and

project cost overruns and delays: the construction progress
may be affected by unforeseeable factors such as weather
interference, natural disasters, or shortages of building materials
or skilled labour. Contractors may be responsible for the
additional costs of delays. If the contractors are not able to fulfill
their obligations, the Group may be required to bear additional
project costs.

the outbreak of infectious disease may have a severe impact
on the visitation of the Group’s attractions and thereby affect
the operations performance of the Company. The Group's
integrated resort development, which is heavily dependent
on entertainment and hospitality market condition, will be
inevitably affected.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

Gaming Business

i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

winnings of players in casino could exceed casino’s winnings:
due to an inherent risk in the gaming industry, a casino does not
have full control over its win-rates or those of the players. If the
win-rates of players exceed those of the casino, the Group may
record a loss from gaming operations, which could materially
and adversely affect the Group's business, cash flow, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects;

theoretical win rates for casino operations depend on various
factors, some beyond its control: in addition to the element of
chance, theoretical win rates are also affected by other factors,
including players’ skill and experience, the mix of games played,
the financial resources of players, the spread of table limits, the
volume of bets played and the amount of time players spend
on gambling. These factors, alone or in combination, may
negatively impact the casino’s win rates, which may materially
and adversely affect the Group's business, cash flow, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects;

risk of fraud or cheating by gaming patrons: players in the
casino may commit fraud or attempt to cheat at times in
collusion with employees of the casino in order to increase
their winnings. Failure to discover such schemes in a timely
manner could result in losses in gaming operations. In addition,
negative publicity arising from such schemes could have a
material and adverse impact on the Group's reputation, which
may further adversely affect the Company'’s business, cash flow,
financial condition, results of operations and prospects;

anti-money laundering policies and compliances with applicable
anti-money laundering laws may not be sufficient in preventing
money laundering activities at the casino: the casino gaming
industry is prone to potential money laundering and other
illegal activities and the casino may not be able to completely
prevent money laundering and other illegal activities from
occurring within its casino premises; and

the outbreak of infectious disease may have a severe impact
on the number of patrons of the Group's foreigner-only casino,
which heavily relies on tourism industry in South Korea. The
operation and profitability will therefore be inevitably affected.
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
A

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

Property Development

i)

(iii)

14

changes in government regulations and policies: the local
governments may periodically revise relevant regulations and
policies in property development according to the latest market
development in real estate, and this will significantly affect the
Group's development plans, budgets and strategies;

environmental risk: the potential liability for environmental
problems could result in substantial costs due to a variety of
laws and regulations concerning the protection for health and
the environment; and

volatile real estate prices: real estate demands and prices are
sensitive to various economic and social factors, for example,
the state of the economy, bank interest rates, the size of the
population and the prevailing immigration policy. The real
estate prices could be volatile due to these factors, in turn
affecting the Group's turnover, budget and operation.
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FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had non-current assets
of approximately HK$8,358,982,000 (2022: approximately
HK$8,739,920,000) and net current assets of approximately
HK$529,533,000 (2022: approximately HK$959,703,000). The current
ratio, expressed as the ratio of the current assets over the current
liabilities, was 2.69 as at 31 December 2023 (2022: 3.69). The decrease
in the current ratio is mainly due to the decrease in cash and cash
equivalents used in operating activities and the partial repayment of
the bank borrowing, as well as the restricted cash reclassification to

non-current asset.

For the Year, the impairment of trade and other receivables (net)
amounted to approximately HK$9,852,000 (2022: reversal of
impairment of approximately HK$63,182,000). The provisions mainly
consisted of overdue receivables with long aging periods. As at
31 December 2023, the Group had prepayments, trade and other
receivables of approximately HK$139,353,000 (2022: approximately
HK$232,081,000). As at 31 December 2023, the Group had cash and
bank balances of approximately HK$266,043,000, with approximately
HK$50,654,000, HK$201,744,000, HK$294,000 and HK$10,283,000
held in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD"), Korean Won (“KRW"), Singapore
dollar (“SGD") and United States dollars ("USD"), respectively and
the remaining balances mainly held in Philippine Pesos (“PHP") (2022:
approximately HK$503,421,000, with approximately HK$227,245,000,
HK$260,130,000, HK$7,940,000 and HK$5,478,000 held in HKD, KRW,
SGD and USD, respectively and the remaining balances mainly held
in PHP).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had trade and other
payables of approximately HK$329,340,000 (2022: approximately
HK$336,180,000) and a bank borrowing in KRW with floating interest
rate of approximately HK$1,417,489,000 (2022: approximately
HK$1,556,150,000) while total liabilities of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$1,795,347,000 (2022: approximately
HK$1,938,639,000). For the Year, additional provision of
HK$41,481,000 was made in trade and other payables for the award
emanating from an arbitration decision on a dispute with a themed
exhibition contractor over, among other things, contractual payment
and obligations. The Group is currently in discussions concerning
the payment terms of such award whilst exploring other possible
solutions for the interest of the Group. The Group's gearing ratio,
which was measured on the basis of the Group’s total liabilities
divided by total assets, was 19.5% (2022: 19.3%).
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
A

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2023 and the date of this report, the total number
of issued ordinary shares of the Company was 4,226,252,310 shares
and 5,071,502,310 respectively with a nominal value of HK$0.01 each.

Subsequent to the reporting period, the Company completed the
share subscription involving the allotment and issuance of 845,250,000
ordinary shares on 20 March 2024. Further details are set out in the
sub-section headed "Events After the Reporting Period”.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Investments

Equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income

As at 31 December 2023, the Group was holding listed equity investments
at a fair value of approximately HK$1,400,000 (representing approximately
0.02% of the consolidated total assets of the Group), which were
classified as equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (2022: approximately HK$13,866,000). In February
2023, the cancellation price of the equity investment in Kingston Financial
Group Limited was deposited in securities account upon the completion
of its privatisation. Net fair value gains in respect of these investments of
approximately HK$249,000, which was mainly resulted from the upward
movement of stock price of the equity investment in China Resources
Land Limited (the shares of which are listed on Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 1109), were recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the Year. There was no single
equity investment representing more than 0.1% of the consolidated total
assets of the Group as at 31 December 2023.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other significant investment,
material acquisition or disposal during the Year that the shareholders
of the Company should be notified of.

The Company will make further announcements and comply with
the relevant requirement under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities of the Stock Exchange (the "Listing Rules”) as and
when appropriate in case there is any material investment(s) being
identified and entered into by the Group. The Company does not
rule out the possibility that the Group will conduct debt and/or equity
fundraising exercises when suitable fundraising opportunities arise
in order to support future developments and/or investments of the
Group and the Company will comply with the Listing Rules, where
applicable, in this regard.
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
£ oL

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS B A

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the ~ RFREHIAR - REEAE AT EAFIE :
reporting period:

2023 2022
—E-=F B F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T

Contracted, but not provided for: DET 4B R B
Property, plant and equipment ME - B RHFE - 259
Properties under development BRI 66,961 39,016

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any material capital B EXFI#HEEIN  AEBWE LA ERER

commitments. I o

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES GRS L

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any material WR-ZZT-_ZF+_-_F=+—H A£EITET
contingent liabilities (2022: Nil). MEAKREBE(ZE__F: &)
PLEDGE OF ASSETS R A

As at 31 December 2023, the following assets of the Group were RZZEZ=F+=-A=+—H AEEMAET
pledged to certain banks to secure general banking facilities and  RfT P BB IRIFUTEE - (FATEEE

other facilities payable granted to the Group: R—RIIRTHE REMENRE Z &R
2023 2022
—EB-=F —EF-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Property, plant and equipment VI - BB MR 1,776,727 1,645,152
Investment properties EYE 96,090 89,102
Properties under development BRAME 104,764 107,536
Completed properties for sale CARNIDEIES 191,329 456,976

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any material B EXFTIEEEIN  REBVEEREKREE
charges on assets. -
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
A

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of segment information of the Group for the Year are set out
in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT AND LIQUIDITY
RISK

The Group's objective regarding cash flow management is to
maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through a combination of internal resources, bank borrowings, and
other debt or equity securities, as appropriate. The Group pays
close attention to the present financial and liquidity position, and will
continue to maintain a reasonable liquidity buffer to ensure sufficient
funds are available to meet liquidity requirements at all times.

CURRENCY AND INTEREST RATE STRUCTURE

Business transactions of the Group are mainly denominated in HKD,
KRW, USD and PHP. Currently, the Group has not entered into any
agreement to hedge against foreign exchange risk. As the Group's
revenue and expenses are mainly derived and incurred in KRW in
Korea, there is no material potential currency exposure. However, in
view of the fluctuation of KRW and USD in recent years, the Group will
continue to monitor the situation closely and will introduce suitable
measures as and when appropriate.

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk results from fluctuations
in interest rate. The Group's bank borrowing consists of floating rate
debt obligation, an increases an interest rate would raise the interest
expenses. Fluctuations in interest rate may also lead to significant
fluctuations in the fair value of the debt obligation. On 31 December
2023, the Group had outstanding bank borrowing that bear floating
interest linked to Commercial Paper rate of Korea (“CP rate”).
Currently, the Group does not hold any derivative financial instrument
that linked to interest rates. In view of the trend of CP rate, the Group
continues to monitor closely its exposure to interest rate risk and
may deploy derivative financial instruments to hedge against risk, if
appropriate.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had approximately 1,495 (2022:
approximately 1,418) full-time employees with total staff costs
(including Directors’ remuneration) amounting to approximately
HK$535,150,000 (2022: approximately HK$469,015,000) including
management and administrative staff. The employees were mainly
stationed in South Korea and Hong Kong. The remuneration,
promotion and salary increment of employees are assessed according
to the individual's performance, as well as professional and working
experience, and in accordance with prevailing industry practices. The
Group also offers a variety of training schemes to its employees.

CASH INCIDENT

As previously disclosed, the Group reported to Jeju Special Self-
Governing Provincial Police Agency of Korea (the “Jeju Police”) in
Jeju, South Korea in early January 2021 in relation to the missing fund
of approximately KRW14,555,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$103,713,000) cash (the “Incident”). As at the reporting date,
KRW13,400,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$80,762,000) cash
found has been retained by the Jeju Police until the investigation
process can be recommenced and completed after further evidence
is found. To the best knowledge of the Board, none of the suspect
is or is related to, any director of the Company. Loss incurred by
the Incident in an amount of approximately HK$28,961,000 was
recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2020. As the investigation is not
expected to be concluded within a year, the cash found amounting to
approximately KRW10,150,000,000 (equivalent to HK$61,174,000) has
been reclassified from a current asset to a non-current asset. Save for
the aforesaid, there was no further adjustment or loss made for the
Year.
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
A

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 20 March 2024, the Company completed the allotment
and issuance of 845,250,000 ordinary shares (the “Subscription
Shares”) under the general mandate to Resplendence Investment
Development Limited (the “Subscriber”), who is an independent
third party, at the subscription price of HK$0.034 per share pursuant
to the terms and conditions of the subscription agreement dated
1 March 2024, entered between the Company and the Subscriber
and Subscriber’s guarantor. The Subscription Shares representing
approximately 16.67% of the issued share capital of the Company as
enlarged by the allotment and issuance of the Subscription Shares
immediately upon completion.

The net proceeds from the subscription, after deduction of
the relevant expenses and fees, amounted to approximately
HK$28,500,000 was intended to be used by end of 2024 in the
following manner: (i) approximately HK$14,000,000 for upgrade, repair
and maintenance of the existing building, equipment and facilities
within Jeju Shinhwa World, an integrated leisure and entertainment
resort located in Jeju Island, South Korea owned and operated by
the Group; (i) approximately HK$10,000,000 for payment of interest
expense; (iii) approximately HK$4,500,000 for sales and marketing
promotion and advertising expense; and (iv) the remaining balance, if
any, for general working capital. As at the date hereof, the Company
has yet to utilise the proceeds.

Save as the above, there were no other significant events subsequent
to 31 December 2023 which would materially affect the Group's
operating and financial performance as of the date of this report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

According to the dividend policy adopted by the Company, the
Board shall consider, among others, (i) the actual and expected
financial results of the Company; (ii) factors having impacts on the
business or financial performance and position of the Company; (iii)
the Company'’s business strategy and operational plans; and (iv) the
current and expected liquidity position and capital requirements of
the Company. Further, the Company'’s declaration of dividends is also
subject to the compliance with the Company’s bye-laws, the Listing
Rules and applicable law(s).
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DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the Year (2022: Nil).

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to convey our sincere gratitude
to all employees for their diligence and contributions to the Group.

| would also like to acknowledge the continual support from our
customers, suppliers, bankers and shareholders during the Year.
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For and on behalf of the Board

Chan Mee Sze
Acting Chairperson and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 27 March 2024
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Company is committed to upholding a high standard of
corporate governance and business ethics in the belief that they are
essential for maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence and
maximising shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its corporate
governance practices from time to time in order to meet the rising
expectations of shareholders, to comply with increasingly stringent
local and international regulatory requirements, and to fulfil its
commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the Year, the Company has applied the principles and
adopted and complied with all the code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code”) contained in
Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules, except that Dr. Yang Zhihui, the
former chairman and executive Director of the Company, was unable
to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 20
June 2023 since he had other business engagement out of Hong
Kong, which deviated from code provision F.2.2.

THE BOARD

The Board is mainly responsible for overseeing the business and
affairs of the Group and aims to enhance the Company'’s value for
stakeholders. The Directors, individually and collectively, must act in
good faith in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.
Roles of the Board include reviewing and guiding corporate strategies
and policies, monitoring financial and operating performance and
establishing and maintaining appropriate risk management and
internal control systems.

The primary role of the Board is to oversee how management serves
the interests of shareholders and other stakeholders. To do this,
the Board has adopted corporate governance principles aimed at
ensuring that the Board is independent and fully informed on the key
strategic issues facing the Company. As at the date of this report, the
Board comprises three executive Directors and three independent

non-executive Directors.
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Dr. Yang was the Chairman and an executive Director (suspension
of duties and powers) of the Company up to the conclusion of the
annual general meeting held on 20 June 2023. The Board has been
taking steps to identify suitable candidates to act as chairperson of
the Board. During the Year and up to the date of this report, Ms.
Chan Mee Sze, an executive Director, is the Acting Chairperson of
the Company. There is a clear distinction between the chairman’s
responsibilities and the other executive directors’ responsibilities
for running the day-to-day business of the Company so as to
ensure a balance of power and segregation of duties. The key
responsibilities of Ms. Chan are monitoring Board effectiveness,
fostering constructive relationships among Directors; and enhancing
good corporate governance practices and procedures. The Company
does not have a position of “Chief Executive Officer”, therefore, the
other executive Directors undertake the day-to-day management of
the Company'’s business and strategic planning of the Group with the
advice of all non-executive Directors. Under the existing arrangement,
the Board believes that the balance of power and authority is
adequately ensured and the current arrangement is for the benefit of
the Group. However, the Board will also review regularly the board
composition and appoint the Chief Executive Officer if a suitable
candidate is identified.

The balanced board composition has been formed to ensure strong
independence exists across the Board and save as mentioned herein,
the Company has met the requirements under Rule 3.10 and Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules for the Board to include at least three
independent non-executive Directors, representing at least one-third
of the Board. At least one of the independent non-executive Directors
has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10 of the
Listing Rules. The brief biographical details of the Directors are set
out on pages 4 to 6, which demonstrate a diversity of skills, expertise,
experience and qualifications. The Company has received from the
three independent non-executive Directors annual confirmations
of their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and the Company considers such Directors to be independent. In
respect of code provision C.3.3 under the CG Code, formal letters of
appointment for Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of
their respective appointment were executed by all Directors.
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There is a procedure agreed by the Board to enable directors to
seek independent professional advices to discharge their duties and
responsibilities. In addition, the Board has established mechanisms
to ensure independent views are available to the Board. A summary
of which is set out below: (i) Composition - The Board ensures the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive directors
and at least one-third of its members being independent non-
executive directors (or such higher threshold as may be required by
the Listing Rules from time to time), with at least one independent
non-executive director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise. Further, independent non-executive directors will be
appointed to board committees as required under the Listing Rules
and as far as practicable to ensure independent views are available.
(i) Independence Assessment - The Nomination Committee strictly
adheres to the Nomination Policy with regard to the nomination
and appointment of independent non-executive directors, and is
mandated to assess annually the independence of independent
non-executive directors to ensure that they can continually exercise
independent judgement. (iii) Board Decision Making - Directors
(including independent non-executive directors) are entitled to seek
further information from the management on the matters to be
discussed at Board meetings and, where necessary, independent
advice from external professional advisers at the Company’s expense.
A Director (including independent non-executive director) who has
a material interest in a contract, transaction or arrangement shall not
vote or be counted in the quorum on any Board resolution approving
the same. The Board reviews the implementation and effectiveness of
such mechanism annually.

In accordance with the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Law(s)"),
at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
at least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible
for re-election and shall continue to act as a Director throughout the
meeting at which he or she retires.

Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall
hold office only until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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Regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to facilitate fullest
possible attendance. The company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”) assists the executive Directors in setting
the agenda of Board meetings and each Director is invited to
present any business that he or she wishes to discuss or propose at
such meetings. Board papers are circulated to all Directors within
reasonable time before the Board meetings to ensure timely access
to relevant information. Directors may choose to take independent
professional advice if necessary. Draft and final versions of minutes
are circulated to all Directors for comments. Final versions of minutes
are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection
at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director. The
Company held five (5) Board meetings and one (1) general meeting in
2023.

The Board has established three Board Committees to oversee
particular areas of the Company'’s affairs and to assist in the execution
of its responsibility. All Board Committees are provided with sufficient
resources to perform their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice, at the Company’s
expense. As at the date of this report, the composition of the Board
and the Board Committees are given below and their respective
responsibilities are discussed in this report.
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Audit Nomination Remuneration
Board of Directors Committee Committee Committee
gz EREES REZER FHZER
Executive Directors: BiTES:
Ms. Chan Mee Sze (Acting Chairperson) REBL LT (FEFE) = = -
Dr. Wong Hoi Po FEREL - = =
Mr. Huang Wei BELE - - -
Independent Non-Executive Directors: B FHTES :
Mr. Li Chun Kei T committee chairman  committee chairman  committee chairman
ZEEIE ZEQTR ZEETRE
Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham VRVEE e member member member
Mr. Du Peng ad it member member member
K& p4=1 &

An updated list of Directors, identifying their roles and functions at
the Company, is available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

There is no service contract signed between the Company and
any independent non-executive Director. All independent non-
executive Directors were appointed for a term of one year, which is
automatically renewable for successive term of one year upon the
expiry of the relevant term.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (including
measurable objectives) in accordance with the requirement set
out in the CG Code (the "Board Diversity Policy”) and review such
objectives from time to time to ensure their appropriateness. The
Company seeks to achieve board diversity through the consideration
of a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills
and knowledge. All director appointments will be made on the basis
of merit and candidates will be considered against objective criteria
with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

As at the date of this report, 1 of the 6 Directors is female. The Board
expects to maintain a minimum of 15% female representation in the
Board and its long term aspirational target is to maintain gender
parity by end of 2034.

The Group will engage more resources in coaching potential female
staff, with the aim of promoting them to the senior management
or directorship of the Group. The Company expects to have more
female members to sit on the Board in the future.

The details of workforce composition in Hong Kong were disclosed
under Environmental, Social and Governance Report in this report.
Setting a measurable objective for achieving gender diversity at
workforce level is not suitable for our Group.

The Group welcomes all gender to join. The recruitment strategy is to
employ a right staff for a right position regardless of the gender. The
Group commits to provide equal opportunities to its staff in respect
of recruitment, coaching and development, job advancement, and
remuneration and benefits.
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NOMINATION POLICY

According to the nomination policy adopted by the Company (the
“Nomination Policy”), the Nomination Committee shall nominate
suitable candidates to the Board for it to consider and make
recommendations to shareholders of the Company for election
as Directors at general meetings or appointment as Directors to
fill casual vacancies with reference to various factors to assess the
suitability of a proposed candidate. The Nomination Committee shall
ensure the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company's
business.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

As disclosed in the announcement dated 28 November 2023 of the
Company, Zenith CPA Limited (“Zenith”) has tendered resignation as
the auditor of the Company and Moore CPA Limited (“Moore HK")
was appointed as the auditor of the Company with effect from the
even date. During the Year, the remuneration paid/payable to the
Company's auditors, is set out as follows:
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Fee paid/

Services rendered payable
SRR 2t EAER
HK$'000

FHT

Audit of financial statements* EAZP TSR 1,800
Review of interim results** P H R4S 370
Total G 2,170

*

paid/payable to Moore HK
** paid/payable to Zenith

In respect of the auditor's remuneration for the audit services paid
or payable by the Company and its subsidiaries, respectively, please
refer to note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee is comprised of
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Chun Kei
(Committee Chairman), Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham and Mr. Du Peng.

The written terms of reference stipulating the authority and duties of
the Audit Committee are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange to comply with the provisions of the CG
Code.

* BN/ ENEERESHE
= B ERmE

AR RENB AT D BMBREE

HEMRIZEATEN S - BLRHRAMEHREN

FF7 e

FEHREEG

AR E Hﬂ EEE e R BB IFNIT

ERAK DR ATEHEKTE(ZESERE)

gL ERMERE LA -

%ff?é\aziﬁﬂa&%%ﬁlﬁ EZ%E@ZF&
- WIBR D EEATANEXR AR R KB

Fﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ g

Annual Report 2023 £t 27



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SRR ol

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to, among others,
(i) review and monitor the preparation of the Group’s financial
statements and annual and half-year reports and accounts; (ii)
monitor, develop and implement the Group’s policy on external
auditors; (iii) recommend the appointment and reappointment of
the Group's external auditor; (iv) supervise the Group's financial
reporting system, risk management and internal control systems;
and (v) develop and review the Company's policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board.
The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management and the
external auditor the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and has discussed auditing and financial reporting matters
and risk management and internal control systems.

During the Year, three meetings were held by the Audit Committee
and attended by the members to review and discuss financial
reporting matters, including the review of the interim and annual
consolidated financial statements, re-appointment of an external
auditor, review of the risk management and internal control functions.
They also review the corporate governance report, review and discuss
the whistleblowing policy and anti-corruption policy, and made a
recommendation to the Board for change in auditor. During the
Year, there were no disagreements between the Board and the Audit
Committee.

The Audit Committee is also responsible for performing the
corporate governance functions set out in the code provision A.2.1
of the CG Code. The Audit Committee reviewed the Company's
corporate governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management,
the Company's policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, the code of conduct and compliance
manual, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee is comprised
of three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Chun
Kei (Committee Chairman), Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham and Mr. Du
Peng.

The written terms of reference stipulating the authority and duties
of the Nomination Committee are available on websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange to comply with the provisions of
the CG Code.
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The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to, among others,
(i) review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and make
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes;
(i) make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment and succession planning of
Directors; (iii) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
selection of individuals nominated for directorships; and (iv) assess
the independence of independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee will also monitor the implementation of
the Board Diversity Policy and the Nomination Policy and review the
respective policy, as appropriate, to ensure their effectiveness.

During the Year, one meeting was held by the Nomination
Committee and attended by the members to review the Nomination
Policy, the Board Diversity Policy, the structure, size and composition
of the Board, assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors and recommend the Board for re-election of retiring
directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee is
comprised of three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Li Chun Kei (Committee Chairman), Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham and
Mr. Du Peng.

The written terms of reference stipulating the authority and duties of
the Remuneration Committee are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange to comply with the provisions of
the CG Code.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are to, among
others, (i) make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policy and structure for Directors’ and senior management
remuneration; (ii) ensure that they are fairly rewarded for their
individual contribution to the Group's overall performance, having
regard to the interests of shareholders; (iii) make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual Directors
and senior management; and (iv) review and approve performance-
based remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives
resolved by the Board from time to time.
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The remuneration payable to each of the Directors of the Company
is determined with reference to their individual performance,
comparable market statistics and the operating results of
the Company. During the Year, one meeting was held by the
Remuneration Committee and attended by the members to review
and discuss (i) the Company'’s policy and structure of remuneration
of the Directors; and (i) the proposed adoption of the 2023 Share
Option Scheme (as defined below) and termination of the 2020
Share Option Scheme (as defined below). Details of the Directors’
remuneration are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The overall attendance records of the Directors at the Board
meetings, Board Committee meetings and general meeting in 2023,
and their training records are set out as below:

ENARREEZZHFMN2REEZM/AR
B AEEBNSRFABERAARKERE
MEFE - AFEERN - FHEESLHRIT RS
& BRECHESE  BRHEBSIOARA
ZEEHFMBERRER AR EREA-F
—FEBREAS(ERR T ORKLE-F
TEEREAB(EERLTX) - EEHM
BN GZE M IERERMEE -

EFR_ToCGFHBEFEEE EFEA
BRHERREATZ EWES - MRS
EHHATX

Audit  Nomination Remuneration

Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Training
ENZEE REZEE  FHZEE
Ezeel EE ] | g8  RRAE &3
(5:in total) (Bintota)  (Tintotal)  (lintotal)  (1intotal)
Number of meetings during the Year EEERERRY (B#5%)  (R#3R) (BRI (B0 (Rf1R)
Executive Directors HTEs
Dr. Yang Zhihui (retred on 20 June 2023)  IREEL(R=F==F
ANAZTRER) 01  NATER NATER  NATER o v
Ms. Chan Mee Sze fActing Chairperson) BEEaL(ZELE) 55  NAMER  NATEE  NATER 1N v
Dr. Wong Hoi Po TEREL 55 NANER  NARER  NATER N v
Ms. Pu Shen Chen BEYRL(RZB==F
(resigned on 1 September 2023) NA—HET) 33 NAMNER  NANER  NATER 1
Mr. Huang Wei EREE 55 NANER  NARER NATER N
Independent BukaiEs
Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Li Chun Kei PHBLE 575 33 10 10 1N v
Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham VAt F S 55 33 il 10 N v
Mr. Du Peng ity 4/5 23 10 il N 4
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES
INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage for
directors’ and officers’ liabilities incurred in discharge of their duties
while holding office as the Directors and officers of the Company.

TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Any newly appointed Director is provided with comprehensive and
formal induction to ensure that he has a proper understanding of
the operations and businesses of the Group as well as the director’s
duties, responsibilities, and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements.

During the Year, all Directors were provided with regular updates
on the Group's business and operation, including financial position
and budget. They were also provided with the information which
covered topics, including but not limited to, corporate governance
matters, disclosure and compliance of inside information, updates
and changes in relation to legislative and regulatory requirements
in which the Group conducts its business, and reading materials
which are relevant to their duties and responsibilities for their study
and reference. During the Year, all Directors have participated in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills pursuant to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG
Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as its model code for
securities transactions by the Directors. Following a specific enquiry
to all Directors by the Company, all Directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code throughout the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE GROUP’S
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements of the Group which give a true and fair view, and
are prepared in accordance with the relevant statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards in force, and are published
in a timely manner. The Directors are responsible for selecting and
applying suitable accounting policies on a consistent basis and
ensuring timely adoption of Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s independent auditor
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year are
set out in the “Independent Auditor’'s Report” on pages 82 to 90 of
this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of risks (including ESG - related
risks) it is willing to take in achieving the Group's strategic objectives.
Besides, the Board is responsible for maintaining sound and
effective risk management and internal control systems (including
those for ESG - related risks) for the Group on an ongoing basis, to
safeguard investments of shareholders and assets of the Group, and
to maintain proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal and external reporting. The systems
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement in the consolidated financial statements or loss of
assets. Also, the risk management system is designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve the Group's
strategic or business objectives.
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The Board has entrusted the Audit Committee to review risk
management (including ESG - related risks) and internal control
issues, if any, identified by the external auditor, regulatory authorities
and management, as well as to evaluate the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control
systems. The Audit Committee reports material issues, if any, to
the Board. Regular reviews are conducted during the Year on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems,
covering all material controls in areas of financial, operational and
compliance controls, various functions for risk management as well
as physical and information systems security. An annual review of the
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control
systems is conducted, and the Board is satisfied with the effectiveness
of the Group's risk management and internal control systems.

The Group has also established a formal risk assessment system. The
risk assessment exercise is performed annually through questionnaires
and interviews with senior management and function heads to
identify and evaluate significant risks of the Group. These identified
risks are prioritised based on the likelihood of their occurrence and
the significance of their impact on business of the Group. Moreover,
remedial actions or mitigation control measures are developed to
manage these risks to an acceptable level.

On an annual basis, the Group reviews the need to have an internal
audit function. During the Year, the operating subsidiaries of the
Group assign specific independent officers to perform the internal
audit function to conduct analysis and independent appraisal of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal
controls systems, and have procedures in place to keep information
confidential and manage actual or potential conflicts of interest.
There was no significant deficiencies in risk management and internal
controls reported.

The Company is aware of its obligation under relevant sections of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “"SFO") and Listing Rules. To
prevent possible mishandling of inside information within the Group,
safeguards on the handling and dissemination of inside information
have been implemented; including stringent internal structures have
been designed to prevent the misuse of inside information, ensure
the proper disclosure of inside information and avoid conflicts of
interest. All members of the Board, senior management, executives,
function heads, and staff who are likely to possess inside information
are bound by the SFO and the Listing Rules (including the Model
Code).
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To ensure compliance with all applicable laws and regulations on
the prevention of money laundering, especially for the Gaming
Business, the Group had engaged an internationally reputed law firm
having practices in South Korea to review and advise on the anti-
money laundering (“AML") and counter-terrorism financing (“CTF")
framework, the related design of controls and the policies of the
Gaming Business. Based on the applicable laws and regulations and
with reference to professional advices, the subsidiary of the Company
operating the Gaming Business has developed its own internal
control policy, including especially those related to compliance with
the applicable AML and CTF laws and regulations. The responsible
department will, from time to time, evaluate that policy. During the
current year, the law firm performed an independent assessment on
the design and operation of AML and CTF policies, procedures and
controls, as well as the related monitoring system. The Board has
also reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems, including the AML and CTF controls, and found the
result satisfactory.

For the Year, the Board, through the review of the Audit Committee,
considers that (i) the Group's risk management and internal control
systems are effective and adequate, and the Group had complied
with the provisions on risk management and internal control as
set forth in the CG Code; and that (ii) the resources, qualifications,
experience, training programmes, and budget of the accounting,
financial reporting and outsourced internal audit functions of the
Group are adequate.

The Group has formulated the whistleblowing policy for employees
and independent third parties who deal with the Group to raise
concerns, in confidence, about possible improprieties in operation,
financial reporting or other matters. Such arrangement will be
reviewed by the Audit Committee which ensures that proper
arrangement is in place for fair and independent investigation of the
matters.

The Group also adopted an anti-corruption policy to ensure

employees are aware of anti-corruption laws and regulations and
regulatory obligations.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Lam Suk Nga (“Ms. Lam”) has been appointed as the Company
Secretary since 1 September 2022. She is an employee of the
Company. Ms. Lam is a Chartered Secretary, a Chartered Governance
Professional and an associate member of The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute and The Chartered Governance Institute in the
United Kingdom. She holds a Master of Laws, a Master of Corporate
Governance and a Master of Laws in Chinese Business Law. She
has over 15 years of professional experience in handling corporate
secretarial, corporate governance and compliance matters in listed
companies and professional service firms in Hong Kong.

She has complied with the relevant professional training requirement
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

VOTING BY POLL

Resolutions put to vote at the general meetings of the Company
are taken by poll. Procedures regarding the conduct of the poll are
explained to the shareholders at the commencement of each general
meeting, and questions from shareholders regarding the voting
procedures are answered.

SHAREHOLDER'’S RIGHTS
Procedure to Convene a Special General Meeting

() Requisition to convene a special general meeting can be
deposited by the members of the Company holding at the date
of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth (10%)
of the paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the
deposit carries the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company.

(i) The requisitionists must submit their requisition in writing, in
which it must state the objects of the meeting, and be duly
signed by the requisitionists, mailed and deposited at Units
1412-1413, 14th Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak
Centre, Nos.168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for
the attention of the Company Secretary; and may consist of
several documents in like form, each signed by one or more
requisitionists.
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(iii)

(vi)

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s share
registrar and upon its confirmation that the requisition is proper
and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to
convene a special general meeting by serving sufficient notice
in accordance with the statutory requirements to all registered
shareholders, provided that the requisitionists have deposited
a sum of money reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses involved in convening a special general meeting.
On the contrary, if the requisition has been verified as not in
order, the requisitionists will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, a special general meeting will not be convened as
requested.

Such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of
such requisition. If the directors do not within 21 days from the
date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene
a meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from the said
date.

A meeting convened under this section by the requisitionists
shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which meetings are to be convened by Directors in
accordance to the Bye-Laws and the Listing Rules.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by
reason of the failure of the Directors duly to convene a meeting
shall be repaid to the requisitionists by the Company.

Procedure for Making Enquiries to be Put to the Board and
the Company

The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous

enquiries. Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Board by
email: enquiry@shw.com.hk, fax: (852) 3621 0052, or mail to Units
1412-1413, 14th Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
Nos.168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for the attention
of the Company Secretary.

36

SHIN HWA WORLD LIMITED #5654 FR A #]

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

%iﬂ%ﬁﬂ$’&ﬂﬁ§fﬁiﬂ?i‘§ﬂﬁé¢ 'K
HEREXBRENMTAREFR - AR
ERZREZERBEIEHATE  AE2RE
%Hﬁ%?f*ﬂﬂf”k%ﬂ A FBCR % B K

ERZERERRRAEBERIAE
H$ A AR RS RIK S FTH R 23
He AR MEBRERFELSTNIET @ 12
EBRERENESHRER - BRRFHIK
NI ERERARM -

ZEHANRHBRIK2MEARETT - i
EERANREEEREF21 BRZ /AR
% REERFIRREBLZFALE
RAEFREBE—FZEMAL  ATRTT
BHRE®  ENtER R TER Lt

AHEET 3EAEmER AR -

REEBRERBAHAMZEHAER
HEFREERMA[ R EMARANE F#EJQE%
ZHRA AR

REBREENESRUEZRAHERE
EZEAGERX BARAARRARER
KEME -

MESERFLAR[MZER

ZINVN

enquiry@shw.com.hk -

Al—RIAEREBEOBRNERLRRM - K
RAMEFSZLEERMR

AAE®BE
{EEZE (852) 3621 0052

SEFERAB T BT 168-200 5% 2P LHAE

BAE 1412 1412-1413 % -

RFRAIME -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Procedure to Put Forward Proposals at Shareholders’
Meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (the “Bermuda
Companies Act”), shareholders representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting right of all the shareholders having at
the date of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which
the requisition relates; or not less than 100 shareholders are entitled
to request the Company to give shareholders notice of a resolution
which is intended to be moved at the general meeting. A written
notice to that effect signed by the requisitionist(s) with detailed
contact information must be deposited at the Company’s principle
place of business in Hong Kong at Units 1412-1413, 14th Floor, China
Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, Nos.168-200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary.
The notice shall contain, inter alia, a description of the proposed
resolution desired to be put forward at the general meeting, the
reasons for such a proposal and any material interest of the proposing
shareholder in such a proposal.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar in
Bermuda or Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the request
is proper and in order, the Company will ask the Board to include the
resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.

BYE-LAWS

The Company’s Bye-Laws (in both English and Chinese) are available
on both the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
During the Year, there is no change to the Company’s constitutional
documents.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The purpose of the shareholder communication is to promote
effective communication with shareholders, encourage shareholders
to engage actively with the Company and enable them to exercise
their rights as shareholders effectively.

Information shall be communicated to shareholders through the
Company’s annual general meeting and other general meetings that may
be convened, as well as by maintaining a website (www.shw.com.hk) on
which information about the Company’s notices, announcements,
proxy forms, circulars, financial reports, results announcements (for
both interim and annual reporting periods) and Bye-Laws are made
available.

The Board shall maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and
the investment community, and will regularly, review the Shareholders
Communication Policy (the “SCP”) to ensure its effectiveness. Any
questions regarding the SCP shall be directed to the Company
Secretary of the Company. With the above measures in place, the
Board considered the SCP has been effectively implemented during
the Year.

SRR b

RERAEDHBZEF

BEBRE-—NN\—FRRZ(EEEAA
) BRERERREZEREAFEINDRES
BREFEJAZBRREE_THZ2—HRE
REZINE - AP 100 2 EREERKARQ TR
REHBA(ErAZRERBERSEHE) 2K
HeAREEKEFEBVEARNNMARERE
BERBTEART BB EET X MEL - it
AEBTHETR168-2009 =R O HERAE
1414121413 F » KT RAIWE - BAAESH
EEFEE)BEERNBREASEZZATIRER
FERAB AUEERRZEAURERRERE
a2 T E AR -

ZERBBHARFRAREXFTEZRNBES
BiLRZE KERBLBRERNTEREF
% ARAKBERESTERBRRAREERRTH

ABORHR -

5 A

AR 2 BRI SR SRR R A B
KB EED - RAEER - ARTLE
BT -

Sl i 3 % 7
HERARTERELERRERAED B
REBSEARFEL  WERSFERITER
RAEH o

FERBARFIRRBAFRE NEMAREARH
ZHERERERABREEENL - WHRLBH
(www.shw.com.hk) * FIEEBEAQFEBE - A
ECREREZMERE B BBHERS - ¥ED
H(hHRFERESHR) RERABZEFR -

EEeRRBEERRARREALRIEHE X
SE MBI RRBARR(RRBABE]) -
ARERE A MIE - i PR BABRA T 5
- BAARRZARWERL - £ LillfE i
MERD  RAFER  EFSRBRBAK
RBBBMIT °

Annual Report 2023 £t 37



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BREL - Aba LA R

ABOUT THE REPORT

The Group is pleased to present its 2023 Environmental, Social and
Governance ("ESG") Report which focuses on its ESG performance
and various sustainability initiatives. Our management approach to
issues related to environment, employees, operations and community
and the corresponding initiatives undertaken are disclosed in this
report.

Reporting Guideline

This ESG report follows the ESG Reporting Guide outlined in
Appendix C2 of the Listing Rules of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
It adheres to reporting principles of materiality, quantitative, balance,
and consistency. The data in the report are presented in a manner
conducive to identification and analysis of year-on-year changes.
For governance-related information, please refer to the Corporate
Governance Report section of the Annual Report 2023.

Reporting Boundary and Period

This ESG report covers Shin Hwa World Limited and its subsidiaries,
for the financial year from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023.

Feedback

The Group remains committed to achieving sustainable growth
by actively engaging with its stakeholders. Your feedback is highly
appreciated as it assists the Group in enhancing the report. Please
feel free to reach out to the Group with any questions or comments
at enquiry@shw.com.hk.
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BOARD STATEMENT

The Group is engaged in developing and operating integrated leisure
and entertainment resorts, gaming and entertainment facilities, and
property development. Committed to providing exceptional leisure
experiences, it fulfils its corporate social responsibility in the course of
its operations.

The Board oversees management of ESG-related risks and
opportunities, ensuring appropriate actions are taken. Senior
management supports the Board by developing ESG policies,
implementing them, optimising policies, initiating initiatives,
allocating resources, and integrating sustainability into the Group's
operations.

The Group articulates the initiatives it plans for addressing ESG
risks and opportunities across its operations, including the related
environmental consequences. The Board regularly monitors progress
towards environmental goals in order to align its management
policies and actions with the Company's environmental impact
targets. The Board affirms it has reviewed and approved this report,
ensuring accountability and commitment to sustainability principles in
the organisation.

PROCESS TO DETERMINE MATERIALITY
Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality

The Group's stakeholders, including customers, shareholders,
employees, business partners, regulators, suppliers and the media,
express growing concern about its environmental and social impacts.
Various communication channels are used to ensure effective
dialogue and collaboration with diverse stakeholders, enhancing
transparency and accountability.

This year, a materiality assessment was conducted to ensure the
Group's priorities on ESG remain updated. The Group prioritises
material ESG topics (see bold topics) based on the level of
significance impact they have on stakeholder groups.

B g BRI
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Stakeholders Key Concerns

Engagement Channels

MR E TEMTHEE SHERE
Customers ®  Information privacy and security ®  Customer loyalty or membership
e  Compliance with all laws and programmes and events
regulations e Customer satisfaction surveys
e Customer satisfaction ®  Customer services hotline and email
e Quality products and services *  Social media
®F e EHHARKRZZE s EFPEHMEHEEENED
s BIMBERERER s EPMBEEHRAZ
s EFPWMEE s ZFPRBEBKNLRER
s BHEEMLRE o HXREE

Shareholders

RER

Employees

Business partners

KRB

Regulators

Intellectual property protection
Anti-corruption

Risk Management

Economic performance

Full compliance with regulations

REABRERE
kRES
ERERE

& S 4
KRB

EHEETER

Talent management

Occupational health and safety
Career development opportunities
Compensation and benefits

Corporate culture and engagement

ATEHR
BxEmarse
BEERES
B S 12 7
EEXCRBEE

Business ethics

Risk Management
Long-term partnerships
BEER

[ B B

REIG 1ERAR

Regulatory compliance
Ethical operation
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Annual general meeting and other meetings
Corporate communications including
circulars, notifications, results
announcements, annual and interim reports

BRBAFAEREMKE
ERBH - B3REEK B - X8
WA wRE

NN

Performance appraisals
Employee involvement in volunteering and
CSR projects

RILAHE
BRESEEBTHE CXRUEERMIHERA

Meetings and discussion sessions

A T TA L2
B MR EE

In-person meeting with regulators
Compliance reporting

Circulars or guidelines

Ad-hoc enquiries

HEEREEH

BR|E

K EE

EFZER
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Stakeholders Key Concerns

B g BRI

Engagement Channels

Nz EEE TERRERE SHRE
Suppliers ®  Ethical business practices In-person meetings

*  Long-term partnerships Supplier audit

®  Supplier assessment criteria Supplier due diligence procedures
HEE o EEEXRIEN BERges

s RHESHERE HEEEX

o HEBFERE HEBESREERF
Media e  Community engagement initiatives Management interviews
e s HEZHEGE EEEWE
ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT Ry

The Group continuously assesses the impacts of its operations on the
environment and designs action plans to mitigate them to the extent
possible. The environmental performance data cover Jeju Shinhwa
World (“JSW"), South Korea. During the reporting period, the Group
complied with all relevant laws and regulations in South Korea,
where we have a major part of our operations. These include but are
not limited to, the Air Quality Preservation Act, the Water Quality
Preservation Act and the Waste Management Act. The Hong Kong
headquarter maintains office-based operations and strictly complies
with environmental laws applicable in Hong Kong.

Climate Change

The Group is aware of the potential adverse effects of climate change
on its business operations. We have identified climate-related
physical risks, transition risks and opportunities below and their
potential financial impact.

K’élﬂzzgﬁﬁﬁ%fxlﬂaiﬁ%%; W& E

THAENRAIRREBETYE - RERTH
?J?%%ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁ&mmm@ 55t (T N 4 58
HR) RBEHAN NEEETEHEME
HEEREREN  ERAZEEEME - 2%
FEEMERBIEENRNERE EREE Air
Quality Preservation Act) * /KE{RFEE (Water
Quality Preservation Act) REEY)EIR)% (Waste
Management Act) e HERIARAEEE -

NERETERBBERIRTER

RE21
AEEIRERECHEERZETRNER
T?‘Y‘J%% &WEJEE%%E'JLATEI’H1&*@?%‘%%3
% BERR BN R BEM BT E
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Type Climate- related Risks/Opportunities Potential Financial Impacts
=il RIZVEBARE A BEUBRE
Acute ® Increase in intensity of extreme ®  Reduced revenue due to temporary
weather events, such as typhoons, closure of the casinos and
rainstorms and floods attractions
o Damage to property might harm
the safety of employees and
customers
" Nk o EIMEHARREM - PIMEERE - F o RETHARYESLKREMERW
2 & MRKKMTE B
= B s DEBKRTHIEFEEREFNL
O g N
Y -
o Chronic e  Elevated average temperatures ®  Rising temperatures increase the
and sea levels cost on air conditioning at resorts,
casinos, etc.
e Damage of coastal properties and
resorts due to flooding
=3 o  FHRRKETHE LA e RBRLETHEMNERE - RE5ZE
ORI
s REKRXKBEASMERERR
Policy and Legal *  More stringent environmental rules ~ ®  Increased compliance related costs
and guidelines ®  Fines and penalties for non-
*  Enhanced climate-related compliance
disclosure requirements
R oA o EEEMRSEMRANES o EINaREREKAE
o INERIRIEBHBERTE o ERNIIE MEE
Technology e  Challenges of integrating emerging ®  Additional cost of investment in
technologies technology development and
. Investment in low-emissions integration
.% technology
® g— FRAi o  EAMERRME s MERBREESKRENTRINIA
2 o MEBEHETRE
é B Market e  Changes in customer preferences ®  Reduced revenue due to
= e Higher raw material costs decreasing demand for traditional
and non-eco-friendly amenities
M5 s HEEZHHNE o BNRABESRIIFERFERENTF
o RERMHKA ko E R A
Reputation e Shifts in consumer preferences e Adverse impact on brand

Tet

[

Growing stakeholder
apprehensions

HEEEFNEE
M tEREE B I N

SHIN HWA WORLD LIMITED #5654 FR A #]

reputation and image

Erosion of investor and customer
trust
HmBBERERNTHEE
HI55IR & E REEAE O
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Type Climate- related Risks/Opportunities Potential Financial Impacts
] RIZEERE B BEMBEE
Resource Efficiency *  Use of more efficient transport ®  Reduced operating costs through
modes increased efficiency

®*  Reduced water usage and
consumption

BRME s EAESHHREBER
o RAIKRIEER RFEK
Energy Source *  Low-carbon energy sources
adoption

*  Energy-efficient upgrades

BER o ERAIEMRRER
o RIBERME

Products and Services ®  Shift in consumer preferences
*  Development of low-emissions
products and services

Opportunities
#is

B KBRS o CHBESHREE
o EHRERRBRBEOEE

o EBIEIMMEM D EEMA

®*  Lower GHG emissions and hence
the sensitivity to carbon costs

®  Reduced operational costs through
increased efficiency

o RABRERBEHIA - AMIBUEIRAK

REVERRE
o FEBIEINMEIR A EEKAR
®  Increased revenue due to higher

competitiveness because of
changing consumer trends

® Increased revenue through
demand for eco-friendly products
and services

s HMNHEBEEBBREEYHT R
= 0 g

s FPRHRREMEBBEHFR &

Yz n
Markets ®  Access to new markets ®  Increased revenue through
demands in the new markets
M5 o EAFTIS o FEBYEHMIZHTIR - EUERIE M
Resilience *  Engage in renewable energy and ®  Establishment of resilience

energy efficiency initiatives
. Substitution or diversification of

resources
e o  ZHETBARRKERMEER

» FEREBRZZITEL

The Group is committed to addressing climate-related risks and
capturing opportunities by establishing plans in accordance with
global and industry best practices. Since November 2023, we have
adopted a climate change policy stating the actions that must be
taken in the event of extreme weather events. These actions are in
addition to those that have already been taken to contain the effects
of climate change.

strategies increases market
valuation

®  Enhanced supply chain reliability
and operational adaptability

o ETALEFESRES - DUEINTISEE

o IERftrEsER MR EEEEN

AEBBNZBEEHRITEREBEDIFI EF S
EHRIEZLCRARLIEERE BT _=F
T— AR ZAEHE-—BREZLCHE - H
FR 3 B e B A R R R R R M AR 1T
B o RELRBNTEN - ELTEEH
IR E
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B - AbE KAl

Energy Consumption

Sources of energy consumed by the Group include electricity, diesel
and liquefied petroleum gas (LPG) and petrol. Major consumption
of energy takes place at hotels and the casino in South Korea. The
Group consumed a total of 107,708,621.56 kWh of energy, with an
intensity of 103.94 kWh/thousand Hong Kong dollars revenue. The
energy consumption decreased by 6.75% from 2022.

BERH

AEBATEENEREEE N &4 &Rt
AHRAEARBR TEAMNAEENEER
RBEERERE - AEB2RERBEREER
107,708,621.56 T LB - % € 5103.94 F I B
S TFETWE - EFEREE S F
6.75% ©

|| . |
Energy Consumption
B

120,000,000.00
=
= 100,000,000.00
=
s 56,366,957.61
5 4 80,000,000.00
S 46,857,163.89
5t 327,146.88 593,573.67
2 .. 60,000,000.00
S
ﬂi = 20,697.53 237,615.00
D& 40,000,000.00
(0]
5 58,795,610.64 60,020,269.00

20,000,000.00

0.00
2022 2023
M Purchased elecricity M Petrol M Diesel LPG
u BEEN ok Ly BICEHE u
Carbon Footprint B 2 ED

Operations of the Group result in emissions of greenhouse gases
(GHG). These are on account of fuel consumed by vehicles, besides
purchased electricity. Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) were 11,406.79
tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent (tCOze) in the reporting year,
while indirect emissions (Scope 2) were 24,686.34 tCOze. The intensity
of total greenhouse gas emissions was 0.035 tCOze/thousand Hong
Kong dollars revenue in the year 2023.

AEEMEEBEFRIHEZERE (GHG) ° B
FTEEME NI AEBEENBRETNERAEE
RE -ERAERBN(EE - )RBREFE
A11,406.79ME — S bk & £ - i % P (&
B =) R24,68634ME — G LI EE - R_-Z
= RERBERNBENEER0.0358 =
fAeixg e THETkE -

] L. ]
Greenhouse Gas Emissions
BERBEHR
40,000.00 0.040

35,000.00 0035
S M
_30,000.00 0030 _ 8 £
oy 5 IR
Qg 25000.00 24,435.46 24,686.34 0025 21
[OF-=S PR} Y
@3 20,000.00 0020 = 2 &
TR 628w
1| 1500000 0015 2 & T
RegES E o ™K
E— 10,000.00 0010 1 § 5
B 12,296.17 11,406.79 e W
% 5000.00 A Pl 0005 = ]
0.00 0.000 S

2022 2023

m Scope 1 = Scope 2 Intensity
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Climate-related Targets

The Group has set targets for GHG emissions and energy efficiency,

and monitors its performance against these targets regularly. These

are as shown in the table below:

Aspect Target
L B

B - A R ARl

RIZHEE B =

AEBERBREREBHFBRRERR ST BT
YEHENENEBBEENKRE - AR BEH
KT :

GHG emissions
B EREEBER m=

Energy efficiency The proportion of electrical appliances with energy-saving labels is gradually moving

BER

44

Full switch to electric vehicles by 2030
Z=TFHN2EBEREHE

towards 100%

AR RNERLHE TR

£ 100%

Bk

Carbon Reduction

The Group strives to contribute to and achieve the goals set for

environmental sustainability. For enhancing its energy efficiency and
reducing its GHG emissions, the Group has implemented an energy
management system at JSW. Several measures have been taken to

reduce energy consumption at JSW, while ensuring that customer

experience is not affected adversely. These measures are:

The push for use of light-emitting diodes (LED) lights continued,
which helped reduce electricity consumption.

In rooms, parking spaces and staircases, sensors have been
installed for automatically dimming or turning off lights when
the space is vacant. At nights, lights in public areas are turned
off to reduce electricity usage.

The green roof system reduces electricity consumption for
cooling.

Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning (HVAC) systems
operate according to seasonal changes. Filters are replaced 4
times annually for ensuring energy efficiency. More frequent
filter replacement has resulted in saving about 283,000 kWh of
electricity in 2023.

When customers do not need air-conditioning in the casino it is
switched off.

The manmade waterfall serving as an ornamental attraction has
its operational time reduced by 3 hours per day.

%

REBBNARFEAIFHEEEL R KENX B
B RRARERMERRDEREREIM -
REEDEENGEERBEEEREERS
ERREEBRIIEATENARET B8
e 2% T8 15 s DA JRL A 72 77 M 4% 55t SR A BE IR OB
o REHEERE

s MEHBEMBAX_GR(ED)E A

HOREE -

o KRR REMUNMEMLEBRES  AE
RS RAIE R R MERZERE - 8 LR
BERLGMZEE  WHADRE -

s HREETREFSHMIHSHEEE -

e REAZTHAMHVAQOZRZREBEZTSHUHZ(H
BT o BREREBGLRMEG - BIRBHR
HAEBFIR  PHEFHBIRBENF S
T =FEE T4283,000 TERRHES -
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°
0

EEERNY AR L%
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h H
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In addition to reducing energy consumption, the Group is working
to expand use of renewable energy. JSW has a solar generating
capacity of 340 kWh and the output is used in hotels, condominiums
and other facilities. For continued progress, the Group considers
it important to raise employees’ awareness on an ongoing basis.
Therefore, the Group has implemented green measures at the head
office, encouraging employees to turn off lights and electronic and
electrical appliances when not in use.

Landing Jeju Development Co., Ltd. was given GHG allocation and
emission trading permits by the Ministry of Environment of Korea in
2022.

Water Saving

The Group has a capacity to treat 600 tonnes of grey water per day,
which works out to 15,000 tonnes of wastewater annually. Recycled
water is used for watering plants, cleaning premises, etc. In 2023,
733,770 m® of water was consumed, with an intensity of 0.71m?%/
thousand Hong Kong dollars revenue, while 277,902 m? of the total
consumption was recycled. The Group did not face any difficulties in
sourcing water fit for the purpose during the year.

B TR RERERE - ARETRBNEANBE
REIREE R o M ABEEH SREER 340 TREHA
FPREZEER T BWHNENANEE 28R
HipkiE - Ris@EEY  AEERLTHRES
ETHNEELAER - At - AEEEAZK
ettt YSBETHEETMERZER
ETEMNRES -

EamNAEMAeHERN S - —FEEER
RHERAERED I LB ZFFAIRE -

B 49 Aok

AEBRERIERE N AT H600ME LB K
F ] BRI 15,000757K o fBIR/KAI R AEY
BEARBREME R_E_=F  FKEA
733,770 F K - BMEABQTIM K/ THE T
0 MAAFEKER 277,902 37 FT KB EIRER -
AEERFAEERSBERKSEYEEFE
2o

| ) -
Water Consumption
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780,000.00 078
> —~
T 770,000.00 060 ,§§ ﬁ
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RN 050 £ ¥ i IR
2 1 750,000.00 SImyg
RE 040 5 g B\
£ — 740,000.00 781,555.00 2 Sy
v 030 20wy
€3 730,000.00 30 g 2Wyp
O 720,000.00 020 2 43
T 733,770.00 SE ™
710,000.00 010 V= ~
700,000.00 0.00
2022 2023
m Water Consumption (m3) Intensity
|| FKE "E |

The Group has implemented clear policies to reduce water
consumption, prioritising efficiency and recycling. At the JSW resort,
a greywater and stormwater recycling facility has been established,
with greywater now accounting for 38.7% of total usage. Effluent
treatment facilities are also in place to ensure sewage meets
environmental standards. These efforts underscore the Group's
commitment to sustainable water management.
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Air Emissions ZRBEK

The Group consumes fuel in its vehicles and for operating AEEREEHRKEEKRHBETHTEZHEMR
construction machinery. During the year, 0.06 tonnes of sulphur %} < A + EA0.06 WAL - 12.18A S
dioxide (SOx), 12.18 tonnes of nitrogen oxide (NOx) and 0.39 tonnes  {b#) &% 0.39WASR ) Z K T o TE B FiE B AR B A
of particulate matter (PM) were generated. In compliance with 2T AKX & & M T BT EEREERL
applicable laws, operations records are reported to the designated  $k M ZERBEFAI A RS - Z— 5L F AR
governmental authority, along with results of tests of air emissions. REIHERIF @ B EREMERAREHANEE o
Another source of pollution is leakage of refrigerants, and this is

checked by regular inspections of all pipes used in air-conditioning.

[ ) ) |
Air Pollutions
BESEY
25.00
oW -0.39 0.39
[0} |
e |-0.06 0.06 |
S = 1500 | \
C
=<
é g 10.00
£
12.1
- 5.00 &
0.00
2022 2023
m NOx SOx uPM
u AEly  mELH EER |

To reduce air pollution from fuel consumption, the Group is ARV RFLERERNER SR AEEIERE
developing strategies to cut emissions, focusing on energy efficiency ~ HIER BB D EEA - EE S P ETREE IE o Bt
and consumption reduction initiatives. At the same time, JSW is  [RIf - BEM @Gt R IEZR P REHKTVHBELR S
transitioning from traditional petrol vehicles to electric carts and EBE)RHKEREFERERERAEER A -

vehicles for in-resort transportation.

In addition, super low NOx emission boilers have replaced t%h  BIER | 1L ¥ BEAR IR 1E 2 BV (F 47 88
conventional boiler. The relevant staff needs to track the boiler /& - {HEE T/EBMBEMNEEBR  WEX
operations and check the air emission status on daily basis. Regular &2 JIEHGARL  INPIRIBE B L RIESF
inspections of boilers by external environment authorities are  #fTRAEHIRE - UFAMA AR
conducted twice a year to meet local regulations.

The management of the Group regularly reviews effectiveness of AEEEIEE T HBRTIRE LS REARTE
ESG initiatives and measures. Environmental audits are conducted RIEHERIKE - EHETIRBEEZENRER
regularly to help achieve better compliance with national and local ~FUEFRR Kb 2 BEEHRIE ©

regulatory requirements.
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Waste Management

“Reduction, Reuse and Recycling” is the core guiding principle in the
context of waste management. This concept is constantly promoted
among employees and visitors, to control generation and ensure
appropriate disposal of waste. The Group’s estate management
services team helps implement the prescribed procedures and other
relevant measures.

Considerable quantities of non-hazardous waste are generated
by guests visiting the resort, including plastic bottles, packaging
materials and metal containers. These are all collected in bins placed
at appropriate points. This waste is then handed over to designated
recycler. The Group also encourages use of reusable dishes,
silverware and glassware in order to minimise use of disposables.
This year, we partnered with JeClean Recycling, to address linen
waste. Together, we recycled around 10 tonnes of waste, significantly
reducing our environmental impact.

In November 2023, JSW and e-Cycle Governance entered into
a business agreement for electronic resource recirculation and
ESG management. This pact aims to fulfil social responsibility by
establishing a virtuous resource recirculation structure through
environmentally friendly recovery and recycling of waste electrical and
electronic products. JSW will collect and recycle those wastes starting
from Q1 2024, marking significant progress towards sustainability.

Moreover, weekly Clean House Inspections and Recycling Waste
Separation training are conducted for employees. This internal
initiative aims to educate them on waste separation methods,
fostering their awareness of waste reduction to enhance sustainability
efforts within the organisation.

For treatment of food waste, a separate facility has been built. Food
waste is dried and compressed in order to reduce the volume. It is
then incinerated in conformity with local regulatory requirements. The
process of incineration generates ash which is treated as fertiliser for
gardening. The staff takes general waste separation training as part
of the newly hired staff training to learn waste separation methods
and enhance environmental consciousness.

In 2023, a total of 3,672 tonnes of non-hazardous waste and 0.08
tonnes of hazardous waste was generated, while 1,579 tonnes of
waste was recycled. During the year, the Group's operations did not
involve significant consumption of packaging materials.
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The Group has set targets for waste and water reuse, and monitors
its performance against these targets regularly. These are as shown in
the table below:

B - A R ARl

AEBERERYEBEKERIE B ZLE M
EANERERERNRE - BRERHEN X

Aspect Target

Lol B

Waste Gradually increase the percentage of waste recycled

EEY) E SR ANEKEEEY)

Water use Achieving 100% compliance with environmental protection standards in discharge of sewage
F7K BERUT/KES e 2 BT IRIRIZ A

Environmental and Natural Resources

Before setting up the JSW, the Group had commissioned a
consultant for a comprehensive environmental impact assessment
covering potential adverse environmental impacts. In tune with advice
rendered by the consultant, the resort design included eco-friendly
features and this has helped reduce the environmental impact of its
operations.

The Group tries to minimise consumption of resources of all kinds,
including the use of paper. It encourages use of softcopies, has fewer
paper contracts with vendors and both sides of paper are used in
case hard copies are unavoidable. Similarly, envelopes and file folders
are re-used wherever possible. In the long run, these approaches
enhance employees’ environmental awareness and minimise waste
generation.

The Group has implemented an array of initiatives for increasing
resource usage efficiency. These include energy conservation,
rainwater harvesting and wastewater recycling, apart from following
responsible sourcing practices for office furniture and equipment.
To further enhance environmental consciousness, the Group also
provides training on general waste separation methods to its
employees.

Engaging with the community at places where it operates, the Group
disseminates environmental protection messages to the community.
To this end, the Group organises environmental protection events
regularly, while its volunteer clubs collaborate with community service
organisations in Jeju for the benefit of local residents. The Group is
looking forward to encouraging employees to support environmental
protection activities in future.

BERAARER

FERIEMNR B RA - AEE D RIBBEME
TEEAREFEFHCREBETNEE) - 1R
BREFERENES  ERENRFTERARRK
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AEERERVEBERER  BRAKRNE
Ao EEBERETEAR - flmEHEEeEmEd
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RAEEER - At TEAEEREHRX
oo REBERH - ZFNEAIRSBEIZRRF
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OUR PEOPLE
Employment

Providing the right kind of working environment and growth
opportunities to its employees is of paramount importance as the
Group views employees as its most important asset. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group had a total of 1,495 employees, with 875
male and 620 female, mainly from Hong Kong and Korea. The Group
has made it a practice to strictly comply with all employment laws and
regulations applicable in Jeju, including but not limited to the Labour
Standards Act of South Korea and the Employment Ordinance and
Minimum Wage Ordinance in Hong Kong.

The Group upholds policies emphasising equal opportunity,
diversity, and anti-discrimination. It adheres to laws including the
Sex Discrimination Ordinance, Disability Discrimination Ordinance,
Family Status Discrimination Ordinance, and Race Discrimination
Ordinance. Employees receive equal promotion opportunities and
fair treatment irrespective of age, gender, marital or family status,
race, skin colour, nationality, religion, political affiliation, or sexual
orientation. In 2023, a remuneration catch-up plan was executed,
augmenting compensation and benefits to make them align with
market standards.

The Group prioritises open communication with employees across
various channels. Alongside ensuring a safe, enjoyable workplace and
equitable compensation, benefits, career opportunities, and various
learning and development programmes, it fosters a robust corporate
culture that values and rewards employee contributions.

Development and Training

The Group aims to lead in leisure resort development and operation,
ensuring continual growth through comprehensive employee
training. Priority lies in enhancing problem-solving abilities and work
efficiency, while adhering to the Vocational Skills Development Act in
South Korea.

JSW offers tailored training programmes, such as leadership training
at appropriate levels and service training at all levels, covering
all resort operations. Efforts include training employees as tutors
through a systematic Train-the-Trainer course.

We strive to hire the best available talent, recognising the continual
need for skill refinement as a vital aspect of our human resources
strategy. In addition to department-specific training tailored to
employees’ roles, approximately 83% of our workforce completed an
average of 13.5 hours of training.
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Health and Safety

Ensuring the occupational health and safety of employees is a top
priority for the Group. We strictly adhere to all relevant regulations,
including the Occupational Safety and Health Act in South Korea and
the Occupation Safety and Health Ordinance in Hong Kong.

Regular safety training is provided for department heads, safety
supervisors, employees, and new staff. Additionally, monthly safety
and health meetings are convened with department heads to address
accident issues and discuss potential improvements. Our daily safety
inspection system aims to identify harmful factors, supplemented by
safety risk assessments and joint inspections of outsourced services.

Worker feedback is actively sought and used to inform ongoing
improvement measures. We conduct quarterly Occupational Safety
and Health Committee meetings, monthly HOD Safety and Health
conferences and monthly Outsourced Safety Committee gatherings,
and have implemented a new system to facilitate monthly collection
and review of on-site inspection feedback.

Providing a safe and healthy working environment is achieved by the
following measures:

e Office as well as work environment at the resort must comply
with or exceed requirements of the relevant laws;

e Safety procedures for work entailing risks should be clearly
defined and communicated;

®  Protective equipment, medical insurance and regular health
check-ups are provided for employees;

®  Machinery and equipment are checked regularly to prevent
malfunctioning that may lead to accidents;

® In the event of emergency events like a fire or an explosion,
there should be clearly laid out procedures for employees to
follow; and

e All workplace injuries are recorded and causes are analysed.
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This year also we initiated various measures to strengthen employee
safety and health management:

®  Upgrade accident services, including hospital transfers and
treatment fee coverage

® Enhance Work Environment Measurement in Building
Workplaces

® Investigate musculoskeletal hazards and enhance transportation
work

®  Enhance workplace with snow removal, safer stairs, improved
entrances

* Intensify outsourced work safety, adopt dangerous task
suspension protocol

Throughout the year, employees received safety training and regular
inspections were conducted. In 2023, the Group documented 23
work-related injuries but zero fatalities. Most accidents resulted from
worker negligence and failure to wear protective gear. However, all
injured employees resumed work after treatment. Monthly meetings
and weekly inspections are organised to enhance safety awareness
among subcontractors and to mitigate risks.

The Group was not aware of any instance of non-compliance with
laws and regulations that have a significant impact, relating to a safe
working environment and protection from occupational hazards
during the year.
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Labour Standards

The Group strictly complies with the Labour Standard Act in
South Korea and prohibits the use of child and/or forced labour.
Compliance is ensured by way of the following:

Age Restriction
FHR MRS
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TR

Ensuring Workplace Safety
BRIERERE

REEBIRESTRERES TIZAEX (Labour Standard
Act) ' W IFEERTMET R SEHIS T - )&
HRIDBE BT ERRES

Age Verification
BEFR

No employee should be less than 16
years of age

BRENFRNEER 165

No employee who is under 18 should

be assigned any hazardous work or
asked to work at night so that their
studies are not affected

BHATZEETARERAARRZ
T WEIFEBRETHE BEPE

Diligent verification of age must
be conducted before hiring a new
employee by the HR Department.
Documents submitted as proof
of age are checked and the HR
Department ensures the appearance

B%

of the applicants is consistent with
the photograph on the identity
document.

BREMFEESR - ANERIBEA
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In the event of an instance of forced labour, actions mandated by
relevant legislation are promptly taken. The affected employee
is swiftly removed from the workplace. The human resources
department is asked to verify all relevant information and confirm
whether the employee is indeed a case of forced labour. The reasons
why the employee was not identified in the recruitment process is
analysed and rectification measures are taken within 90 working days.

During the year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance
with laws and regulations having a significant impact on the Group
relating to employment and labour practices; nor did we identify any
incidents relating to the use of child or forced labour.
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OUR OPERATION
Supply Chain Management

The Group worked with 682 suppliers during the year, of which 660
were Korean enterprises and the remaining 22 enterprises were from
Hong Kong, China, Singapore, Macau and the United States, etc.

Setting up and operating JSW has entailed working with several
contractors and suppliers and the Group has developed and
maintained long-term relationships with them. The Group selects its
business partners carefully, after due diligence, in order to obtain and
supply high-quality products and services. Transparent, fair and open
procedures are the hallmarks of our procurement procedures for all
materials, services and contents. Supply chain members are verified
based on our SOP procedure which we formally follow. This year, the
Procurement SOP has been revised in line with IA remediation efforts.
All detailed processes adhere to the SOP and comply with laws and
regulations in Korea. The Group cooperates with only those business
partners who believe in the same ethical values and standards.

Product Responsibility

The Group's JSW resort and casino improve customer satisfaction
by providing world-class products and services. In order to enhance
the guest experience, the QA team implements daily walk-throughs
of rooms and the resort, checks defective areas, and holds ‘service
improvement meeting’ for analysing and calculating data to find
out the causes of factors that need to be addressed. Monthly
review meetings are conducted to validate the Casino Programme's
profitability. Whenever a customer complaint is received, remedial
procedures are followed to resolve it promptly, often by offering
feasible solutions or further assistance. During the year, a total of
1,322 complaints were received by the hospitality business and the
attractions unit. They were all handled and resolved in a prompt
manner after thorough review and investigation.
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The Group complies with all applicable laws and regulations,
which include but are not limited to Product Liability Act, Personal
Information Protection Act and casino regulations promulgated
by The National Gambling Control Commission in South Korea.
Confidentiality of personal information is maintained diligently, in
accordance with consumer data protection and privacy policies.
Use of personal data by staff is monitored to ensure information
collected from guests and customers is stored and managed in strict
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations. Access to such
information is limited to employees specifically authorised to use it,
for specified purposes.

At JSW, the Group has clearly laid out the privacy policy and
posted it on the resort’'s website as required by the Korean Personal
Information Protection Act. JSW collects only such information as is
necessary for smooth operations. The Group obtains prior consent
of customers if the information is required to be provided to third
parties for bona fide reasons. Selective personal data are collected
and used in full compliance with the information network law of
Republic of Korea.

Protecting intellectual property rights of its own as well as those
of suppliers, customers, business partners, competitors and others
is an essential component of business practices followed by the
Group. In all contracts with third parties, there are clauses stipulating
observance and protection of intellectual property rights. In order
to stay up-to-date on applicable laws and regulations and to avoid
any infringements, expert advice is sought regularly from patent and
trademark lawyers. The Group registered 45 trademarks in Korea and
18 other countries. Certificates of registered intellectual property
rights are stored, managed, and renewed by the legal team.

To the best of our knowledge, there were no incidents of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that could have had a
significant impact on us, in respect of occupational health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided or methods of redressal.
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the following initiatives. g

Responsible Gaming

The Casino at the resort in Jeju is allowed to entertain only foreign
nationals and unlawful entry of Korean citizens is prevented by using

e "No Minors Allowed” signs are displayed prominently at the entrance of the casino
to inform all guests that those under the age of 19 are prohibited from entering the
casino

s HREFANERUEBEBIY[RKFALNMBEAIZETE  ABRAEEA9%
AT ALZ I A LRSS

Strict enforcement of identity checks before guests are allowed to enter the casino

BEANEANRGRIBBATH RE

®  Casino reserves the right to deny access or remove a person from the gaming area
under circumstances it deems appropriate such as behaviours affecting the safety or

security of others

s EFSRFEMARRTR/IREBMALZEBRT  RESFRBER/IATESLSXK

15 5% A T REAR SR 2 FE R

The casino ensures responsible gaming by working closely with the
relevant government authorities and community bodies, minimising
any negative social impact. The highest standards of professional
integrity are followed.

Training is provided to the entire staff of the casino for promotion
and practice of responsible gaming. Staff is trained to resort to
culturally appropriate interventions when necessary and provide any
available information, support and referrals to guests. The Group has
a responsible gaming awareness training programme that all new
hires are required to attend and this is followed by annual refresher
programmes that equip the staff to offer the necessary help and
resources to guests when needed.

In order to ensure responsible gaming, it is necessary to build the
requisite awareness among the staff of the casino and the resort. For
this purpose, informative messages are posted on staff notice boards,
as well as internal newsletters and posters in staff areas.
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Anti-corruption

The Group strictly adheres to anti-corruption related laws and
regulations applicable where it operates, including Improper
Solicitation and Graft Act in South Korea and Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance in Hong Kong, especially when it enters into contracts and
agreements with suppliers of goods and services. The Group tolerates
no instances of corruption or bribery. There was no concluded legal
case regarding corrupt practices brought against the company or its
employees during the year.

The Group's casino strives to remain alert about compliance with
applicable laws and regulations on prevention of money laundering.
The Group has engaged a reputed law firm in South Korea to
examine the efficacy of its systems and advise on the Anti-Money
Laundering (“AML") and Counter Terrorism Financing (“CTF")
framework, besides the design of controls and policies of the gaming
business.

The Group has, for operating gaming business, developed a detailed
policy for internal controls, which ensures compliance with the
applicable AML and CTF laws and regulations. All employees of
JSW take anti-money laundering training online once a year. The
Board also reviews the internal control system and its enforcement
periodically. The latest of such reviews has returned satisfactory
results.

The Group is committed to conducting business honestly, ethically
and with integrity. In line with such commitment, the Group has
established Anti-corruption Policy in 2022. The policy specifies anti-
corruption, anti-bribery and anti-fraud provisions. All business units
and employees are required to comply with this policy and adhere
to the Group's high standards of professional and ethical conduct.
According to the Group's Whistleblowing Policy, every employee
has a duty to timely report any suspected misconduct or malpractice
through the company reporting channels and procedures.

During the year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance
with laws and regulations that could have a significant impact on the
Group relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
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HERE

CfEHERAAERZ XLEESLD - FA - &
EFH % A A $£1,493,587.53 7 JT 1% & 7 ol $E 3%

Community Investment

Giving back to the community is a part of the Group's cultural ethos.
During the year, the Group spent a total of HKD 1,493,587.53 for

investments in town development, theme park and water park tickets, & * FTE AR MK FEEFIE - SFH 2 Lt

youth association and community organisation. = 4 45 -

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY AR B

2023 2022
—E-=F T F

ENVIRONMENT BB

Total Energy Consumption (kWh) ERAKE(TRER) 107,708,621.56  115,510,412.66
Gasoline/Petrol (kWh) Ul (FER) 237,615.00 20,697.53
Diesel (kWh) Sem (FRLE) 593,573.67 327,146.88
Liquefied petroleum gas (kWh) BAvAm R (F ) 46,857,163.89  56,366,957.61
Purchased electricity (kWh) BEE (TR 60,020,269.00  58,795,610.64
Energy Consumption Intensity BERFEERE(TREE FHETlE) 103.94 83.29

(kWh/Revenue HK$'000)

Water Consumption (m?) FEKE(ZTTK) 733,770 781,555

Water Consumption Intensity FEKERE (LK FHBxle) 0.71 0.56
(m3/Revenue HK$'000)

Total Greenhouse Gas Emissions (tCOze) BAEREAHKE(H_FtHREE) 36,093.13 36,731.63
Scope 1 (tCO2¢) HE—(-_S/tEs 11,406.79 12,296.17
Scope 2 (tCOze) FE-_(E_StikEs 24,686.34 24,435.46
Greenhouse Gas Emission Intensity RERBHRERE 0.035 0.018

(kWh/Revenue HK$'000) (FREFHETHE)

Air Emissions* RIS *

Nitrogen oxides (NOx) (tonnes) REAC (W) 12.18 12.18
Sulphur oxides (SOx) (tonnes) e e () 0.06 0.06
Particulate matters (PM) (tonnes) SBOFRLF () 0.39 0.39

Waste BEZEY)

Hazardous waste (tonnes) BEEREZEY) () 0.08 0.11
Non-hazardous waste (tonnes) fmEREZE ) (MA) 3,672 3,968

BREA_TS_—FMASFEE—H T
FRZERSLAMBEME HISET °

* The air emissions for 2022 are amended to align with the measurement ~ *
criteria used for 2023.
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2023 2022
—E-=5F —E-—F
WORKFORCE DEMOGRAPHICS EEAOMZE
Total Headcount BETHAY 1,495 1,418
By Geographical Distribution & S El o
Hong Kong BB 40 25
South Korea L 1,346 1,295
Others HAmh 109 98
By Age Group RERARNES
Under 30 30BRIA T 633 558
30-39 30 & 395% 429 448
40 - 49 40 E 49 B%, 267 282
50 - 59 50&597% 128 104
60 or above 60FREIA L 38 26
By Gender RMRIE S
Male S 875 849
Female 74 620 569
By Workforce Profile REEAQMRIE S
Office W= 522 463
Operations 8 973 955
By Employment Type RIERERE S
Full-time s 1,327 1,213
Part-time FR 168 205
Employee Turnover Rate BERKRE 33.78% 32.58%
By Age Group BERERE S
Under 30 30BRAT 35.23% 1.79%
30-39 30 £ 395% 41.03% 21.21%
40 - 49 40 = 49 5%, 26.59% 75.53%
50 - 59 50 & 59 5% 19.53% 117.31%
60 or above 60mREA 26.32% 84.62%
By Gender ZMRIE S
Male B4 30.97% 21.52%
Female I 37.74% 98.05%
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2023 2022
—EB=F —E-—F
Employee New Hire Rate EEMARE 39.00% 39.92%
By Age Group RERARNE D
Under 30 30BRA T 63.35% 65.41%
30-39 30E 395% 19.81% 21.88%
40 - 49 A0 E 49 5%, 16.10% 25.18%
50 - 59 50 & 59 5% 28.91% 23.08%
60 or above 60 BRI £ 44.74% 30.77%
By Gender ZIERE D
Male B 34.17% 26.79%
Female gegis 45.81% 117.56%
HEALTH AND SAFETY RERZZ
Occupational Health and BERREZ2RY
Safety Performance
Number of work-related injuries Ti58E 23 21
Work-related accident rate THEESMLE 0.96 0.62
(per 100,000 working hours) (& 100,000 TYERFERET)
Lost days due to work injury AT EMmELRN TIERE 406 363
Work-related fatalities TR EY 0 0
Safety Training T2
Total training hours 43I R 2R 41,560 34,812
Percentage of employees trained XIEEBD 100% 100%
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2023 2022
—E-=fF —E-=
DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING 2R R Ed
Total Number of Employees Trained ZIESHEE 1,238 1,283
By Gender RMRIES
Male B4 735 759
Female g 503 524
By Position RBALE D
Office staff /NEYN = 485 283
Operations staff ZEBAE 753 1,000
Total Percentage of Employee Training &I HILL Al 83% 90%
By Gender ZMRIE D
Male B4 84.00% 89.40%
Female 4 81.13% 92.09%
By Position LA B
Office staff MAEANE 92.91% 61.12%
Operations staff EEBAE 77.39% 104.71%
Total Training Hours of Employees* BIEE I 20,111 19,408
By Gender RMRIE S
Male XL 10,798.0 10,439.5
Female 74 9,313.0 8,968.5
By Position LR B D
Office staff WAEAB 7,736.5 7,354
Operations staff ZEBAR 12,374.5 12,054
The Average Training Hours 15 Z FI| R & 13.5 13.7
By Gender I RIE S
Male B4 12.3 12.3
Female 7t 15.0 15.8
By Position RBALE D
Office staff /NEYN =1 14.8 15.9
Operations staff LEBAE 12.7 12.6
SUPPLIERS HER
Total Number of Suppliers GYEREE g 682 682
By Geographical Distribution TR S El S
Korea L35 660 675
Macau P 3 2
Malaysia ISP i 3 0
Singapore ¥ N 3 1
Hong Kong 'k 1 2
China H 3 1
USA e 3 1
Italy BRF 2 =
Australia BN 1 =
Germany == 1 =
Sweden T 1 -
Canada JIEPN 1 =
# Total training hours of employees exclude safety training hours. # BEEEIINETEELEEIFE -
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The Directors present the annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Overview

Details of (i) business review and relevant principal risks and
uncertainties and (ii) future development of the Group's business
are set out respectively in the “Operation and Business Review”,
"Outlook” and “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” sections under
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of the Letter from the Board.

The Group understands the success of the Group's business depends
on the support from its key stakeholders, including employees,
customers, suppliers, banks, regulators and shareholders. The Group
will continue to ensure effective communication and maintain good
relationship with each of its key stakeholders.

Key Financial Ratios

Details of the Group's business performance are indicated in

EEEME
B -

FREH
ARBBREZERATR - KRB EEWERA
ZEBEBENEREMBHRRME -

EHEAFEZFREEELER

e

> 75 o] Jgd

BE
BROFHRENAHEEZRARSETHAR
= RAREERBRRER ZFBDHHERN
ExgnfIEEETwRED 7FEJWH«<§£&¥W

Rl TREIRIEZERRETHAAERRE |
-0

AEEHABAKEEBRDBURNE £ Bz
W?ﬁ%ZSE%' BiEER TP HER - R

EERBLAERR AKEREBEHEE TR
ﬂ SHEBEERFEAREBERFRE

FEMBHER
BRAKEXGRRZFABRESTSNHIERE

“Management Discussion and Analysis” section of the Letter from the B EE DM | —ERIIR - MEAMI B R EH
Board, and other financial ratios are set out below: R :
2023 2022
—EB=F —EF-F
Debt to equity ratio BEXREBRLE 24.2% 23.9%
Quick ratio RELE X 1.1 1.9
Notes: PET

(1 Debt to equity ratio is calculated by dividing total liabilities by total equity.
Debt to equity ratio slightly increase from 23.9% in 2022 to 24.2% in 2023.

2 Quick ratio is calculated by dividing total current assets less properties under
development, inventories and completed properties for sale by total current
liabilities. Quick ratio decreases from 1.9 in 2022 to 1.1 in 2023.
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Environmental Policies and Performance

Details of the Company’s environmental policies and performance
are set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report.
Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risk of non-compliance of the applicable rules
and regulations. The Group has been allocating system and staff
resources to ensure ongoing compliance with rules and regulations
and to maintain cordial working relationships with regulators
effectively through effective communications. During the Year,
the Group has complied with, among others, to the best of our
knowledge, the following major laws and regulations:

Hong Kong

—  the Listing Rules;
—  the SFO;
—  Companies Ordinance; and

—  the Gambling Ordinance.

South Korea

—  Tourism Promotion Act;

—  Special Act on the Establishment of Jeju Special Self-governing
Province and the Development of Free International City;

— Jeju Special Self-governing Province Tourism Promotion
Ordinance;

—  Foreign Exchange Transaction Act;

—  Building Act (and its Enforcement Decree);

—  Landscape Act (and its Enforcement Decree);

—  Environmental Impact Assessment Act (and its Enforcement
Decree);
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BREBRRERR
BRAARRREBREKRE ZFBHNIRE

HERERRE -

EEREERR

AEBERETEERTESERROIFMBE 2
TERER AEE-—ENERBRRANER
PERFBEETRIIRRTE  WERBERER
HEERBREETAIERE AFER - &
BAMEL  ARERETEPBE)IATE
RIRBIRIER

Yl
— LR
- BHRLEEGED

- RAEMED: R
- BEEERA -

—  FRIERESEZ (Tourism Promotion Act)

- RYEMBNBERERZERBERE
B B 8 M % Bl % & (Special Act on
the Establishment of Jeju Special
Self-governing Province and the
Development of Free International
City)

—  BEIMNE R B 8 & Kk e &l Jeju
Special Self-governing Province Tourism
Promotion Ordinance) :

— 4N [E R 5 & ZF(Foreign Exchange
Transaction Act) :

— BEZER(RHEEMZES)(Building Act
(and its Enforcement Decree)) :

—  HFER(RHEEHAS) (Landscape Act
(and its Enforcement Decree)) :

- BAPETFEERREERES)
(Environmental Impact Assessment Act
(and its Enforcement Decree)) :
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—  Road Act;

—  Jeju Special Self-governing Province Building Ordinance;

—  Commercial Act; and

—  Foreign Investment Promotion Act.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on pages 91 and 92.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the Year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2023 and the date of this report, the total number
of issued ordinary shares of the Company was 4,226,252,310 and
5,071,502,310 shares respectively with a nominal value of HK$0.01
each.

There were no movements in share capital of the Company during
the Year.

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 27 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Promotion Act) °
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Details of distributable reserves of the Company are set out in note
28 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated
financial statements, is set out on page 220.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Chan Mee Sze (Acting Chairperson)

Dr. Wong Hoi Po

Mr. Huang Wei

Dr. Yang Zhihui (retired on 20 June 2023)

Ms. Pu Shen Chen (resigned on 1 September 2023)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Li Chun Kei
Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham
Mr. Du Peng

In accordance with Bye-Law 84(1) and code provision B.2 of the CG
Code under Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules, Mr. Huang Wei and
Mr. Du Peng will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting ("AGM") and are eligible for re-election.

The Company has sought confirmation by each of the retiring
Directors as to their willingness to stand for re-election at the
AGM and to allocate sufficient time in the business and affairs of
the Company. All of the retiring Directors have agreed to offer
themselves for re-election at the AGM. As such, ordinary resolutions
will be proposed to re-elect Mr. Huang as executive Director and Mr.
Du as independent non-executive Director at the AGM.
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CHANGE IN INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in information
of Directors are set out below:

Name of Director

EEHR

Details of changes

SEFHE

EHE RS

BE EMRAE1351BMN)IE - EEERAE
FHHaT

Shek Lai Him Abraham -

Goldin Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 530), of which he was the Chairman

and an executive director, was in liquidation and delisted from the Stock Exchange

from 9.00 a.m. on 31 October 2023.

- resigned as an independent non-executive director of Country Garden Holdings
Company Limited (stock code: 2007) with effect from 15 March 2024.

iR —

FEEEZEMATEETNSREB(EE)BR AR (B : 530)RIEETER -

HERPINR T _=F+A=+—H L FNARERRE AR -

- RIZF-_NF=-AtRAAREAREEZERARAR MDA : 2007) 2B IEHTT

R

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company, or any of its holding
companies, its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company and any
other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements, no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
to which the Company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director had a material
interest, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the
Year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to Bye-Law 164 and relevant provisions of the regulations
stipulated, every Director and other officers of the Company at any
time, whether at present or in the past, shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all losses and liabilities which he may incur or sustain in or
about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation
thereto, and no Director or other officers shall be liable for any loss,
damages or misfortune which may happen to or be incurred by the
Company in the execution of the duties of his office or in relation
thereto, provided that the Bye-Laws shall only have effect in so far as
its provisions are not avoided by the Bermuda Companies Act.

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors is
currently in force and was in force throughout the financial year.
The Company has taken out and maintained Directors’ and officers’
liabilities insurance throughout the Year, which provides appropriate
cover for the directors of the Group.

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors nor chief executives,
was a director or employee of a company which had an interest in or
short position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provision
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and none of the Directors,
the chief executives of the Company nor their respective associates
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required (a)
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (b) to be entered in the register maintained
by the Company, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the
Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors or their respective associates was interested
in any business apart from the Group's businesses, which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group's
business as at the date of this report.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

So far as the Directors and chief executives of the Company are
aware, as at 31 December 2023 and the date of this report, the
following persons had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange:

As at 31 December 2023

BB RO AR 4y v ey B A R B o e
Z R e R
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As at the date of this report

R-B-=F+=-A=+—H RAHER B
Percentage of Percentage of
Number of  issued share Number of  issued share
shares of the capital of  shares of the capital of  Long or
Name Capacity Company held  the Company Company held the Company  short position
EERAT {EARAT
B N ERITREA  FEALHE ERTRAK
BE/ BB 57 REE Aotk ROEE ok HEIXE
Landing International Beneficial Owner 1,481,567,297 35.06% 1,481,567,297 29.21%  Long
Limited (“LIL") (Note 1) (Note 1)
ESERERAR EnEAA CGEXD) (iEAD) HeE
([ERER])
Ms. Xu Ning (“Ms. Xu") Interest of spouse 1,481,567,297 35.06% 1,481,567,297 29.21% Long
rrat((get)) fl B (Note 1) (Note 1) HE
(BFzE1) CGEXD)
Wealth Millennium Limited ~ Beneficial Owner 704,374,800 16.67% 704,374,800 13.89% Long
("Wealth Millennium")
Wealth Millennium Limited Ex#EE A (Note 2) (Note 2) 45~)
([Wealth Millennium]) (Bf3E2) (B3E2)
Ms. Lam Pauline (“Ms Lam”)  Held by controlled 704,374,800 16.67% 704,374,800 13.89% Long
MEEL T ([Mzt]) corporation
iz %'JZ’& A (Note 2) (Note 2) ge
(BzE2) (B3 2)
Beneficial Owner 206,559,200 4.88% 206,559,200 407% Long
EnEEA (Note 2) (Note 2) 452)
(BfFzE2) (Bff3E2)
Resplendence Investment ~ Beneficial Owner — — 845,250,000 16.67% Long
Development Limited EnBEAA (Note 3) HE
REREERER AR (PfF3E3)
Tinmark Development Held by controlled 138,283,200 3.27% 138,283,200 2.73%  Long
Limited (“Tinmark") corporation (Note 4) (Note 4) 135
Tinmark Development BigelPA/NCIES V<) (PFit3E4) (PiH5E4)
Limited ([ Tinmark )
Beneficial Owner 79,201,200 1.87% 79,201,200 1.56% Long
EnEBA (Note 4) (Note 4) 45~)
(BizE4) (s 4)
Mr. Yao Jianhui (“Mr. Yao"”) ~ Held by controlled 217,484,400 5.14% 217,484,400 4.29%  Long
ks ([ k£ ) corporatlon (Note 5) (Note 5) 45°)
FTiEsl 2 RAFA (ER) (Bft3E5)
Beneficial Owner 4,425,600 0.1% 4,425,600 0.09% Long
EmEEA (Note 5) (Note 5) ay)
(FF3ES5) (BI3ES5)
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Notes:

1. LIL, incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, whose entire issued share
capital is held by Yang Zhihui ("Dr. Yang”). Dr. Yang is interested in
1,481,567,297 shares of the Company. Ms. Xu is the spouse of Dr. Yang.
Under the SFO, Ms. Xu is deemed to be interested in the same number of
shares in which Dr. Yang is interested in.

2. Wealth Millennium, whose entire issued share capital is held by Ms. Lam,
is interested in 704,374,800 shares of the Company. Together with the
206,559,200 shares of the Company beneficially owned by Ms. Lam, Ms. Lam
is deemed to be interested in a total of 910,934,000 shares of the Company,
representing approximately 21.55% and 17.96% of the total number of issued
shares of the Company as at 31 December 2023 and the date of this report,
respectively.

3. Resplendence Investment Development Limited, whose entire issued share
capital is held by Ms. Zhang Tingting, is interested in 845,250,000 shares of
the Company.

4. Tinmark, through its owned subsidiaries, holds 138,283,200 shares of the
Company. Together with 79,201,200 shares of the Company beneficially
owned by Tinmark, representing approximately 5.14% and 4.29% of the total
number of issued shares of the Company as at 31 December 2023 and the
date of this report, respectively.

&, Tinmark, is a controlled corporation wholly owned by Mr. Yao, which is
interested in 217,484,400 shares of the Company. Together with the 4,425,600
shares of the Company beneficially owned by Mr. Yao, Mr. Yao is deemed to
be interested in a total of 221,910,000 shares of the Company, representing
approximately 5.25% and 4.38% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2023 and the date of this report, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023 and up to the date
of this report, there was no other person know to the Directors and
chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of, the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
that all of the independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

No disclosure was required for the connected transaction(s), if any,
according to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the Year.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of any of listed securities
of the Company by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the
Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for approximately 11% of the annual revenue and
purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers represented
less than approximately 36% of the Group's total purchases. The
sale to the largest customer represented approximately 3% of the
annual revenue and purchase from the largest supplier represented
approximately 12% of the annual purchase. None of the Directors
or any of their associates or any shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group's five
largest customers and suppliers.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Information on the retirement benefits schemes of the Group are set
out in note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements.
EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set by the
management of the Group on the basis of their merit, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are considered and reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

70 SHIN HWA WORLD LIMITED ##% H: 54 FRA F

B 2822 5%
RAFE - RIEETRRNFE14AE - BATLE
BR (WA EHKE -

B - R B B R R

BEAFE AR ASAERMER R R RS
B HESEEEAARR MRS -
BHEH

REREAEET LT A T ERARR B EEX
FRERBOEBCERERITBREREBZA
#J o

EREP LR

AEER  AERERATP ZHEREFER
B;RI1% - MAEERAHEREGRBARE
EAREERBARELIND36% - RATEP 2
EREFEREN3% MEARER L BER
HFEEBEEN12% HEEFTAEAREFZ
BEATHEABRR(BESMRARARFE
BITRATHREBEHER) RAKRERRE
P R ERE A T B

B A B

ERAERERRERNE ZERBEREGE T
MARMTE2.4 -

i R

AEBEEZHMBERIAAKEEREERE
BEZIHE - BERENMHIE °

BEEZFMIAFTHEESREARRIZES
8 BAARREAIELBN GG BIBRE
ReARat o



EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during the Year
or subsisted at the end of the year are set out below:

Share Option Schemes
2020 Share Option Scheme

A share option scheme (the “2020 Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted by the Shareholders. It became effective on 17 September
2020 and was terminated upon the adoption of the new share option
scheme of the Company (the “2023 Share Option Scheme”) by the
Shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 20 June 2023. A
summary of the principal terms of the 2020 Share Option Scheme is
set out as follows:

(@) Purpose

The purpose of the 2020 Share Option Scheme is to reward
the participants who have contributed or will contribute to
the Group and to encourage the participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the
benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

(b) Participants

The participants of the 2020 Share Option Scheme comprise
of any Directors (including executive Directors, non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors) and
employees of the Group, any director or employee of a
company or entity in which the Group has invested in and any
advisors (professional or otherwise), consultants, distributors,
contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business partners,
joint venture business partners, promoters, any director or
employee of any service providers of any member of the Group
who the Board considers, in its sole discretion, have contributed
to or will contribute to the Group.
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Total number of shares available for issue

The maximum number of shares in respect of which share
options may be granted under the 2020 Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue as at the
date of approval of the 2020 Share Option Scheme. Options
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the 2020 Share Option
Scheme and (as the case may be) such other share option
schemes of the Company under which such options are granted
shall not be counted for the purpose of calculating whether the
abovementioned scheme mandate limit has been exceeded.

The total number of shares available for issue under the 2020
Share Option Scheme is 352,187,751 shares, representing 8.3%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant under the
2020 Share Option Scheme (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not (when
aggregated with any shares subject to options granted during
such period under any other share option schemes of the
Company other than those options granted pursuant to specific
approval by the shareholders in a general meeting) exceed 1%
of the shares in issue for the time being.

Any further grant of options to a participant would result in
the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and to be granted to such person (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in the 12-month period up
to and including the date of such further grant representing
in aggregate over 1% of the shares in issue, such further grant
must be separately approved by shareholders in general
meeting with such participant and his associates abstaining
from voting, and all other requirements prescribed under the
Listing Rules.
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Maximum entitlement of each participant who is a connected
person

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options already granted and to be granted
(including options exercised, cancelled or outstanding) under
the 2020 Share Option Scheme to each participant who is an
Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder (as such
term as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company, or any
of their respective associates, in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 0.1% of the shares in issue on the date of such grant and
the aggregate value based on the closing price of shares on the
date of such grant shall not exceed HK$5,000,000.

Any further grant of options in excess of the above-mentioned
limit shall be approved by the shareholders with all connected
persons of the Company abstaining from voting in favour at
such general meeting.

Period with which the shares must be taken up under an
option

The period to be determined and notified by the Board to the
grantee at the time of making an offer which shall not expire
later than 10 years from the date of grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

The 2020 Share Option Scheme does not specify a minimum
period for which an option must be held nor a performance
target which must be achieved before an option can be
exercised. However, the rules of the 2020 Share Option Scheme
provide that the Board may determine, at its discretion, such
term(s) on the grant of an option, which decision may vary on a
case by case basis.
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Amount payable upon acceptance of the option and the
period within which payment must be made

An offer shall remain open for acceptance by the participant
concerned for a period of 28 days from the date of grant
provided that no such offer shall be open for acceptance after
the expiry of the option period or after the 2020 Share Option
Scheme is terminated or after the participant has ceased to
be a participant. An option shall be regarded as having been
accepted when the Company receives from the grantee the
duplicate of the offer letter, comprising acceptance of the offer,
duly signed by the grantee together with a remittance in favour
of the Company of HK$1.00 as consideration for the grant of
option. Such remittance is not refundable in any circumstances.

Basis of determining the subscription price of the options

The subscription price shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion but in any event shall not be less than the
highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant which must be a Business Day; (ii) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five Business Days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the shares.

Remaining life of the 2020 Share Option Scheme

The 2020 Share Option Scheme became effective on 17
September 2020 and was terminated on 20 June 2023.

No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed

under the 2020 Share Option Scheme before its termination.

Therefore, as of 1 January 2023 and up to the termination date of the

2020 Share Option Scheme, the number of options available for grant
remained at 352,187,751.

74

SHIN HWA WORLD LIMITED #5654 FR A #]

EARBRESACTHNESERAFEHTRHN
SABR

EH@RELAREF28RKATTHERS
HEEEG ERBREREERK T
TEBEREFSIRLIABZ /\%TEP_&
SEER  BHTBRIHREN - WAQ
BREARAZBR %Zxﬁu%m&%x
%) BESNTARREN.00BTIERER
BEERE  BONRRAEER - B
RBEEMAER THRE -

() EBREIBENECEE
RECHESSUAERNIEET - HE
B UKEIRNE fﬁBATﬁlJXIEZE—m% (i) B%
NERTBRH(EARLESERA) 2 WMEUA
BT AERMEE BE)  (VRHEE
&&HjEIHHHIJMIM%EIZ$iﬁH&m B (A
BEXPTEMmERIEE RZE) » Ki)RHE
R

() Z=E-EFERETEIZETHR
:gigigﬁﬂxﬁég‘f% —7—7qzj_laﬂ
:+EI%M:°

ME_T_TEBRETZE TN 2BRER

RIERTEER D - 1T - FESHRRL

At - Rz =F—A—HREE-_FT-FTF

E%W%Eﬁ%%&t HE - ATER E’Jﬁﬁﬁx%%ﬁ B4
$352,187,75117 o



2023 Share Option Scheme

To align with the amendments to Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules

relating to share schemes which came into effect on 1 January 2023,
the 2023 Share Option Scheme was adopted by the Shareholders
and it became effective on 20 June 2023. A summary of the principal
terms of the 2023 Share Option Scheme is set out as follows:

(a)

Purpose

The purpose of the 2023 Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentive and/or reward to Eligible Persons (as defined below)
for their contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the
interests of, the Group.

Eligible Persons

The eligible persons of the 2023 Share Option Scheme (“Eligible
Persons”) comprise of (i) any director (including independent
non-executive Director) and employee (whether full time or part
time) of the Company or the Group who at the sole discretion
of the Board has contributed or will contribute to the Group
(“Employee Participant”); (ii) any director and employee of the
holding companies, fellow subsidiaries or associated companies
of the Company (“Related Entity Participants”); and (iii) any
person, being a natural person or corporate entity (as the case
may be) providing services to the Group on a continuing and
recurring basis in its ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group, the grant of share options to whom is in the interests
of the long-term growth of the Group as determined by the
Board, namely: (i) any person providing advisory services and/
or consultancy services to the Group after stepping down from
any employment or director position with the Group; and (ii) any
person providing, among others, advisory services, consultancy
services, sales and marketing services, technology services
and/or administrative services to the Group as consultants,
independent contractors or agents where the continuity and
frequency of their services are akin to those of employees;
but, for the avoidance of doubt, excluding (i) placing agents or
financial advisers providing advisory services for fundraising,
mergers or acquisitions of the Company or its subsidiaries, and
(i) professional service providers such as the auditors or valuers
who provide assurance or are required to perform their services

"

with impartiality and objectivity (the “Service Provider(s)”).
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Maximum number of Shares

The total number of Shares which may be issued in respect
of all options and awards to be granted under the 2023 Share
Option Scheme and any other schemes of the Company (the
“Scheme Mandate Limit”) must not in aggregate exceed 10%
(or such other percentage which may be specified by the Stock
Exchange from time to time) of the total number of Shares in
issue as at the adoption date or the relevant date of approval
of the refreshment of the Scheme Mandate Limit. Within the
Scheme Mandate Limit, the number of Shares which may be
issued in respect of all options and awards to be granted to
the Service Providers under the 2023 Share Option Scheme
and any other schemes of the Company (the “Service Provider
Sublimit”) must not in aggregate exceed 1% of the total number
of Shares in issue as at the adoption date or the relevant date of
approval of the refreshment of the Service Provider Sublimit.

For the purposes of calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit
and the Service Provider Sublimit, Shares which are the subject
matter of any options or awards that have already lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the relevant share scheme(s) of
the Company will not be regarded as utilised.

The total number of Shares available for issue under the 2023
Share Option Scheme is 422,625,231 Shares (in which 42,262,523
Shares representing approximately 0.83% of the issued share
capital is for Service Provider), representing approximately 8.3%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
annual report.

Grant of Share Options

An offer shall be made to an Eligible Person in writing in such
form as the Board may from time to time determine requiring
the Eligible Person to undertake to hold the share option on
the terms on which it is to be granted and to be bound by the
provisions of the 2023 Share Option Scheme and shall remain
open for acceptance by the Eligible Person to whom an offer
is made for a period as specified in the letter of offer, by which
the Eligible Person must accept the offer or be deemed to
have declined it, provided that no such offer shall be opened
for acceptance after the share option period or after the 2023
Share Option Scheme has been terminated in accordance with
the provisions of the 2023 Share Option Scheme or after the
Eligible Person to whom the offer is made has ceased to be an
Eligible Person.
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The Board may at its absolute discretion specify such
conditions as it thinks fit when making an offer to an Eligible
Person (including, without limitation, as to any performance
criteria which must be satisfied by the Eligible Person and/
or the Company and/or its subsidiaries before a share option
may be exercised), provided that such conditions shall not be
inconsistent with any other terms and conditions of the 2023
Share Option Scheme or the relevant requirements under
applicable laws or the Listing Rules.

An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted and the share
option to which the offer relates shall be deemed to have been
granted and to have taken effect when the Company receives
the duplicate of the offer letter comprising acceptance of the
offer duly signed by the grantee with the number of Shares in
respect of which the offer is accepted clearly stated therein,
no option price will be payable upon the acceptance of the
offer. Any offer may be accepted in respect of all or less than
the number of Shares in respect of which it is offered provided
that it is accepted in respect of a board lot for dealing in Shares
on the Stock Exchange or an integral multiple thereof. To the
extent that an offer is not accepted within the time stated in
the offer for that purpose, it will be deemed to have been
irrevocably declined and upon which, the subject share options
with respect to the declined offer will be lapsed and will not
be utilised for the purpose of calculating the Scheme Mandate
Limit and the Service Provider Sublimit.

Vesting of Share Options

The share options to be granted under the 2023 Share Option
Scheme shall be subject to a minimum vesting period of 12
months during which unvested share options shall not become
vested and exercisable. Any shorter vesting period in respect
of share options granted to Employees Participants must be
approved by the Board and/or the remuneration committee
of the Company (for share options granted to the Directors or
senior managers) at the Directors’ discretion, provided that such
grantee(s) has been specifically identified by the Board before
granting such approval. The specific circumstances giving rise
to a shorter vesting period are as follows:

(i) grants of “make whole” share options to new Employee
Participants to replace share awards or share options
such Employee Participants forfeited when leaving their
previous employers;

(i) grants to an Employee Participant whose employment
is terminated due to death or disability or event of force

majeure;
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(i) grants of share options which are subject to the fulfilment
of performance targets pursuant to the 2023 Share Option
Scheme;

(iv) grants of share options that are made in batches during
a year due to administrative or compliance requirements
which may be subject to any changes made to the
applicable laws, regulations and rules in the jurisdictions
which the Employee Participants and the Group are
subject to and not connected with the performance of
the relevant Employee Participant, which include share
options that should have been granted earlier if not for
such administrative or compliance requirements but had
to wait for subsequent batch, in which case the vesting
date may be adjusted to take account of the time from
which the share options would have been granted if not
for such administrative or compliance requirements, which
allows flexibility for the Company to reward Employee
Participants in case of delays due to administrative
or compliance requirements. In the event of any
administrative or compliance requirements which give rise
to a shorter vesting period of the share options granted to
any Employee Participant, the Company will make further
announcement as and when appropriate;

(v)  grants of share options with a mixed vesting schedule
such that the share options vest evenly over a period of 12

months;

(vi)  grants of share options with a total vesting and holding
period of more than 12 months; or

(vii) the remuneration committee of the Company is of the
view that a shorter vesting period is appropriate and
serves the purpose of the 2023 Share Option Scheme.

Basis of determining the exercise price of Share Options

The exercise price of any particular share option granted under
the 2023 Share Option Scheme shall be a price determined by
the Board and notified to an Eligible Person, and shall be at
least the higher of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the offer date,
which must be a Business Day; and (i) the average closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the
offer date. Where a share option is to be granted, the date of
the Board meeting at which the grant was proposed shall be
taken to be the offer date for such share option.
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Maximum entitlements to each Eligible Person and Share
Options granted to certain connected persons

No share option shall be granted to any Eligible Person
(“Relevant Eligible Person”), if it would result in the number of
Relevant Shares exceeding 1% (or such other percentage which
may be specified by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange from time
to time) of the total number of Shares in issue at the relevant
time of grant, unless (1) such grant has been duly approved, in
the manner prescribed by the relevant provisions of Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules, by resolution of the Shareholders in general
meeting, at which the Relevant Eligible Person and his/her close
associates (or his/her associates if the Relevant Eligible Person
is a connected person) shall abstain from voting; and all other
requirement prescribed under the Listing Rules.

“Relevant Shares” means Shares issued and to be issued in
respect of all options and award shares granted (excluding any
options or award shares lapsed) under all share schemes of the
Company to the relevant grantee in the 12-month period (or
such other time period as may be specified by the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange from time to time) up to and including the offer
date of the relevant share option referred hereto.

The grant of share options to a Director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company (or any of their
respective associates) requires the approval of the independent
non-executive Directors (excluding any independent non-
executive Director who is a prospective grantee of the share
option). Where a share option is to be granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive Director (or any
of their respective associates), and the grant will result in the
number of the Relevant Shares exceeding 0.1% (or such other
percentage which may be specified by the Stock Exchange
from time to time) of the total number of Shares in issue at the
relevant time of grant and such grant shall not be valid unless
the relevant grantee, his/her associates and all core connected
persons shall abstain from voting (except that a connected
person may vote against the resolution if his/her intention to do
so has been stated in the circular required to be issued pursuant
to the Listing Rules); and all other requirement prescribed under
the Listing Rules.

(9)
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(h)  Period of the 2023 Share Option Scheme

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general
meeting or by the Board, the 2023 Share Option Scheme
shall be valid and effective for a period to be determined and
notified by the Board to the grantee during which the share
option may be exercised and in any event shall not be more
than 10 years commencing on the date on which the offer in
relation to such share option is deemed to have been accepted
in accordance with the terms of the 2023 Share Option Scheme
and expiring on the last day of the ten-year-period.

During the Year, no share options has been granted, exercised,
cancelled, or lapsed under the 2023 Share Option Scheme since its
adoption.

Therefore, as of its adoption date and up to 31 December 2023, the
number of options available for grant under the 2023 Share Option
Scheme remained at 422,625,231.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws, or
the laws in Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Board confirms that the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required under
the Listing Rules throughout the Year.

DONATIONS

The Group made charitable or other donation of approximately
HK$2,727,000 during the Year.

80 SHIN HWA WORLD LIMITED ##% H: 54 FR A

(h =T =FBEREFTHH

BRIEARARNBRASHREFTSRFR L
S —E_—FBEREAIBNESTEE
T AE AR AR BBEITERRLER -
HEBRRETENEERERERE-F
= FBRE SRR ENR AT B
MERES  ERWNATFEBTE I
ARG T FHERE—XEW °

HEAFE HME_TS_=-FEREEET
ZEREEBERMNBMEC R  17F &

A RERPBHEE T _=F1+=_A4
=t+—H AT =FEREERERN
BERCAE S B 435 422,625,231 17 °

15 Sl i L

BRRABERELANLERRBLIEERE
ME > BEARBAETRERARRIZLA
BEHMB -

JE 5 R B A

REARRAIAFAESZENRAESAA
EEERABARANBEAFEERFRESR
ZEMRAREARFHRE

sk

AEERBEAFECIFHEZHEMIBIRY
2,727,000 87T °



AUDITOR

Moore CPA Limited (“Moore HK") was appointed as the auditor of
the Company to fill the vacancy following the resignation of Zenith
CPA Limited as the auditor of the Company on 28 November 2023.
The Company's consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2023 were audited by Moore HK, and the Company's
consolidated financial statements for the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2022 were audited by Zenith CPA Limited. Save for the
above, there were no other changes in the Company's auditor in the
past three years.

Moore HK shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
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appointment in the forthcoming annual general meeting of the REIFEERLEENRS LEMF -
Company.

On behalf of the Board REESS

Chan Mee Sze BRER

Acting Chairperson and Executive Director ERTERPTEE

Hong Kong, 27 March 2024

BB —E-WME=ZA-++H

Annual Report 2023 £t 81



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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| MOORE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SHIN HWA WORLD LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda with
limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shin Hwa
World Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 91 to 218, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

EMPHASIS OF MATTER
The Group's Cash Incident

We draw attention to note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements, which describes the Group's cash incident (the “Cash
Incident”). As at the reporting date, KRW13,400,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$80,762,000) of cash has been seized and retained by the Jeju
Special Self-Governing Provincial Police Agency of Korea until the
investigation can be recommenced and completed after further
evidence is found. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
HEETEE

CESHENAE Y

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Rz BT NNEERRENSEE

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment of the
business for development and operation of the integrated leisure
and entertainment resort operated in Jeju Shinhwa World (the
“Integrated Resort Development Business”)
RENSFEARNEECRRERQREGERARREEBRN XL (F
EERBRRERER ) 2YWE BERREZBETG

Refer to Notes 3 and 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

LB E R ERERAEIR 14

The Group has been developing the Integrated Resort Development
Business, which includes hotels and theme park operated in Jeju
Shinhwa World. As of 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of
the property, plant and equipment related to the Integrated Resort
Development Business amounted to HK$6,819,078,000 which mainly
included hotels and theme park.

EEELERECERBREREYR  ETEERNEMNMELTEREEL
BERTELE -R_TB_=F+_A=1+—H SeEREZER¥%
B2W%  BERREZREER6,819,07800087T - EHEERHE
BIERFEAER -

In determining whether property, plant and equipment related to the
Integrated Resort Development Business were impaired, it required
an estimation of the fair value less cost of disposal of the relevant
assets. The fair value less cost of disposal was determined by the
management with reference to the market value.

ErARSAEREEREB VR  BELRBAESRER - A
AAFEERLEEHEBEEZLKE - ERELETMEEEATEER

Management engaged an external valuer to assist in performing an
impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment related to
the Integrated Resort Development Business.
ERERBIDEEMBPHETERGSEBRREREE WX - B
Pe Ko st 2 BB R ©

We focused on this area due to the significance of the carrying amount
of the property, plant and equipment related to the Integrated Resort
Development Business in the consolidated statement of financial
position and significant judgements required by management in
assessing if impairment indicators were existed at the date of the
consolidated statement of financial position.

HAEINLER  REERGAERRERER WX - BE KK
BZRAEHFESMBRARKEEE - N LEEENGRE MBI
= B ERERE FERFEHERHE -

Our procedures in relation to the carrying
value of property, plant and equipment
related to Integrated Resort Development
Business included:
EMBGREEBRERREE ZNE BERR
RREEZEFERE

— Understanding and evaluating the
Group's procedures regarding the
identification of sources of information
relevant to impairment indicators;
TR BEEE#HMEEREER
RERIRRT

— Evaluating management’s policy in
determining the estimated useful life
and depreciation;

A EREEE M A EAFHRTE
LR

—  Assessing the competency, objectivity
and independence of the external
valuer engaged by management, and
discussing with the external valuer
about their scope of work, and assessing
the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology and assumptions used;
and
FHEE R AN L ER 2 B 15 -
BERE REMN - EINEREERD L1
Fr TSR ETN W  LAAEMAZ
HETERBRESKRE + &

—  Checking relevant disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

BERR A MBS HREA 2 HRRRE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
HEETEE

5 7 A% S H e

ToH i 2 it = 0 (4

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Rz BT NNEERRENSEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill and other intangible assets of
the Gaming Business cash generating unit (the “Gaming CGU")
BEXBERSELEVCHERABEREE RENE

Refer to Notes 3 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

ELEG A EREAEIRI7

The Group recognised impairment loss of HK$12,943,000 on the
other intangible assets of the Gaming CGU, during the year ended
31 December 2023. As at 31 December 2023, carrying amounts of
goodwill and other intangible assets of the Gaming CGU amounted to
HK$134,218,000.

BHE_Z_=_F+_A=+—HILFE " SEEE®EIRSETEEESE
ReEL B HMBNEE ZRERER12943,0008T c R=F
“EFTZA=T—R AHEBREBReESL SRR AERA
fth 2 & 7 2 BREE /3 134,218,000 8 7T °

In determining whether goodwill and other intangible assets of the
Gaming CGU were impaired, it required an estimation of the value-
in-use of the relevant assets. The value in use was determined by
the management based on the five-year profit forecast of this cash
generating unit discounted to its present value.
Eﬁéﬁééﬁiﬁm%Fﬁé?i%ﬁﬁ%ﬁZPﬁ@&H@E%EF%éE;FJZ
B FEHRBEECEREELETHT EREEDNHEREER
)ﬁ’é\litfﬁﬁ?iﬁuﬂﬁfﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁzﬁixmf'ﬁ‘ﬁm@m g

Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment on goodwill and
other intangible assets the Gaming CGU
included:

R EREETREYRBRSELSENM
MeEBERAMBELEEZREFGZRFE
&

— Evaluating management’s five-year
approved cash flow forecast;
FEEEECAFHSHAERSRETR
Al

—  Assessing the competency, objectivity
and independence of the external valuer
engaged by management;
FHGE TR B TS A S BB (4 (B A 2 B A%
BEILE MBI

—  Discussing with the external valuer about
their scope of work, and evaluating
the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology used;

BN EM AR EF 2 TIESRETT
i WAHERTA 2 MEERER ?E'-? ;

— Assessing the reasonableness of the
key assumptions used by the external
valuer and management such as
revenue growth rate, terminal growth
rate and discount rate by comparing
these assumptions against historical
information, relevant market data and
industry research;

AN EM R EREEMA FER
RELAE  MRHERE  REER
KRB E - HEREZERREBE
ﬁﬂ HEMSBBERITRATETL
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
HEETEE

ToH i 2 it = 0 (4

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Rz BT NNEERRENSEE

Management engaged an external valuer to assist in performing an
impairment assessment on the goodwill and other intangible assets of
the Gaming CGU using a value-in-use calculation.
AE%J"‘iﬂqﬁl\*ﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬂﬁzﬁ%ﬁbﬁuﬁﬁFE#éjréﬁiﬁ CRBHREES
B EmENEMELEEEITRERE -

We identified impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets
of the Gaming CGU as a key audit matter due to the significant
management judgements involved in the underlying assumptions
of the impairment assessment, including the revenue growth rate,
terminal growth rate and discount rate.
HREREFHEHBRRTILEEENEAHE  BEKaEER
o BRBBRERERE  HRABER %ﬂ‘“fﬁiﬁi VAP N
Hiv B EEREMNS @ HMARAABEREZER -

—  Testing the arithmetical accuracy on the
value-in-use calculation of the Gaming
CGU; and
AABEEBReEELEMEREMER
B2 EMBHEE &

—  Evaluating the potential impact of the
impairment assessment based on the
possible changes of key assumptions
used in the valuation model.
RBEEREMARREERRKR 2 ATRE
FHERER L 2 B E -

— Performing a retrospective review of
management’s estimation process in the
prior year; and
HERMFRE 2 EBEMRTE
=R R

1TEH

—  Checking relevant disclosures in the
financial statements.

BERPBREAN 2 ABEHE -

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022 were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 30 March
2023.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

®  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence

and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters

that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and

where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards

applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Moore CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Chu Mei Yue, Michelle

Practising Certificate Number: P05826
Hong Kong

27 March 2024

90 SHIN HWA WORLD LIMITED ##k 1t 5A BRA 7]

B B i g AR S B R ORI 2 B
1L (%)

RECZZEQRBZERT WA EHL
SEHAAEGAMBRRZIBTMERAE
2 - AfEBKERETEHE - RAOEZBEH
TR ZEFEE  RIDERIERTIAFA
MEEAEEE ERBRFEEBERLT  HE
ERMAERMBETEBRFTRER ZA@E
RBBELEZARNE  HPVRETERERS
RIBBZER -

RESHEESTHMEEMERAT
DA

RE

2SR IRERS - PO5826

e

—E-NF=ZA=-1++tH



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AR E s

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #iZE — T - =F +-A=+—HILFE

2023 2022
—Eo=F —E_F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BaE FET FHT
REVENUE Y= 5 1,036,268 1,386,800
Cost of properties and inventories sold B HEMEREFE Z KA 7 (132,700) (240,538)
Other income and gains, net HEmWA R - FEE 6 20,222 20,985
Gaming duties and other related taxes  HF 1 R E AR AT E (10,703) (3,903)
Amortisation and depreciation B NITE (295,192) (490,330)
Employee benefit expenses EEREHNER (535,150) (469,015)
Other operating expenses HEipeiEE A (543,346) (470,966)
Finance costs, net BITSA A - JR58 8 (103,078) (98,651)
Fair value gains on investment REMFE 2 AT EERE  FHE
properties, net 63,726 76,122
Impairment of other intangible assets H b & E R E (12,943) (8,735)
(Impairment)/reversal of impairment of ~ FEURE 5 K18 & E A fE R IE
trade and other receivables, net BB CRE), BR - F58 (9,852) 63,182
LOSS BEFORE TAX BB AEE 7 (522,748) (235,049)
Income tax credit FTiSHif e 11 309 18,138
LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE B ATRBEEAELEESE
TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT (522,439) (216,911)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ®BAREEAELERER
OWNERS OF THE PARENT 13
Basic HK HK(12.36) cents  HK(5.13) cents
A4l AL
Diluted e HK(12.36) cents  HK(5.13) cents
AL AL
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

AR A AT AR R
For the year ended 31 December 2023 & E — T -=F+-A=+—HBILFE
2023 2022
—EB=F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FEBR (522,439) (216,911
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Htt2HEEE
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that AR 8 BT EX 5 E
may be reclassified to profit or loss Ba . Bt 2 H
in subsequent periods: YWoas (EHE) -
Exchange differences on translation BEBINRBZERZR
of foreign operations (194,109) (476,849)
Release of exchange reserve upon RHN I N B A T R R Bk 2
deregistration of foreign subsidiaries b 5 = 783
Net other comprehensive loss AR HB M ESR D EE
that may be reclassified to profit or loss in @ 2 M 2H
subsequent periods Ei8FRE (194,109) (476,066)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that will  ##1& R A 1£ BRI E 3157 25 2
not be reclassified to profit or loss B2 Bt 2 H
in subsequent periods: Yeas < (E1E) -
Revaluation of property, plant and RER IR EYERER
equipment upon transfer to investment M - RE KRR REE
properties, net 14,303 584
Deferred tax debited to MEEBHFETR
asset revaluation reserve ZIRIERIA (1,004) 79
Remeasurements of employee B EREERNER
benefit obligations (8,662) 3,611
Equity investments designated at fair value 3§ EBIEAFEE AHA
through other comprehensive income: HN G RIERE -
Changes in fair value NEBEZED) 249 (4,091)
Net other comprehensive income BrerEeifER »EE
that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 185 2 H {2 E RS F 58
in subsequent periods 4,886 25
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FEAEMEHEER -
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX MBRBLIR (189,223) (476,041)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR BARERARGEERE
THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO B84 %
OWNERS OF THE PARENT (711,662) (692,952)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

i B AR LA

As at 31 December 2023 W=Z==F+=-A=+—8H

2023 2022
—EC-=F —E_F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BfaE FET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BEREZE 14 7,276,526 7,747,298
Investment properties WEME 15 808,085 718,393
Right-of-use assets FREEE 16(a) 4,363 1,541
Goodwill and other intangible assets EENEMELEE 17 136,838 154,387
Equity investments designated at BERRAFEESARMD
fair value through other comprehensive 225 2 IR HEILE
income 18 1,400 13,866
Prepayments, trade and other TERFRIE - BB S RIE R
receivables H b e Y 5k08 19 70,596 104,435
Restricted cash X PR HIR % 23 61,174 =
Total non-current assets MBI EELE 8,358,982 8,739,920
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Properties under development BRAME 20 104,764 107,536
Completed properties for sale CASNIDEIES 21 345,807 456,976
Inventories 3 22 56,657 56,918
Prepayments, trade and other AR © BUE HRIE R
receivables H A fE IR 19 68,757 127,646
Tax recoverable Al E R IE 58 812
Restricted cash ZMRHIRE 23 = 62,793
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkReEED 23 266,043 503,421
Total current assets MBEERE 842,086 1,316,102
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and other payables FERE 5508 R E b e IR 24 310,923 323,397
Interest-bearing bank borrowing STERITEE 25 - 31,937
Lease liabilities HEAE 16(b) 1,623 986
Tax payable R HIR 7 79
Total current liabilities mEBERE 312,553 356,399
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 529,533 959,703
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BREERRBAE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 8,888,515 9,699,623
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
fo B B IR DL A

As at 31 December 2023 RZZE_=F+=-A=+—H

2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
fizE FH7 T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Trade and other payables FERTE 5518 R H A FE T 5RIB 24 18,417 12,783
Interest-bearing bank borrowing FHEIRITIEE 25 1,417,489 1,524,213
Lease liabilities HEAE 16(b) 2,943 762
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFHIEEE 26 43,945 44,482
Total non-current liabilities JEMB B EETE 1,482,794 1,582,240
Net assets BEEFE 7,405,721 8,117,383
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners BRREE AEGER
of the parent
Share capital fig A 27 42,263 42,263
Reserves 1 28 7,363,458 8,075,120
Total equity e 7,405,721 8,117,383
Chan Mee Sze Wong Hoi Po
RER =54
Acting Chairperson and Executive Director Executive Director
EREFEFNTESE HITEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

B A Wi S B 72

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BiE =T ==

FH-A=t—HLEE

Reserve
1]
Share Other Accumulated Total
capital reserves losses equity
[EN Hitbfi 25t ER ol £
(Note 27) (Note 28) (Note 28)
(&£ 27) (FffzE 28) (FifzE 28)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TER TER
At 1 January 2023 R-E-=%-A-H 42,263 16,303,461 (8,228,341) 8,117,383
Loss for the year EEER - - (522,439) (522,439)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year: ~ FEEMZ2ENRS/(BE) :
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment RERERENERERYE -
upon transfer to investment properties, net SRR E 38 - 14,303 - 14,303
Deferred tax debited to asset revaluation reserve  MWEE SR FEENR ZELEHE - (1,004) = (1,004)
Remeasurements of employee benefit obligation ~ E#i:fEEERHEME = (8,662) = (8,662)
Changes in fair value of equity investments at BATEEFALZERES
fair value through other comprehensive income 2 RIEIRE 2 A FEES - 249 - 249
Exchange differences on translation of BERNEBZERER
foreign operations - (194,109) - (194,109)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEXABELE - (189,223) (522,439) (711,662)
Release of reserve of equity investments RHERTEARATEETA
designated at fair value through other it 2 as 2 R
comprehensive income RERRE FE = 305,150 (305,150) -
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=%+-RA=+-H 42,263 16,419,388* (9,055,930)* 7,405,721
At 1 January 2022 R-E--%-A-H 42,263 16,779,502 (8,011,430) 8,810,335
Loss for the year EEER - = (216,911) (216,911)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year: ~ FEEM 2R/ (BE)
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment RERERENERERYE -
upon transfer to investment properties, net W Rkt 8 - 584 - 584
Deferred tax debited to asset revaluation reserve W EE EERENR 2 BTHIE - 79 = 79
Remeasurements of employee benefit obligation ~ E#i:f EEERHEME = 3,611 = 3611
Changes in fair value of equity investments at BRATEEFARM2ELE
fair value through other comprehensive income ZBRERE N FEEE - (4,091) = (4,091)
Exchange differences on translation of BEBINEBCELZE
foreign operations - (476,849) - (476,849)
Release of exchange reserve upon ELINYNGE: GRS
deregistration of foreign subsidiaries R 2 B X - 783 - 783
Total comprehensive loss for the year FERABRLS = (476,041) (216,911) (692,952)
At 31 December 2022 R-B--%+=-A=1+-A 42,263 16,303 461* (8,228,341)* 8,117,383

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of

HK$7,363,458,000 (2022: HK$8,075,120,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

WWERFEBERERLEGAUBRRARZEE
1 ##%7,363,458,0000 T(Z & = —
8,075,120,000;8 7T ) ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
meBeiER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T ==F+=-A=+—HILFE

2023 2022
—EBC-=E —T-_F
Notes HK$/000 HK$000
fiisE TER TET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Z&X£¥zRERE
Loss before tax BRBLATE R (522,748) (235,049)
Adjustments for: HE
Dividend income from equity investments at RATEEFARMEERGE L
fair value through other comprehensive R & 2 REWA
income 6 (81) (85)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, HENE  BERFEER 2
plant and equipment BB/ () 6 1,406 (88)
Loss on disposal of items of other HEHMENEEEE BB
intangible assets 6 8 -
Amortisation of debt discount {EEREIR S b 1,229 1,411
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ #1% + BiE k& E 2 HTE 7 293,141 488,506
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRREEIE 7 1,403 1,487
Amortisation of other intangible assets HimR & E 8 7 648 337
Impairment of other intangible assets HEtn Ry EERE 7 12,943 8,735
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables, net  [EWE ZFIERERD - F5 7 - (33)
Impairment of gaming receivables, net B RWGIERE  F58 7 10,085 19
Reversal of impairment of other receivables, net — E A EKFURRERE - F5E 7 (233) (63,168)
Reversal of provision for inventories FERERD 7 (767) (1,692)
Fair value gains on investment properties, net REMEZATEERE 58 15 (63,726) (76,122)
Finance costs BIEAAR 8 110,641 100,770
Finance income E I ON 8 (7,563) 2,119
(163,614) 222,909
Decrease in completed properties for sale HFECERMER D 70,684 171,945
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEM,/ B (617) 4,356
Decrease in prepayments, trade and BRRE - BRESTIEREMD
other receivables FEMCHIRR > 89,385 16,028
Decrease in trade and FET'E 5 5RIE K B b 15 3008
other payables g (6,981) (154,992)
Cash generated (used in)/from operations WEEK(A) /R E (11,143) 260,246
Interest received BUH B 7,563 2,119
Interest paid ERFE (110,449) (100,689)
Income tax refunded BREIFER 745 =
Income tax paid ERREH (121) (7,089)
Net cash flows (used in)/from mexB(MA)/MEReRE
operating activities FEE (113,405) 154,587
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HAaBamER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 i ZE — T - =F +-A=+—HILFE

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(i TET TET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES ~ REZEHZHRERE
Dividend received from equity investments BIRERE 2 RE 81 85
Purchase of items of property, plant BEME  HERHKEER
and equipment 14 (23,178) (10,844)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HENE - BERREER
plant and equipment TS IE 2,016 948
Additions of other intangible assets TEEMRVEE 17 (109) (1,672)
Net cash flows used in investing activities REGZBMARSRE TR (21,190) (11,483)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES mmﬁ,ﬁbziﬁ% e
Interest element on lease liabilities HEEEMEHH (192) (81)
New bank borrowing MERITEE - 1,599,963
Repayment of bank borrowing BRETEE (99,205) (2,031,500)
Principal portion of lease payments HENFAREHH 29 (1,406) (1,610)
Net cash flows used in financing activities REEDMARERERRE (100,803) (433,228)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND BeRBESEEYRHDFE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (235,398) (290,124)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FNzRERREEEY
of the year 503,421 820,917
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net SNEEREB L FE R (1,980) (27,372)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END FRZBERBEEEY
OF THE YEAR 266,043 503,421
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERRESENEHR 2N
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances W& MIRTT4 23 235,831 332,514
Non-pledged time deposits with original BERREIMEIR=EAZ
maturity of less than three months EEREHER
when acquired 23 30,212 170,907
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in GEUMBMRARAT RS R
the consolidated statement ReEEYD
of financial position 266,043 503,421
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Shin Hwa World Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued
in Bermuda and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The address of registered office of the Company is located at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda,
and the principal place of business of the Company is located at
Units 1412-1413, 14th Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak
Centre, Nos. 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group is principally engaged in
development and operation of the integrated leisure and
entertainment resort (the “Integrated Resort Development”),
operation of gaming and entertainment facilities (the “Gaming
Business”), and property development (the “Property
Development”).

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

1

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ok 7 S 265 A M

O ] B A 1R

EtRERAT(ERDE ) ARRASE
SAMATEREREFEZBRAR
HRONREBBBEXIABRAGI([BER
FRDEREM - XA ZEFMPHSEEH
it & Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda ' MAR A Z
FEEEMBMNES TFHEEFR 168-200

REEPLBEEBARE14E1412F 1413

FR AEEXTERFERIGLHEEIK
BARREERR((GFEEREBRRE]) &
B MRERE([HERER]) kR
ROMERR]) -

EENBARZER
ARBEEMBRRZFBMAT :

follows:
Place of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
Name registration and business registered share capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
AMAL/ ERR BRTEER/
8 BBy dfRE  AAREERZAIE  FERH
Direct Indirect
Ef A%
Bright House Company Limited Macau Macau Pataca 25,000 - 100%  Investment holding
REARAH . 25,000 2FI7T RERR
Callisto Business Limited British Virgin Islands United States dollars 100% - Investment holding
("US$") 76,470,000
Callisto Business Limited RERNHES 76,470,000 7([ % 7)) REER
Chi Shun Investment (Yangzhou) The People's Republic of China Renminbi (“RMB") - 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited (“Chi Shun")* ("PRC") 400,000,000
(Note i) (Note i)
BERE(GM)BRRE (8R)F PEARLNE(HE]) ARE(TARS]) REHR
GEINGELD) 400,000,0007C
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B 5 A R i

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1 AvREEER(HE)

(continued)

FRMBQR2ER (&)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Place of incorporation/

Issued ordinary/

Percentage of equity

Name registration and business registered share capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
MR/ ERE BRITEER/
L RT3 dMRA  FAREGEREAL  IRER
Direct Indirect
E# 53

Datsun Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Asset holding

KEREFERAT &R 10,000 %7 BERA

Golden House Ventures Limited British Virgin Islands Us$2 - 100%  Marketing

Golden House Ventures Limited EERNAS 2% H

Happy Bay Pte. Ltd. Singapore Singapore dollar - 100%  Investment holding

("SGD") 97,472,000
Happy Bay Pte. Ltd. GiIE 97,472,000 REER
([ #mg))
Landing Entertainment Korea Co., Ltd. ~ South Korea Korean Won 45% 55%  Gaming business
("KRW") 84,560,025,000
Landing Entertainment Korea Co., Ltd.  BJ& 84,560,025,000 5 & BYER
((&8))
Landing Estate Management South Korea KRW100,000,000 = 100%  Residential
Services Co., Ltd. management
Landing Estate Management EE 100,000,000 FxER
Services Co., Ltd.

Landing Jeju Development Co., Ltd. South Korea KRW465,000,000,000 50% 50%  Development,
management,
operation and
lease of facilities for
tourism, commerce,
accommodation
and recreation

ESEMNRER L L 465,000,000,000 &8 ¥R EE HER
BERE  #F
R RREE

Shin Hwa World Management Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$100 100% - Management office

BEtRERERAA &R 10077 ERBZR

Shin Hwa World Resorts Management ~ Hong Kong HK$100 100% - Management office

Limited
BEERREEEARAT &R 10077 ERBZR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o 7 B 5 A R i

1 CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

1 A6 REMER (%)

FEME AR ZER (&)

Place of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
Name registration and business registered share capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
AL/ EmR BRITEER/
L RT3 dMRA  FAREGEZEAL  IRER
Direct Indirect
B Gt
Shinhwa Resorts Philippines Republic of the Philippines Philippine Pesos - 100%  Management office
Development Corporation ("PHP") 10,300,000
Shinhwa Resorts Philippines FEELNE 10,300,000 ERRER
Development Corporation FEERZ
([EREHZR])
Leader Rainbow Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% - Securities Investment
BIABRAH &R 1A BHRE
Rainbow Source Developments Limited  British Virgin Islands US$100 100% - Asset holding
TRERBRAA AERAES 100 (7t BERNA
Yao Zhan Trading Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100% - Property holding
REEHABRAA ABRAES 1%7 NERE

The English name of the company referred to in these consolidated
financial statements represent management'’s best effort to translate
the Chinese name of the company, as no English name has been
registered.

Notei:  These entity is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise
under PRC law.

Note ii: ~ The registered capital of Chi Shun amounted to RMB400,000,000,
of which RMB385,020,000 was paid up as at 31 December 2023.
The Group had the remaining unpaid capital contribution of
RMB14,980,000 as at 31 December 2023.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

100 SHIN HWA WORLD LIMITED #&% it R4 R A 7

MR EAMAXEE  ZEFRUBR
RABIAZ AR Z AN EBNHERER&K
AENHZ AR XAWIEL 28

Mz WEBREBEDEEMEMANEEEDL
.,

MizEi - {3 MM & A B A R ¥ 400,000,000
T ERRZE=F+=A=+—H
2 & W A R #385,020,0007T - R =&
—=F+-A=+—H FTEEHNAX
SEEREAR 14,980,000 7T ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$") and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

These financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2023. A subsidiary
is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
in control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
() the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

2.1

Bz 4 B B

8 e

HZEMBHRROREZEGTMRE(H
BEAAE ) RM 2 BBY RS LR
(BERMBHREER])(BEMETEY
BamEE  BEGHAEAN(EBEE
ADkZEE) BEARGHRAUREE
RAEPIZ WERERE - ZFHH MK
ETT([BT]) 25 - BRAEEBEHN
EBESNRAAEREATRE(T
FBTL) e

REREEXE

ZEMBERRBEARFREKNE R A
(R AEEM)BE_FT_=F1+-A
=T HALEFEZHBEHRE - MEBRRG
AREERIEEEH 2 BERB(REER
HER) BAKERSEREHREE
AERERESAZOHRMEHRENR
TERNAAEEER THRAEENAE
BREVKMATH ZBREEN)ZEZ
FH[EIHRAy - BIESIE S -

—RME - EHRESRREERZBRR
BF L - BEARAERIMEEERINK
BHRAZBFOREIBLERNE - A&
ERFEERTHRAURELR ZENE
SEE—UHBEERER B

() BREHRHEMRRBEBAZAHD
E747 13K

(b) EHMEOLPRELEZEN &
(@ AKEZRRESBHEIIRE -

BB A B AR R 2 B F R s B4
Fl > WA B BT BRER - B
AZXERASERSEGREE LSS
ARR - WHRESR A AR - EEZERIEL
IEEBRABIE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok B B 25 A B

W H

2.1

102

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or accumulated losses,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

SHIN HWA WORLD LIMITED #5654 FR A #]

2.1 HREE(4)

RERBEEEE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs

for the first time for the current year's financial statements.

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are
applicable to the Group are described below:

HKFRS 17 (including

Insurance Contracts

the October 2020 and

February 2020

Amendments to

Amendments to HKAS 1

HKFRS 17)

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets

and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform —

Pillar Two Model Rules

The nature and the impact of the new and revised HKFRSs that
are applicable to the Group are described below:

(a)

Amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to disclose
their material accounting policy information rather than
their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Making Materiality Judgements provide non-mandatory
guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality to
accounting policy disclosures. The Group has disclosed
the material accounting policy information in note 2.4
to the financial statements. The amendments did not
have any impact on the measurement, recognition
or presentation of any items in the Group’s financial
statements.

Bz 4 B B

2.2 Gt BOR KRS 8

REBRNAFEZ T HR A B R IA
TR RSB 2 BB M RELER -

ERRAKE 2 BRI BB Yo E %R
MMEE R EMAIT

BRI HREER
F175%(BIE
“ToTFEFAR
“E-TF-AZ
BB HREER
ZE175(EET))

REAH

RO 1RR  BHHFORE
EHBEE A
EHDEH2RET)

ERGER Bt lhat HES
F85(ER])
ERGER BE-RZELH
F125%(E7T) EERR @B
EEHE
ERGER BB BN E

F125(EF]) XB_HAEL

BRERRAREONHE RGBT EBY
BREEANEE MFEFRMAT -

(@) BEGFERE1RUER])EXRER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined
as monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments
also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. Since the
Group's approach and policy align with the amendments,
the amendments had no impact on the Group's financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction narrow the
scope of the initial recognition exception in HKAS 12 so
that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such
as leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore,
entities are required to recognise a deferred tax asset
(provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a
deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising from
these transactions. These amendments had no impact
on the Group’s financial statements as there were no
transactions fallen within the scope of these amendments
on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented.

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform —
Pillar Two Model Rules introduce a mandatory temporary
exception from the recognition and disclosure of deferred
taxes arising from the implementation of the Pillar Two
model rules published by the Organisation for Economic
Co-operation and Development. The amendments also
introduce disclosure requirements for the affected entities
to help users of the financial statements better understand
the entities’ exposure to Pillar Two income taxes,
including the disclosure of current tax related to Pillar
Two income taxes separately in the periods when Pillar
Two legislation is effective and the disclosure of known
or reasonably estimable information of their exposure to
Pillar Two income taxes in periods in which the legislation
is enacted or substantively enacted but not yet in effect.
Since the Group did not fall within the scope of the Pillar
Two model rules, the amendments did not have any
impact to the Group.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate orJoint Venture®

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale
and Leaseback’

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current
(the “2020 Amendments”) "*

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants
(the “2022 Amendments”) -*

Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements '

and Amendments to
HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability ?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

S No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

4 As a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022 Amendments,

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements
- Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised to align the corresponding

wording with no change in conclusion

The directors anticipate that the application of all amendments
to HKFRSs have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum
of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and equity
investments at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in
the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence
of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for
the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3— based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, completed properties for sale, properties under
development, financial assets, deferred tax assets and
investment properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value-in-use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash- generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a
cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying
amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building)
is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to
the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value-
in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)y is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bring the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are
dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If
the total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an
individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the
statement of profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation surplus
is credited to the statement of profit or loss to the extent of
the deficit previously charged. On disposal of a revalued asset,
the relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised
in respect of previous valuations is transferred to accumulated
losses as a movement in reserves.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land outside Hong Kong  Not depreciated

Buildings Over the shorter of the
lease terms or 50 years
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of

the lease terms or

4.5% to 20%
Furniture, fixtures and 18% to 20%
office equipment
Motor vehicles 10% to 33%
Gaming equipment and 20%
accessories
Structure and other facilities 2% to 33%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings and assets
under construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course
of business. Such properties are measured initially at cost,
including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects
market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit or
loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent
accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use. If a
property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under “Property,
plant and equipment and depreciation” for owned property up
to the date of change in use, and any difference at that date
between the carrying amount and the fair value of the property
is accounted for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy
stated under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation”
above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

Properties under development and completed
properties for sale

Properties under development and completed properties for
sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Development cost of properties comprises cost of land use
rights, construction costs and borrowing costs incurred during
the construction period. Once the construction or development
of these properties is completed, these properties are
reclassified to the appropriate categories of assets. If a property
under development is intended to be redeveloped into an
owner-occupied property, it is transferred to construction in
progress at the carrying amount.

Net realisable value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realised, less applicable variable selling
expenses and the anticipated costs to completion.

Properties under development and completed properties for
sale are classified as current assets unless the construction
period of the relevant property development project is
expected to complete beyond normal operating cycle.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised.
The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is
reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life
assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in
the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted
for on a prospective basis.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Gaming licenses

Gaming licenses acquired in business combinations are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Gaming licenses
have indefinite useful lives and are carried at cost less any

impairment losses.

Trademarks and patents

Purchased trademarks and patents have finite useful lives and
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate the cost of trademarks and patents over
their estimated useful lives of 7 to 10 years.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings Over the lease terms
Motor vehicles Over the lease terms
Machineries Over the lease terms

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.
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24 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

118

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

®)

(c)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery, motor
vehicle and office equipment (that is those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the recognition exemption for
leases of low-value assets to leases of office equipment
that are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Leases (continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as
either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating
nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued))

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not
held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
when they meet the definition of equity under HKAS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading.
The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument
basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised
as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds
as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in
which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and
the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated

statement of financial position) when:

* the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either

(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks

and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither

transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the

asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit loss(es)
("ECL(s)") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective
of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information. The Group
considers that there has been a significant increase in credit risk
when contractual payments are more than 180 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 180 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade and
gaming receivables which apply the simplified approach as
detailed below.

Stage 1 —  Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition
and for which the loss allowance is measured at

an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2—  Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an

amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3—  Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to

lifetime ECLs
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade and gaming receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade and gaming receivables that contain a significant
financing component, the Group chooses as its accounting
policy to adopt the general approach in calculating ECLs with
policies as described above.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans
and borrowings or payables as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, lease liabilities, and interest-bearing bank borrowing.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of
profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average method.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management. Bank deposits
which are restricted to use are included in “Restricted cash”.
Restricted cash is excluded from cash and cash equivalents
included in the consolidated statement of cash flows.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to
cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in the statement of profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences; and

® in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

* when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss
and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

® inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity
or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair values where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the costs, for which
it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Gaming duties and other related taxes

According to the respective local legislation by the Government
of South Korea, the Group is required to pay gaming tax
(1% increases progressively up to 10%) on the assessable
net gaming wins from gaming operations as defined by the
legislation. In addition, the Group is also required to make
certain variable and fixed payments to the Government of South
Korea based on the gaming wins generated from tables and
slot machines in its possession. These expenses are recognised
as “Gaming duties and other related taxes” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it
is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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24 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

132

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(a)

®)

Integrated resort revenue

Revenue from integrated resort, mainly comprised hotel
rooms, food and beverage sales, theme park ticket sales
and retail and cinema ticket sales. Revenue from the
hotel rooms is recognised over the scheduled period on
a straight-line basis because the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
Group. Revenue from food and beverage sales is
recognised at the point in time when the control of food
and beverage products is transferred to the customer,
generally upon purchase of the food and beverage items
by the customer. Revenue from theme park ticket sales are
recognised over time as services are rendered. Revenue
from the cinema ticket sales and the sale of goods are
recognised when the tickets are used or the products are
sold to customers.

Gaming revenue

Gaming revenue represents the net difference between
gaming wins and losses. Commissions related directly
to customers and allowances to gaming counterparties
calculated based on certain percentages of net gaming
wins or rolling amount, are recorded as a reduction to
gaming revenue. Gaming contracts include a performance
obligation to honor the patron’s wager and typically
include a performance obligation to provide a product
or service to the patron on a complimentary basis to
incentive in exchange for points earned under the Group's
loyalty programs.

For wagering contracts that include products and services
provided to a patron in exchange for complimentary
commissions or points earned under the Group's loyalty
programs, the Group allocates the estimated stand-alone
selling price of the points earned to the loyalty program
liability and casino revenue. The loyalty program liability
is recognized as a deferral of revenue until redemption
occurs in fair value bases. When redemption of loyalty
program points occurs, the Company recognize revenue.
The stand-alone selling price of each product or service is
allocated to the respective revenue type.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

®)

(c)

(@)

Gaming revenue (continued)

For redemption of loyalty program points with third
parties, the redemption amount is deducted from the
loyalty program liability and paid directly to the third
party.

Commission and allowances to gaming counterparties is
calculated based on certain percentages of net gaming
wins or rolling amount and is recorded as a reduction to
gaming revenue when the relevant services have been

rendered by gaming counterparties.

Unredeemed Chips retained by customers are recognized
as contract liabilities, instead of operating income as they
are not related to gaming play.

Sales of properties

Revenue from the sale of properties is recognised at the
point in time when the purchasers obtained the physical
possession or the legal title of the completed property
and the Group has the present right to payment and the
collection of the consideration is probable.

Property management fee income

Revenue from the provision of property management fee
is recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-line
basis because the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Revenue from other sources

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the

effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly

discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected

life of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the

financial asset.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or
a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before
the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or
services to the customer).

Share-based payment

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Employees
(including Directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services in exchange for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants is measured by reference to the fair value on the date at
which they are granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss for
a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Share-based payment (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing
of an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date
of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.
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24 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

136

Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to
the statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's certain subsidiaries which
operate in South Korea are required to participate in a
defined contribution is a pension plan under which the
South Korea subsidiaries pay fixed contributions into
a separate entity. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expenses when an employee has
rendered service.

In addition, the subsidiaries in South Korea also operates
a defined benefits scheme in South Korea, the assets of
which are generally held in separate trustee-administrated

funds.

The schemes are generally funded through payments
to insurance companies or trustee-administered funds,
determined by periodic actuarial calculations. A defined
benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan. Typically, defined benefit plans define
an amount of pension benefit that an employee will
receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more
factors such as age, years of services and compensation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

(a)

Pension obligations (continued))

The liability recognised in the statement of financial
position in respect of defined benefit pension plans
is the present value of the defined benefit obligation
at the reporting date less the fair value of plan assets.
The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually
by independent actuaries using the projected unit
credit method. The present value of the defined benefit
obligation is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality
corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency
in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms
to maturity approximating to the terms of the related
pension liability.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise. Past-service costs
are recognised immediately as income.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries, which operate
in the Philippines, are members of government-managed
“Social Security System Scheme”. The Philippine
subsidiary is required to pay a monthly fixed contribution
or certain percentage of the employees’ relevant income
and met the minimum mandatory requirements of the
Social Security System Scheme. The Philippine subsidiary
has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due.

Certain subsidiaries which operate in Singapore make
contributions to the Central Provident Fund scheme in
Singapore, a defined contribution pension scheme on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. Contributions
to defined contribution pension schemes are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the related service
of the employee is performed. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the fixed contributions have
been paid. The Group's contributions are recognised as
employee compensation expense when they are due.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)
(b) Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the date of
consolidated statement of financial position.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in
the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates that approximate to those
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing
rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key

sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting

period, that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year, are described below.

(a)

(b)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines whether an asset is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
fair value of the asset. The fair value for the impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment is estimated
based on either (i) fair value less cost of disposal, or (ii)
value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a five-year period approved
by management and by reference to external valuation
reports. Details of property, plant and equipment
are disclosed in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Impairment assessment of goodwill and gaming licences
with indefinite useful lives

The Group determines whether goodwill and gaming
licences with indefinite useful lives are impaired at least on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in
use of the cash-generating units or the fair value of gaming
licences to which the goodwill and gaming licences with
indefinite useful lives are allocated. Estimating the value in
use and fair value requires the Group to make an estimate
of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
units and the uses of the key assumptions including the
growth rates of gross gaming revenue and costs, working
capital needs and pre-tax discount rate in the cash flow
projections, could potentially affect the recoverable
amounts of the present value of those cash flows. Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
or change in facts and circumstances which results in
downward revision of future cash flows or upward revision
of discount rate, a material impairment loss or further
impairment loss may arise.

Details of goodwill and gaming licences are disclosed in
note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(c)

Net realisable value of properties under development
and completed properties for sale

The Group's properties for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Based on the Group's recent
experience and the nature of the subject properties, the
Group makes estimates of the selling prices, the costs
of completion in cases for properties under or held for
development, and the costs to be incurred in selling the
properties based on prevailing market conditions. If there
is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease in net
sales value, the net realisable value will decrease and this
may result in provision for properties under development
and completed properties held for sale. Such provision
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where
the expectation is different from the original estimate,
the carrying value and provision for properties in the
periods in which such estimate is changed will be
adjusted accordingly. In addition, given the volatility of
the property market and the unique nature of individual
properties, the actual outcomes in terms of costs and
revenue may be higher or lower than that estimated at
the end of the reporting period. Any increase or decrease
in the provision would affect profit or loss in future years.
Details of properties under development and completed
properties for sale are disclosed in notes 20 and 21 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(d)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for
similar properties, the Group considers information from a

variety of sources, including:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Current price in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location, adjusted to
reflect those differences;

Recent prices of similar properties on less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes
in economic conditions since the dates of the
transactions that occurred at those prices; and

Discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the
terms of any existing lease and other contracts and
(when possible) by external evidence such as current
market rents for similar properties in the same
location and condition, and using discount rates that
reflect current market assessment of the uncertainty
in the amount and timing of the cash flows.

Details of investment properties are disclosed in note 15
to the consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(e)

Impairment of trade and gaming receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. An impairment analysis is performed at each
reporting date using a loss rate approach to measure
expected credit losses. The credit risk categorisation is
determined based on a number of factors which include
(i) debtors’ ageing; (ii) historical repayment behaviour
of debtors; and (iii) other debtors’ specific information
available to the Group which is relevant for credit risk
assessment. The credit risk categorisation is adjusted to
reflect subsequent information uncovered to an extent
that such information provides evidence of conditions
existed as at the year end date and forward-looking
information. The expected loss rates are estimated based
on the expected cash flows that can be recovered from
the estimated repayments based on historical recovery
ratios.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
recovery ratio, estimated repayment and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and estimates may also
not be representative of customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group's
trade and gaming receivables is disclosed in note 19 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

()

(9)

Impairment of other receivables

The impairment provisions for other receivables are
based on assumptions about expected credit losses. The
Group uses judgements and estimates in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on information about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions at the end of each reporting period. The
amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances
and forecasts of future economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecasts of future
economic conditions may also not be representative of
a debtor’s actual default in the future. Changes in these
assumptions and estimates could materially affect the
results of the assessment and it may be necessary to
make an additional impairment charge to profit or loss.
Details of other receivables are disclosed in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR
is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay
to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to
the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have
to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable
rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not
enter into financing transactions) or when it needs to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease
(for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s
functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using
observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific
estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit
rating).

Details of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are
disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company are considered to
be the Group's Chief Operating Decision-Maker ("CODM").
Management has determined the operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the CODM that are used to
make strategic decisions. The CODM considers the Group
is operating predominantly in three operating segments as
follows:

(@) Integrated Resort Development;
(b)  Gaming Business; and
(c)  Property Development.

The CODM monitors the results of the operating segments
separately for the purpose of allocating resources and assessing
performance. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment results, which is a measure of adjusted
profit or loss before tax. The adjusted profit or loss before tax is
measured consistently with the Group's loss before tax except
that finance costs, net, unallocated exchange differences, net,
changes in fair value of investment properties in Hong Kong as
well as head office and corporate income and expenses, net are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents, restricted
cash, investment properties in Hong Kong, equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income,
tax recoverable and other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank borrowing,
tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated head
office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed
on a group basis.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2023

b £ B R

53 HR R (%)
BE-_Z-_=F+-A=+—HL#HF
E

Integrated
Resort Gaming Property
Development Business Development Total
wE
EREEE BEEK MERR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T F#&T F#&T F#&T
Segment revenue: (Note 5) 2 &Blkz ©  (FF&EES)
Sales to external customers  [AIINEBR 2
HE 777,558 46,765 211,945 1,036,268
Segment results D EBKAE (203,715) (258,417) 120,733 (341,399)
Reconciliation: #Ek -
Finance costs, net BAFEAA - JFRE
(other than interest on (HEaEME
lease liabilities) 231 (102,886)
Unallocated exchange ROMER Z58 -
differences, net FE (151)
Corporate and other EREAMARDER
unallocated expenses, net  FZ + F5 (60,512)
Fair value losses on BB EYE
investment properties ZNFEEEBE
in Hong Kong (17,800)
Loss before tax bR A ES 18 (522,748)
Segment assets DEEE 7,635,605 613,751 456,032 8,705,388
Reconciliation: HHk -
Investment properties BERREME
in Hong Kong 161,900
Equity investments BERRAT(EEA
designated at fair value FFAEAD
through other ZHE WS 2 At
comprehensive income K& 1,400
Restricted cash ZRHIRE 61,174
Cash and cash equivalents & RBESEEY 266,043
Tax recoverable AT U Bl FR TE 58
Corporate and other EREMARDER
unallocated assets BE 5,105
Total assets BEBE 9,201,068
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2023 (continued)

53 6B & B (4)
BE-_Z-_=F+-A=+—HL#HF

E (&)
Integrated
Resort Gaming Property
Development Business Development Total
RE
ERE#RE HREY MEER #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET FET FET
Segment liabilities PEEE 236,334 81,480 10,123 327,937
Reconciliation: Hk -
Interest-bearing STERITEE
bank borrowing 1,417,489
Tax payable FERTTIR 7
Deferred tax liabilities EEFARE 43,945
Corporate and other PEREMARDE
unallocated liabilities afE 5,969
Total liabilities BEAE 1,795,347
Other segment information SFADBEEZ
included in segment results: ~ Hfth A BER :
Amortisation and depreciation #H5 &ITE 261,697 32,091 - 293,788
Impairment of other intangible H & & ERE
assets - 12,943 - 12,943
Impairment of trade and FEWE 5 5K TB K&
other receivables, net H fth e W RIE
HE - FE 21 9,831 - 9,852
Fair value gains on investment FEIREMHE 2
properties in South Korea NEEBERKZS (81,526) = = (81,526)

SHIN HWA WORLD LIMITED #5654 FR A #]



4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2022

o B 5 A R i

53 HR R (%)
BE-_Z-_—_F+-A=+—HLHF
4

Integrated
Resort Gaming Property
Development Business Development Total
ma
EREER BRER MmEER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FAET FBT
Segment revenue: (Note 5) 3Bk ©  (FIEES)
Sales to external customers MNP EFZ
HE 946,200 46,127 394,473 1,386,800
Segment results DEELE (154,120) (173,965) 202,179 (125,906)
Reconciliation: R -
Finance costs, net BTSN - JRER
(other than interest on (HEaEME
lease liabilities) BRIN) (98,570
Unallocated exchange ROMER Z58 -
differences, net FEE 31,038
Corporate and other R REMARDE
unallocated expenses, net B + 558 (28,911)
Fair value losses on EBREME
investment properties ZNFEEEBE
in Hong Kong (12,700)
Loss before tax BRTIAIEE (235,049)
Segment assets PHEE 8,040,428 672,333 571,613 9,284,374
Reconciliation: #AE -
Investment properties BERREME
in Hong Kong 179,700
Equity investments BERRAT(EEA
designated at fair value FFAEAD
through other 2 2 AR
comprehensive income K& 13,866
Restricted cash ZRFIIR S 62,793
Cash and cash equivalents  R&RRESFEY 503,421
Tax recoverable AT El I8 812
Corporate and other EREMARDER
unallocated assets BE 11,056
Total assets BERE 10,056,022
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

53 6B & B (4)
BE-_Z-_—_F+-A=+—HLHF
E (&)

Integrated
Resort Gaming Property
Development Business Development Total
ma
ERERER BRER MmEER #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FAET FHBT
Segment liabilities pan: =Rt 258,594 47,281 25,287 331,162
Reconciliation: Hk -
Interest-bearing STERITEE
bank borrowing 1,556,150
Tax payable FERTTRIR 79
Deferred tax liabilities REFIEAE 44,482
Corporate and other EREMARDE
unallocated liabilities =LE 6,766
Total liabilities BEAE 1,938,639
Other segment information ~ T AZHEE >
included in segment results: ~ HAt D EHER :
Amortisation and depreciation # 5 & ITE 453,607 35,202 = 488,809
Impairment of other intangible H & & ERE
assets - 8,735 - 8,735
(Reversal of impairment)/ e E 5 FIE K
impairment of trade H fth e RIE
and other receivables, net CRE#®=),~
HE R (63,249) 67 - (63,182)
Fair value gains on investment FEEYE Y
properties in South Korea NEEE R (88,822) = = (88,822)
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R B R M R
4 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4 rEbERH(A)
Geographical information HEE R
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) XREHNBEFZ Yz
2023 2022
—EC-=fF —F--
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR
South Korea F 1,036,268 1,386,800
The revenue information above is based on the locations A EWEEER HIRER PRt
of the customers. FH .
(b)  Non-current assets b) HFHEBEE
2023 2022
—EB=F —EF-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
South Korea [FaL 7,923,910 8,282,979
Hong Kong B 165,064 184,235
Others HAtb - 18
8,088,974 8,467,232
The non-current assets information above is based on N EERBEEERTRBEERM
the locations of the assets and excludes goodwill and EMNENTEEREREMERE
other intangible assets, prepayments, trade and other E-BARE- - BRESHE - HE
receivables, equity investments designated at fair value o EURIR - B BRI A TFEES
through other comprehensive income and restricted cash. AE M2 E R RERE MR
HIRE)FIL -
Information about major customers FRXEREFZEHR
During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no single HE_ZT_=FR-_T__F+=A
customer contributed over 10% of the Group's total revenue. =t+—HIEFE #ESE-FFPHAEE

W AR REREIE 10%
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fR A S AR B
5 REVENUE L&
An analysis of revenue is as follows: Was H AT
2023 2022
—Eo=F —E_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T FET
Revenue from contracts with customers EEARAIH S 994,814 1,350,914
Revenue from other sources B R K 7
Gross rental income from investment REREYHLEHE Y
property operating leases HeWABRE 41,454 35,886
1,036,268 1,386,800
Revenue from contracts with customers EFEEHHWE
Disaggregated revenue information DR EER
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE-—Z-_=F+-A=+—HL#F
E
Integrated
Resort Gaming Property
Segments Development Business Development Total
wE
2B ERERRE BEEL MR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’'000
FET FET THET FHET
Types of goods or services AmRRBEEE
Hotel room revenue HIERE RS 461,807 = = 461,807
Theme park ticket sales FTHEAREMEEE 96,556 = = 96,556
Food and beverage sales BHIHE 169,226 - - 169,226
Retail and cinema ticket sales T & K &9
HE 8,515 - - 8,515
Table games REBE - 43,902 - 43,902
Electronic machine games BT EE IR - 2,863 - 2,863
Sales of properties HEME - = 201,969 201,969
Property management YIHEEBEBIRA
fee income - - 9,976 9,976
Total revenue from contracts P& MMk
with customers 1R 736,104 46,765 211,945 994,814
Geographical markets HET S
South Korea FAFE 736,104 46,765 211,945 994,814
Timing of revenue recognition W %5 7 52 B &
At a point in time O — {IEl By il B 177,741 46,765 201,969 426,475
Over time M —{ER R 558,363 = 9,976 568,339
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REVENUE (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

o B 5 A R i

W i (48)
EF N WS (HE)
DIz EH ()

BE-E_—_F+ZH=1+—HL#F
B

Integrated
Resort Gaming Property
Segments Development Business Development Total
Fa
&R EREEE B ES MEER #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T FET
Types of goods or services AmBREES
Hotel room revenue B 5 B A 608,065 = = 608,065
Theme park ticket sales FTEABEMEHEE 100,248 = = 100,248
Food and beverage sales BHHEE 191,302 = = 191,302
Retail sales TE 10,699 = = 10,699
Table games SHEEL = 43,531 = 43,531
Electronic machine games BT EEIE = 2,596 = 2,596
Sales of properties HEME - = 386,143 386,143
Property management MEEEBWRA
fee income = = 8,330 8,330
Total revenue from contracts ~ FF A &AMz
with customers R 910,314 46,127 394,473 1,350,914
Geographical markets & 45
South Korea 3L 910,314 46,127 394,473 1,350,914
Timing of revenue recognition U %5 7 2 EE
At a point in time R —{ErFFE 2 202,001 46,127 386,143 634,271
Over time R— AR 708,313 - 8,330 716,643
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REVENUE (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Contract and contract related liabilities

In providing goods and services to its customers, there may
be a timing difference between cash receipts from customers
and recognition of revenue, resulting in a contract or contract-
related liability.

The Group primarily has five types of liabilities related to
contracts with customers: (1) loyalty program liabilities, which
represents the deferred allocation of revenues relating to
incentive earned from the loyalty programs; (2) unredeemed
chip liabilities, which represents the amounts owed in exchange
for gaming chips and tokens held by a customer; (3) patrons
deposits and other gaming liabilities, which represents casino
front money deposits that are funds deposited by customers
before gaming play occurs; (4) contract liabilities for sales of
goods and services, which represents the advance payments on
goods and services to be provided, such as advance ticket sales
and deposits on hotel rooms; and (5) liabilities for pre-sales of
properties, which represents advances received from buyers
in connection with the Group's pre-sales of properties. These
liabilities are generally expected to be recognised as revenues
within one year of being purchased, earned, or deposited and
are recorded within other payables, accruals and deposits
received on the consolidated statement of financial position.
Increase in balance mainly due to the increase in advanced
payments received in relation to sales of goods and services
and increase in cash received from buyers in relation to the pre-
sales of properties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R B B W

REVENUE (continued) 5 W ()
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) BEEAHHWE(E)
Contract and contract related liabilities (continued) BRIREAIIEEEE (1)
Details of contract liabilities are as follows: EHBEEFBHEMNIT
Patrons
Loyalty Unredeemed deposits and Sales of
program chip other gaming goodsand  Pre-sales of
liabilities liabilities liabilities services  properties Total

BHE AiB BERER  #EER
FEAE  BRAR RtERAR RkE%H  BENE ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAR FHR FAR FHR FHR FAR

Balance at 1 January 2022 R=B==%-A-AH
A <3 8,840 10,911 2,689 36,735 53,946 113,121
Increase in contract liabilities as MR RUEEEH
a result of cash received from AHAEEM
customers in advance 5473 8,795 86,338 333,382 351,408 785,396

Decrease in contract liabilities as ~ FABERREI ALY
aresult o recognising revenue ~ BESHALEERD

during the year was included in

the contract liabilities (3,698) (8,150) (84,545) (344,993) (380,932) (822,318)
Exchange realignment fE 5 AR (465) (603) (116) (2,312) (3,646) (7,142
Balance at 31 December 2022 ~ R=Z==f

and 1 January 2023 +ZRA=t-BRK

“E-=%-8-H
2t 10,150 10,953 4,366 22,812 20,776 69,057
Increase in contract liabilitiesas ~ MZEFPELIREEH
a result of cash received from ANEEEN
customers in advance 3,276 56,643 722,081 294,823 207,251 1,284,074

Decrease in contract liabilities as ~ F RN AR

aresult of recognising revenue  BESHAHEERD

during the year was included in

the contract liabilities (1,111) (50,905) (701,639) (294,090) (222,013)  (1,269,758)
Exchange realignment [ A (249) (249) 7 (584) (623) (1,698)

Balance at 31 December 2023 ~ R-ZE=-=£
+ZA=t+—-Rz&8% 12,066 16,442 24,815 22,961 5,391 81,675
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B P B A
6 OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 6 AW A Ras o
2023 2022
—EC-=F —F-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FER
Dividend income from equity BRATFEEGS AR MMEEKES
investments at fair value through Z B E Z IRBMA
other comprehensive income 81 85
(Loss)/gain on disposal of items of HEME - BFEMEREIER
property, plant and equipment 2 (B18),/ W (1,406) 88
Loss on disposal of items of HEREMEFLEERE 28
other intangible assets (8) =
Amortisation of debt discount e RN (1,229) (1,411)
Foreign exchange differences, net MENZR - F5 413 (3,754)
Forfeited deposits from sales RBYEHERE ©
of properties 17,438 -
Other taxes refunded HAhBiIE 2 RO - 19,256
Others Hitp 4,933 6,721
20,222 20,985
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B R M R
LOSS BEFORE TAX 7 BRBEHTE R
The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBZBRBABERENR(GTA) T
(crediting): FIA -
2023 2022
—E=F —E -4
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FET FHET
Cost of properties and EEMERTFE 2K
inventories sold:
— Cost of properties sold —BEEWMERAK 70,684 171,945
— Cost of inventories sold —BEFEERKAK 62,783 70,285
— Reversal of provision —FEEERE
for inventories (767) (1,692)
132,700 240,538
Employee benefit expenses BRERNER(TEEES
(excluding directors’ F(MEE 9))
remuneration (Note 9)):
— Wages, salaries and other —TI& HehEM
staff costs* BT RKA* 497,877 433,121
— Retirement benefit costs** —IRRAB IR A ** 30,147 28,074
528,024 461,195
Amortisation and depreciation: BHNMITE:
— Depreciation of property, —ME - WEREEZ
plant and equipment e 14 293,141 488,506
— Depreciation of right-of- —(EAREEZITE
use assets 16(a) 1,403 1,487
— Amortisation of other intangible ~ —E A& E 2 #iH
assets 17 648 337
295,192 490,330
Impairment/(reversal of FEUE 5 FIE M EAM
impairment) of trade and FEWGRIERE,
other receivables, net: CRERD) - 58
— Reversal of impairment of —EWE 558
trade receivables, net MERE - JFEE 19() = (33)
— Impairment of —ER USRI
gaming receivables, net BB - FEE 19(i) 10,085 19
— Reversal of impairment —H h FE W FRIE
of other receivables, net RERE - FE 19(ii) (233) (63,168)
9,852 (63,182)
Impairment of other intangible assets Hth & & E R E 17 12,943 8,735
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LOSS BEFORE TAX (continued) 7 BRBLHTEH ()
2023 2022
—E=F T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P EE FET FHT
Expenses included in “Other FIAIEMEEER P2
operating expenses” ***: BR o
— Auditor’s remuneration —Z A &
— Audit services to the —RARRRREZ
Company E RS 1,800 1,800
— Audit services to the —mARE ZHERF]
subsidiaries of the Company R 2 BT ARES 2,111 2,013
3,911 3,813
— Building, equipment and —EF  RERFRE #E
facility maintenance expenses t=4;3) 126,095 123,551
— Expenses relating to short-term —BEE A ESIRER
leases or leases of BEME X
low-value assets 6,494 4,183
— Operating supplies — A EY) o
and equipment PET: 29,505 31,103
— Sales and marketing, promotion ~ —SHE k& - HEMNES
and advertising expenses e=4;3] 66,509 31,298
— Utilities expenses — N AEXEH 99,761 90,275
o During the year ended 31 December 2022, government grants of * HE_T__F+_-_A=+—HLEFE

HK$2,401,000 were received under the “Employment Retention
Subsidy” of the Government of South Korea. These amounts were
included in the “wages, salaries and other staff costs” and there were
no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies related to these grants.

*x At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the pension
schemes in future years (2022: Nil).

***  The remaining items of “Other operating expenses” including but not
limited to other support services and administrative expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LR A R B
FINANCE COSTS, NET 8 WABHIAK - B
2023 2022
—E=HE =4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FET
Interest expenses: MERAX :

— Lease liabilities —HEBE (192) (81)
— Bank borrowing —RITEE (110,449) (100,689)
Financecosts =} mgRAx (oieatly  (100770)

Interest income: FBUA :

— Bank interest income —IRITH B UA 7,166 2,087
— Other interest income —H A F B UTA 397 32
Financeincome ®M®RA et .. 200
Finance costs, net B A o FER (103,078) (98,651)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9 HEEHM

RiE LRI FE QB RB S 383(1)

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the

Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong @~ o) () MHIEAR AT (HEZEEF
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure ARG 2 EBIREE 2 A FEE S B
of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as wm
follows:
2023 2022
—E-=F =
HK$'000 HK$'000
F& T FET
Executive directors: HITESE
Fees e 1,100 1,275
Other emoluments: B -
Salaries, discretionary bonuses, Fe - BB
allowances and benefits in kind ERE N EYEF 5,366 5,856
Employer's contributions to retirement 1B X Z R IRTEHETEl
benefit schemes HER 180 209
6,646 7,340
Independent non-executive directors: B IEITES ¢
Fees e 480 480
7,126 7,820
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fR A S AR B
9 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 9 AW ()
Executive directors’ and independent non-executive BITESRBYFUTESZHE
directors’ emoluments
The emoluments paid to executive directors and independent RERNEZN THITEERBIIERITE
non-executive directors during the year were as follows: EzMEmT -
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE-ZE-=F+Z-"A=1+—BLHF
E
Employer's
contributions
to
Allowances  retirement
and benefits benefit
Name i Fees Salaries in kind schemes Total
Exe
b= 31954 BIKER
we e BEYWEA HEER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THEx TER TAET THET
Executive directors: HTES:
Dr. Yang Zhihui? (IES et - - - - -
Ms. Chan Mee Sze BEBLZL 300 1,200 = 18 1,518
Dr. Wong Hoi Po TEEEL 300 1,344 456 96 2,196
Ms. Pu Shen Chen? SEEY T3 200 912 = 12 1,124
Mr. Huang Wei BESE 300 1,454 - 54 1,808
1,100 4,910 456 180 6,646
Independent non-executive BUFHTES:
directors:
Mr. Li Chun Kei FEMEE 120 = - - 120
Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham ARHRTE 300 - - = 300
Mr. Du Peng s & 60 - - - 60
480 - . - 480
1,580 4,910 456 180 7,126
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fR A S R B
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 9  EHHM(HE)
Executive directors’ and independent non-executive BITESRBYFUTESZHE
directors’ emoluments (continued) (#8)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-_ZE-_—_F+-A=+—HLHF
=3
Employer's
contributions
to
Allowances retirement
and benefits benefit
Name i Fees Salaries in kind schemes Total
BEZ
B BRER
we e ZWEF HE5 st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TRT

Executive directors: WITESE:
Dr. Yang Zhihui? MEEH+2 = = = = =
Ms. Chan Mee Sze FREBRL 300 1,200 - 18 1,518
Mr. Yeung Lo’ BREE 75 364 114 5 558
Dr. Wong Hoi Po THEFEL 300 1,344 174 96 1,914
Ms. Pu Shen Chen BEY LT 300 1,117 = 54 1,471
Mr. Huang Wei BREE 300 1,543 = 36 1,879
1,275 5,568 288 209 7,340 )
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors:
Mr. Li Chun Kei FHRBEL 120 - - - 120
Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham Valit Sited 300 - - - 300
Mr. Du Peng RS EE 60 = = = 60
480 - - - 430
1,755 5,568 288 209 7,820
g Resigned on 4 April 2022 L RZZEZZFMANAEE
2 Suspended on 18 November 2022 and retired on 20 June 2023 2 RZZEZZF+— R+ N\BEERE RE
WERZZEZ=FA=-+RHEME
3 Resigned on 1 September 2023 8 RZZEZ=FNA—HEE
There were no other emoluments payable to the executive FATEBNATEERBIIFNTES
directors and independent non-executive directors during the ZEMME(ZTZ—F : &) -
year (2022: Nil).
There were no arrangements under which a director waived or RAEFE I EEE R Wk EE R ERE
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. Bz Z2HE o
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10 FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
directors (2022: two directors), details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 9 of the consolidated financial statement

10

e B i R B

RAFE IEAGE=HERBE_RES
(ZT-—F: —RE=F) REZHEF
BEEHR EXRAMBERRME? - Hif

above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining three (2022: —H(ZEZZF =R )EaF MIEES
three) non-director highest paid employee are as follows: BEZBEFIBOT :
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R KEYET 5,516 4,773
Employer’s contributions to a retirement 1’8 £ 2 R IRB A ET SR
benefit scheme 142 116
5,658 4,889

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

HESZHESFEEZFHEBENFUT
MRl

2023 2022
—E-=5F —F-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 BT E
2,000,000/8 7T 2 3
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 &L E
2,500,000 7% T 1 -
3 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDAT

INCOME TAX 11

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group
did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil). Corporate
income tax in South Korea is charged progressively from 9%
to 24% (2022: 10% to 25%) on the estimated assessable profit
for the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated
on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates
of taxation prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group

ED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B 5 A R i

P 4 B
HE-_Z_=ZF+-A=+—HLFE
PR A N 55 (B 7 48 5 B 7 BE AR () B AR R 0
o M EREEFNCSHELEB S
ZoF | cBEMEMSHAFAM
STERE R R 9% B IRIBE 24% (= F
T F 0% E25%) o FINEF 2 FRIA
TR A EEEBEEEEERF NG
ERBURA 2 RITHERE -

operates.
2023 2022
—E=HE = F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FET
Current — South Korea BNHR — FeR
_Chargefortheyear N 5 100
Current — Elsewhere BNHR — HAbih[E
Charge/(credit) for the year FRME(EE) 107 (20,607)
Deferred tax (Note 26) FEIE R IA (I 7E 26) (451) 2,369
Total tax credit for the year FA IR P ARE (309) (18,138)

The tax on the Group's loss before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using weighted average tax
rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

R E BB AT 5 18 2 T AR B 5% ?.’:TE” i%
3 FE R 2 hniE IR R St B A S I
BMZERMT

2023 2022
—E-=£F —F-—

HK$'000 HK$'000

FBT FET

Loss before tax PR AIE 1R (522,748) (235,049)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates BEBBRR 2 EtiEA
applicable to profits in the MEBEAEZHIA

respective countries (102,096) (93,556)

Income not subject to tax BAERTUA (57,919 (137,113)

Expenses not deductible for tax AT R TR R S 140,449 247,001

Tax losses utilised from prior periods FERBEEEHRIEEE (70,831) (129,700)

Tax losses not recognised AEERHTIAER 90,088 95,230

Tax credit for the year FAKIBE R (309) (18,138)
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B (A o
12 DIVIDEND 12 BB
The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend EEEgTERNREE_S-_=+=A
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil). =Et+—BLEFERNRERE(ZZE=_Z
FoE) e
13 LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 13 BRA w B N\ REAG 15 B 18
OWNERS OF THE PARENT
The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share are based ERERREEEIB T ERETER
on:
2023 2022
== —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT T
Loss BB
Loss attributable to owners of ARFAEERERR
the parent, used in the basic and e SE WA SN
diluted loss per share calculation: A AEREE (522,439) (216,911)
Number of shares
BRHAEHE
2023 2022
—E_=F T
‘000 ‘000
T B TR
Shares il
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AR EBRERREE
in issue during the year used in B s FADBITEBR
the basic and diluted loss per share calculation  j##EF35£k 4,226,252 4,226,252
The Group had no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding REERAFENEBITEINEEEE
during the year (2022: Nil). TER( T —F  |) -
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 W3 ~ W Rk
Furniture, Gaming
Freehold fixtures equipment Structure
land outside Leasehold and office Motor and andother  Construction
Hong Kong Buildings ~ improvements  equipment vehicles  accessories faclities in progress Total
DY HENE  GA XE BYRE ERIR
KARELH Bz 5% RBOERR - KRS AfpRiE HBIR a3t

HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
TR Tn Tén Tin TR Tin Fn Tén Fn

31 December 2023 ZECZETCAZT-R
At 1 January 2023; R=B==§-5-8:

Cost A 1,016,643 6,382,561 1,040 1,260,734 75,089 122,811 1,567,140 KAV 10,465,189

Accumulated depreciation ZHTERWE

and impairment - (670,231) (404) (1,110,750) (67,141) (87,267) (782,098) - (2717,891)

Net carrying amount BEE 1,016,643 5,712,330 636 149,984 7948 35,544 785,042 3917 7,747,298
At 1 January 2023, R=BZZ%-5-8"

net accumulated depreciation  FRFHTERAE

and impairment 1,016,643 5,712,330 636 149,984 7948 35,544 785,042 391 7,147,298
Additions AE - - - a7 407 256 - 22,098 2178
Depreciation provided for the year £EHTEA(E = (127,399) (347) (43,595) (3.241) (15,483) (103,076) - (293141)
Disposals i = = = (212 (65) (2,754) (391) = (3422)
Transfers £ 5 - - 8,215 - = 5,116 (13,33) =
Transfer form investment ERARENE (M 15)

properties (Note 15) - 1983 - - - - - - 1983
Transfer to investment ERERENE (H3H15)

properties (Note 19) - (41,213) - - - - - - (41,213)
Revaluation of property, plant ~ RNEBERENERER

and equipment upon transferto % + BE R

investment properties - 14,303 - - - - - - 14,303
Transfer from completed properties®& & 5 & B &l

for sale % 1,692 43943 - - - - - - 45,635
Transfer to completed properties EBZHERER

forsale S (688) (16,496) - - - - - - (17,184)
Exchange realignment EiEE (25,027) (149,930) - (4,070) (160) (1,021) (19,744) (959) (200911)
At 31 December 2023, R=%=z%

t=A=1-8

net accumulated depreciation  FRFTERAE

and impairment 992,625 5431521 29 110,739 4,889 16,542 666,947 46974 7,216,526
At 31 December 2023: RZ8=zf

tZR=1-A:
Cost A 992,625 6,214524 1,040 1,229,518 71,353 107,626 1,531,562 46974 10,195,222
Accumulated depreciation ZHTERWE
and impairment = (777,003) (751) (1,118,779) (66,464) (91,084) (864,615) - (2.918,696)
Net carrying amount BOFE 992,625 5,431,521 29 110,739 4,889 16,542 666,947 46974 1,216,526
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14

166

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14 W3k ~ Wb Rkl (4)

(continued)
Furniture, Gaming
Freehold fixtures equipment Structure
[and outside Leasehold and office Motor and andother  Construction
Hong Kong Buildings  improvements equipment vehicles  accessories faciliies ~ inprogress Total
FRHS BEnE  GN-%E BYR ERIR
KAFELH B3 kE  RHAZR 11 REH L4E) ERIE a3t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
T Thn T Thn Thn Thn Thn Tin Thn
31 December 2022 ZRITEtZAZt-H
At 1 January 2022: RZBZZ§-B-B:
Cost A 1,077,679 6,827,840 1,040 1,331,708 80,882 131,09% 1,656,349 39,359 11,145,952
Accumulated depreciation ZHTERWE
and impairment - (571,239 (58) (972,368) (66,060) (75,165) (674,063) - (2,358,949)
Net carrying amount FAFE 1077619 6,256,605 982 359340 14822 55,930 982,86 39359 8,787,003
At 1 January 2022, RZBZZ§-B-8>
net accumulated depreciation  FRHTERAE
and impairment 1,077,619 6,256,605 982 359,340 14822 55,930 982,286 39359 8,787,003
Additions AE - - - 670 3 - - 10,081 10,844
Depreciation provided for the year £EHTEA(E = (130,532) (346) (191,093 (6,637) (16,639 (143259) - (488,506)
Disposals e - - - (52) (564) (044) = - (860)
Transfers g% 303 (498) - 5169 1,038 - 2012 (8,084) -
Transfer to investment EREREE (Wi 15)
properties (Note 15) - (855) - - - - - - (855)
Revaluation of property, plant ~ REBERAMZEER
and equipment upon transferto 05 + BE R
investment properties - 513 - - - - - - 573
Transfer to properties ERRERTYE
under development (Note 20)  (f320) (2924) = = = = = = = (2924)
Transfer from completed ERRAEEEN
properties for sale nE - 13375 - - - - - - 13375
Transfer to completed properties EAZHEEER
forsale {ES = (64,689) - - - - - - {64,669)
Exchange realignment B A% (58,419) (361,669) - (24,050) (804) (3503) (56,057) (2185 (506,683)
At 31 December 2022, R=%=Zf
t=A=+-8"
net accumulated depreciation  FEHTERAE
and impairment 1,016,643 5712330 636 149,984 7,948 35,54 785,042 KA 7,747,298
At 31 December 2022: RZBZZE
tZR=t-A:
Cost A 1,016,643 6,382,561 1,040 1260734 75089 122811 1,567,140 M 10,465,189
Accumulated depreciation ZAMERAE
and impairment - (670,231) (4od) (1,110,750 (67,141) (87,267) (782,09) - 2,117.891)
Net carrying amount FEFE 1,016,643 5712330 636 149,984 7,948 35,54 785,042 KA 7,747,298
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

As at 31 December 2023, certain of the Group's property, plant
and equipment with a net carrying amount of HK$1,776,727,000
(2022: HK$1,645,152,000) were pledged to banks to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 25).

The directors considered that there was impairment indication
for certain property, plant and equipment of the Group because
(i) respective cash-generating units of these property, plant
and equipment were underperform, suffered from substantial
losses, or (ii) certain subsidiaries continued to underperform
and incurred losses. The Group has performed an impairment
assessment with recoverable amounts of the relevant assets
determined based on either (i) fair value less cost of disposal,
or (i) value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a five-year period approved by
management.

In determining the fair value of the property, plant and
equipment of the Integrated Resort Development cash
generating unit based on fair value less cost of disposal,
the Group engaged Daeil Appraisal Co., Ltd. (Kyungi Buktu
Branch), an independent professionally qualified valuer to
perform the valuation in Korea. The fair value assessment,
which was performed by the valuer, has been arrived at based
on either with reference to the current comparable prices, or
with reference to the reproduction costs or costs of replacing
the improvement less depreciation. The key assumption
on determining the fair value less cost of disposal was the
economic obsolescence. The fair value hierarchy on assessing
the fair value less cost of disposal was level 3.

The impairment assessment of the property, plant and
equipment of the Gaming Business cash generating unit (the
“Gaming CGU"), was included in the value-in-use calculation as
disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

14

Bz 4 B B

W3k ~ W5 B s (4)

R-ZE-_=F+=-"A=+—H8 " BEF
8 /&1,776,727,0005 T(= & = —
1,645,152,0008 0) 2 ANEBH FTHWE -
WEREBE R AEEER C —RIBITR
& (MR 25) IR FIRIT ©

EERA - AEEETYE  BEMERE
BRERE  REROME - BER&HE
ZREELBUNFARARERELS
RERH ()& THBARMEBERRRER
ELER - AEERE ) A TFEERKE
BN (if) IR1R B IR fE Fritt /& B A S HifE
ZHBEEAENERBEET HEE
EZ Al B & A TTRER E

BEAFERLERKAEEFAEREE
EReEEFEMNYE  BERKEHEZA
FEER  ASEZEBUEXSERM
{EAT Daeil Appraisal Co., Ltd. (F&dtiE
DITI)REEEITH(E - AEBERETZ
NEEEMETISERITAIELRER
B2 EERN AL FERUER AR T ER
BE - ETAFEBERLEKRANBRRE
BB E - AR TEEREEX
TR FEERRBE=R -

BYEBReELEN((BRERRESE
EBN ) 2WE - BB MEERERR
EMARZEMBRKRME 7 <ERER
AEZR -
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

The carrying amount of the relevant property, plant and equipment
does not exceed the recoverable amount based on fair value less
cost on disposal and no impairment has been recognised in current
year and prior year. There is no impairment recognised for the
Group of other CGUs that include allocation of corporate assets
for the current and prior year. Generally, the Group is restricted
from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

The selection of external valuer to be responsible for the
external valuation of the Group's properties by the Group's
management is based on the valuers’ market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards
are maintained. The Group's management have discussions
with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed for financial reporting

14 W3k ~ Wb Rl (4)

HEAME - BB REREZREET TER
RIBRFEER L &S KARSH A EUKRIR
TR AR AFEREFEHEERR
B AREYEREMRSELEM(E
RAFEEREFEZAORRREE)ER
EFRE - —RBERT » XEETERAX
SEUIMEEEEEER  HHEEEE -

AEEZEEBETEARAEEYEING
HEMSNEMEER R - EERIBIETISA
HBE - BUMRELERERRE -
AEE 2 EEECNHER BEER
BEBRKREESR  AE25M R

o

purpose.
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15 #HEWE

2023 2022

—E-=fF =

HK$’000 HK$'000

F&E T FHT

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEEE 718,393 666,410
Transfer from property, plant EEEYE  BEX

and equipment (Note 14) R (HEE14) 41,213 855
Transfer to property, plant HEZYE  BER

and equipment (Note 14) e (FeE 14) (1,983) =

Fair value gains, net NEEEKZ  FE 63,726 76,122

Exchange realignment PE 5 382 (13,264) (24,994)

Carrying amount at 31 December R+=-—B=+—BZEHEE 808,085 718,393
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The Group's investment properties are residential properties
in Hong Kong and commercial properties in South Korea.
The directors of the Company have determined the class
of asset (i.e., residential and commercial) based on the
nature, characteristics and risks of the properties. The
Group's investment properties in Hong Kong was revalued
on 31 December 2023 based on a valuation performed by
Roma Appraisals Limited, an independent professionally
qualified valuer, while the properties in Korea was revalued
on 31 December 2023 based on a valuation performed
by Daeil Appraisal Co., Ltd. (Kyungi Buktu Branch), an
independent professionally qualified valuer. The fair value was
HK$808,085,000 (2022: HK$718,393,000), and fair value gains
of HK$63,726,000 (2022: HK$76,122,000) was recorded in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year. Each
year, the selection of external valuers to be responsible for the
external valuation of the Group's properties by the Group's
management is based on the valuers’ market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards
are maintained. The Group's management have discussions
with the valuers on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed for financial reporting
purpose.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included
in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 December 2023, the Group's investment properties
with an aggregate carrying value of HK$96,090,000 (2022:
HK$89,102,000) were pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group (Note 25).

Further particulars of the Group's investment properties are
included on page 219.

Bz 4 B B

15 HBEWFE (H)

REBZREVMERBNREBEZEED
ERUNERZEAEDE - ARRES
ERENEZELD FHEERBRETE
ERRNEIFEMERBEDE) - K
EENRBEBZ2RENEE N =T ==
F+ZA=-+—HREBIZELSER
HEMESEERTHEERARETZME
BEEFHE MABEIOEDR-ZT
=+ A=+ BREBIHEEA
& ¥ 1& {& Bl Daeil Appraisal Co., Ltd.
(RELEST) T ZHEENMHE-
N F (& {8 /5808,085,0008 t( =& =~ —
& 718,393,000 L) - R FEEMWE
63,726,000 7T(=F = =4 : 76,122,000
BILIRNFARNFTAGZERER - FF 0 &
ESECERETMERAEAEEYEIIGE
ERINEBEERMEE - EERBETISA
HBE BUMNEDHISEEIZE.
RNEBZEEE DA HERRGEM R
HEBRELGEER  UWEEINHBHR

%o

BREMEDRERMGEERETHE =07 #&
—IHMBEFBHRN G M HHRERME 16 -

NR-ZTB-_=F+=-A=+—H0 x&EF4H
BRE1E A 96,090,000 (=& = —
89,102,000 L) 2 L E WM HE B MIE R/ R
SEER —RIRITHE 2 BR(FFE25) o

BERAAKERENE E—TFBERT
2198 -
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15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group's investment properties:

V3% ()
AT EEZH

TREBAKEREMEZAFEENE

FAR

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2023 using
REB==F+=A=+—HEH
UTEEBEZAFEETE

Quoted Significant Significant
pricesin  observable unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERTEHEE EXTITHRE
TERT IS HRE BWARE BWARE
(B5—%) (B=#) (B=4) ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHExT THET THET
Recurring fair value PRk S
measurement for: NEEERE
Residential properties in BEEEME
Hong Kong - - 161,900 161,900
Commercial properties in EEELIES
South Korea = = 646,185 646,185
- - 808,085 808,085
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A B R P R
15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15 HEW¥(H)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AN EBESHK(E)

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2022 using
N —F+-_A=1+—HER
LTS Ez AT EESE
Quoted Significant Significant

prices in observable unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EXAEBR BEATAEE
AT SR (E B ABUR B A\ BUR

(B—4) (B=#) (B=5) BET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT THIT BT T
Recurring fair value AR EIB 2881
measurement for: AFEERE
Residential properties in BEEEME
Hong Kong - - 179,700 179,700
Commercial properties in BEESEESIES
South Korea = = 538,693 538,693
= = 718,393 718,393
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FR - B-REF_RENWELTEE
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers FrECER TEEAREHE=RKB
into or out of Level 3 (2022: Nil). M ZBZZF ) -
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15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

172 SHIN HWA WORLD LIMITED #&% it R4 R A 7
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Reconciliation of fair value measurement categorised within

Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

15

BE Wk (4)

RATEEZRESRNSEL ATEE
HEHE

Hong Kong Korea
=ik BE
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fax FHx
Carrying amount at 1 January 2022 R=-ZB=-=%F—H—H
2 AREE 192,400 474,010
Transfer from property, plant and EREYE  BE
equipment (Note 14) PECACEREY) = 855
Changes in fair value recognised RERXERZ A TEEE
in the statement of profit or loss (12,700) 88,822
Exchange realignment PE 5 582 = (24,994)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2022 R-ZB-_—_F+=-HA=+—H
and at 1 January 2023 E=ZF=-_=%—H—H
ZEREE 179,700 538,693
Transfer from property, plant and EEBYE BB
equipment (Note 14) Kokt (FEE14) - 41,213
Transfer to properties, plant and HEZYE  BE
equipment (Note 14) PEIACIEREY - (1,983)
Changes in fair value recognised in REEERERAZ AT EEZD
the statement of profit or loss (17,800) 81,526
Exchange realignment ME 54,38 B - (13,264)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2023 R=-B-=F+=A=+—H
2 BREE 161,900 646,185




15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the

key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

15

o B 5 A R i

BE&E ¥ (4])

TXHAR R EMEGEEFARZGEET
EREERABE

Valuation Significant
Class of properties techniques unobservable inputs Range of unobservable inputs
MEER BT % EXTUBEBARE TABRGABEEE
2023 2022
—E-=& B
Residential properties Direct comparison Adjusted market price 46,000 52,000
— Hong Kong (HK$/square feet) (Note i)
EEME— BB ERLBZE KREMHER 46,000 52,000

Commercial properties
— South Korea

BENF— BR

Income capitalisation
approach

WAER{E

B/ FAR) (M)

— Average monthly market rent 2,000 to 281,000 3,000 to 210,000

(KRW/square meter)

(Note ii)

— Capitalisation rate per annum 5.8% 5.8%

(Note iii)
—EEfmiE Al

2,000%281,000 3,000%210,000

(888 F7K) (ML)

—BFEMeE (i)

5.8% 5.8%

Notes:

G

(i) The higher the market rent, the higher the fair value.

) The higher the market price, the higher the fair value.

(i) The higher the capitalisation rate, the lower the fair value.

G
0 TSEESE  ATEESS -
() TERSME  ATEERS -

(i) EXNMLEMS  ATEEBE-
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Valuation technique

Fair values of residential properties in Hong Kong are generally
derived using direct comparison method. The fair value is
estimated using assumption regarding the market value of the
comparable sales transactions as available in the market. The
valuation takes into account the characteristics of the investment
properties, which include the location, size, shape, view, floor
level, year of completion and other factors collectively, to arrive
at the market price per unit. The key input was the market price
per unit, which a significant increase/decrease in the market
price would result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair
value of the investment properties in Hong Kong.

Fair value of commercial properties in South Korea are generally
derived using the income capitalisation approach. Under
the income capitalisation approach, fair value is estimated
on the basis of capitalisation of existing rental income and
reversionary market rental income. The market rentals of the
investment properties are assessed and capitalised at market
yield expected by investors for this type of properties. The
market rents are assessed by reference to the rentals achieved
in the investment properties as well as other lettings of similar
properties in the neighbourhood. The market yield, which
is the capitalisation rate adopted, is made by reference to
the yields derived from analysing the sales transactions of
similar properties and adjusted to take account of the valuers’
knowledge of the market expectation from property investors
to reflect factors specific to the Group's investment properties.
The key inputs were the monthly rent rate and the market yield,
which a significant increase/decrease in the monthly rent rate
in isolation would result in a significant increase/decrease in
the fair value of the investment properties and a significant
increase/decrease in the market yield in insolation would
result in a significant decrease/increase in the fair value of the
investment properties in Korea.
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15 B&EWE(4H)

fhESE
BEEEMEZIAFEE-RANEERLR
EETE - RFEEVEREAREYMELZ
BRMSZ A LEHER MM - #&
THREREZEREMEZEERRFE 8
BUE - A iR BB BE - T
FOREMEER URHEBEMLTIHE
%o ERHABBLBEMNMSER B
MSERARE LT - @8HREE
REWERNTEEANE LT -

MEBENEZATEE - RARAERR
LABE - REBERABENDE - 2 FHEE
DREREHSWARAREETSEEES
WA ZBERfbET - REMEZMSES
TR BEEWZ BRI E 2 AR SR
ETHERERE - MEHE2ERE
MERZASHS U RZREMBELUNE
HAE B R MAERT (4 o TR 2 T 55 e

(AERER)RBELSMRABYEHE
R ok - WIRERMAEMS Y ERE

EMSRYZRAELRABREEH - IR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i o A s R M
16 LEASES 16 HE
The Group as a lessee REBEEREBEA
The Group has lease contracts for various items of buildings, REEHREHLEMAZEEET R
equipment, motor vehicles and facilities used in its operations. #HAERRBEAZEESLK - HER
Lease of buildings generally have lease terms of 3 years, lease of FIHEB—RAIF HEABE2HE—
motor vehicles generally have lease terms of 4 years and lease ARIFMHEEKESREBECHB—RA3
of machineries generally have lease terms of 3 to 5 years. Other E5F o AiEF R AERRIEZ
buildings, equipment, motor vehicles and facilities generally FAH—M A 12M@ A AT &S ER B
have lease terms of 12 months or less and/or are individually of BE - —REAT  AEETERAAEER
low value. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and DONER R D HABEEE -
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.
(a)  Right-of-use assets (a) EHEZE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets REENERAEEERDFERE
and the movements during the year are as follows: FEZEHNT :
Motor
Buildings vehicles Machineries Total
BF RE HERRE #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET THERT THET
As at 1 January 2022 R=Z==F—HF—H 2,992 - - 2,992
Additions NE - 84 - 84
Depreciation charge mEEH (1,483) (@) = (1,487)
Exchange realignment V& 5 a2 (50) 2 = (48)
As at 31 December 2022 R=—Z=—
and 1 January 2023 +=ZA=+-—8
E==E=-=%—H—H 1,459 82 - 1,541
Additions NE - - 4,205 4,205
Depreciation charge EEZR (875) (21) (507) (1,403)
Exchange realignment 0E 5 A2 = (2) 22 20
As at 31 December 2023 R-ZE_-=4
+=A=t+—H 584 59 3,720 4,363
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 0 B A W
16 LEASES (continued) 16 FHE (%)
The Group as a lessee (continued) REBEARBA(E)
(b) Lease liabilities b) HEERE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the HEAGBREERFAZSOT
movements during the year are as follows:
2023 2022
—E-=5 —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HIREE 1,748 3,327
New lease A 4,205 84
Accretion of interest recognised F AR I8N
during the year 192 81
Payments (NE (1,598) (1,691)
Exchange realignment I XA 19 (53)
Carrying amount at 31 December RT+-A=+—HAZERHEE 4,566 1,748
Analysed into: XS
Current portion BNEREL 7> 1,623 986
Non-current portion SERNERER 5> 2,943 762
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note HEBBIBASNTREE KR
34(c) to the consolidated financial statements. RHIEE 34(c) R EE ©
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to (c) BHEERBEZERZZHENT :
leases are as follows:
2023 2022
—E=F —EFE-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Interest on lease liabilities HERENE 192 81
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets ~ FAREENEER 1,403 1,487
Expense relating to short-term leases ERARBEE 2R
(included in other operating expenses) (GtAEMEEER) 3,736 2,079
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets BEEEBEEERE 2%
(included in other operating expenses) (GtAEMEEER) 2,758 2,104
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RERERZ B 8,089 5,751
(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 29(c) (d) HERSRIELBENRLEESUBRE
to the consolidated financial statements. B 5E 29(c) I FE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o B 5 A R i

LEASES (continued) 16 ME (M)

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (Note 15) consisting
of several commercial properties in Korea under operating
lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require
the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic
rent adjustments according to the prevailing market conditions.
Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was
HK$41,454,000 (2022: HK$35,886,000).

At 31 December 2023, the undiscounted lease payments
receivables by the Group in future periods under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

AEEESHEA

AEERBECEHETHAELREME
(H3x15) RIEGRETEADE - B
EER—RAERALEMRES - IR
Tﬁaal MR EHAERES - AEERFR
RS WA A41,454,0008 (= F
— 4 : 35,886,000/87T) °

RZZF_=F+-A=1+—0 AKER
BEEMPRIZ 2 NI AL EHERN K
AR B R BA R R E R T

2023 2022

—EC-=5F —E-F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FAT

Within one year —FR 28,484 12,300
After one year but within two years —FRERRER 24,723 11,412
After two years but within three years MEBER=ZFERN 22,659 8,524
After three years but within four years = FRERNFAN 22,173 7,003
After four years but within five years MFERERAEFERN 16,513 6,526
After five years FARGEEE] 26,852 11,663
141,404 57,428
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B PR A W
17 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE 17 7 % S B
ASSETS
Other intangible assets
HitEFEE
Gaming
Goodwill Trademarks licenses Total
e 5] BYRER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TR TR
(Note) (Note)
(FzE) (iE)
31 December 2022 “E_CZFE+ZA=1+-H
At 1 January 2022: RZEZZ%—-A—-H:
Cost A 5,187 3,151 844,396 852,734
Accumulated amortisation 2ETE - (1,144) - (1,144)
Accumulated impairment ZETRME (5,187) = (674,760) (679,947)
Net carrying amount REFE = 2,007 169,636 171,643
Cost at 1 January 2022, RZEZ—F—f—HZmA
net of accumulated amortisation Mk ETEERRE
and impairment = 2,007 169,636 171,643
Additions AE = 1,672 = 1,672
Amortisation provided during the year ~ FEESHA& = (337) = (337)
Impairment provided during the year ~ FE R {EEE = = (8,735) (8,735)
Exchange realignment I % - (88) (9,768) (9,856)
At 31 December 2022 RZZ-Zf§+-A=t-H = 3,254 151,133 154,387
At 31 December 2022: RZBZZH+ZfA=+-H:
Cost A 4,894 4,678 796,651 806,223
Accumulated amortisation EHE 3 - (1,424) = (1,424)
Accumulated impairment 25RE (4,894) - (645,518) (650,412)
Net carrying amount FEFE = 3,254 151,133 154,387
31 December 2023 ZE=f+-A=1+-H
Cost at 1 January 2023, net of RZEZ=F-R—-HZKA"
accumulated amortisation Mk 25t
and impairment BHRAME = 3,254 151,133 154,387
Additions AR - 109 - 109
Disposals i \ - 8) = ®)
Impairment provided during the year FERERRE - - (12,943) (12,943)
Amortisation provided during the year ~ FEE & - (648) = (648)
Exchange realignment I 5 % - (87) (3,972) (4,059)
At 31 December 2023 RZE-=F+-A=1+-H - 2,620 134,218 136,838
At 31 December 2023: RIEZ=F+Zf=1+-H:
Cost A 4,768 4,656 776,115 785,539
Accumulated amortisation g 5 - (2,036) - (2,036)
Accumulated impairment ZETRE (4,768) - (641,897) (646,665)
Net carrying amount RRRE - 2,620 134,218 136,838

178

Note: Goodwill was acquired through business combination while gaming
licenses are regarded as having an indefinite useful life because the
licenses have no prescribed validity period. They are subjected to

annual impairment review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE
ASSETS (continued)

Impairment assessment of Gaming CGU

Certain property, plant and equipment, goodwill and
Gaming licenses have been allocated to the Gaming CGU for
impairment testing. The carrying amount of these assets are as

17

o B 5 A R i

7o A e A B T K E (4D

BEEBREEEEMARENR
ETW%  BELRRE BEARBYE
RENEEBUEBRSELEMIAER
BRI - ZFEEZREESSINT

follows:

2023 2022
—EC-=F —F-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT
Property, plant and equipment W - WE R&ME 26,993 52,719
Goodwill EES - _
Gaming licenses [ER A 134,218 151,133

Gaming CGU BREBRSELEN

The recoverable amount of the Gaming CGU has been
determined by value-in-use calculations using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management. The management considered
the calculation based on the current condition and location at
Jeju Shinhwa World, South Korea. The financial budgets are
prepared based on a five-year business plan considering the past
performance, achievement of the medium or long-term growth
target. The financial budgets have also taken into consideration
the developments of Casino business in Korea, including changes
in the customer mix and the trends of the composition of visitors
as well as the resulting changes to expected costs and margins.
It has also taken into consideration the reasonable expectation of
the recovery in the number of visitors as overseas travel resumed
after the end of the pandemic and the cost saving initiatives. The
value-in-use calculations was reviewed by independent qualified
valuer, BMI Appraisals Limited. The key assumptions used for the
calculation are as follows:

BEERHREELEU 2 RESETIR
ERAEEEIEZ AFHBEEHER
HZREeRERA  REREEAELE
EoBERERAS  EIIARRI KR
(A B BN RET ) REAE - B
BERBRFEBTIGE  EhERB
EXE  PREZREENERBRN - W
BRENTEE T BERESEBNER -
BREFRZBNEHEKTHESNBEIN
RAWELNTR KRN BRES - 1t
Sh o TREBEIRIBRERE - BEEEIMNKE
RiE - HIRTABERNSEEY - ARk
BB AR TEIE o WETERBY A BRMG
BRI P MR EBRARERN - 5t HE
REEMAZZRRKRET

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t—BHLHFE

2023 2022

—EC=F —EFEF

Average growth rate of gross gaming revenue  FIIER W R EEIE K X 63.32% 71.71%
Pre-tax discount rate BRELATHTIR & 19% 19%
Terminal growth rate RAIRIERE 2% 3%
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W H

17

180

GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE
ASSETS (continued)

Impairment assessment of Gaming CGU (continued)
Gaming CGU (continued))

The following describes each key assumption on which
management has adopted in its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment test of the gaming CGU:

—  Annual growth rate of revenue of each projected year
was determined based on various factors including but
not limited to the historical number of visitors, historical
and/or theoretical win rate, and historical gross gaming
revenue per person. Factors were considered based
on each type of gaming revenue which consists of VIP
gaming operations, mass market table, slot machine,
and electronic table game. The projection has also
taken into account of the consumer price index, the
implementation of new and on-going business strategy
by the management and the pace of market recovery
after the end of the pandemic. For the year ended 31
December 2023, the revenue of the Gaming Business
was HK$46,765,000, representing an increase of 1.38%
when compared to the year ended 31 December 2022
(2022: HK$46,127,000, representing a decrease of 47.9%
when compared to the year ended 31 December 2021).
Both the rolling volume and non-rolling volume have
increased by approximately 350% and 60% from year 2022
to 2023 respectively, however, the decline in the winning
percentage resulted in a negative effect on the revenue
during the year. The tourism statistic of Korea indicated
that the number of foreign visitors of Jeju has increased by
approximately 240% in year 2023, however, as compared
to the number in year 2020, the number of foreign visitors
in year 2022 and 2023 were still below by approximately
82% and 37%, respectively. The adoption of the projected
average annual gross gaming revenue growth rate of
63.32% (2022: 71.71%), has taken into account of the
changes of past performances, win rates, the extent of
rebound of visitation of the casino after the resumption
of overseas flights and the reasonable expectations of
the pace of recovery of the performance of the Gaming
CGU to past levels with the implementation of business
strategy after normalisation of business in coming years.
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7o A e A B T K E (4D

BEEXBRSEEEMURENR ()
BRFBREEELEN ()

TXEAEEENETBREBREESL
BAORERABARARSRERN 2%
HERMRRK ¢

- BEAFEWRZZESFHEEXRTIR
BEEREERER @ B8RETRAIK
EHBEAE - BERHERR
REARBEAGEL RS A -
FSHEEXDERSER OB K
wm EFREEEBVELR  $5
HR ATHEEETFBESR - 8E
MEZERIEEMERS  E12E
BRG] RIS EEG R RS
HEREMGEENRE -HEZZ
=¥+ -A=+—HIEFE B
TR W R A 46,765,000/ 70 0 B
Bz -_—_#+-_A=+—H
IFEEEIN138% (=T = — & ¢
46,127,0008 70 HHERRE ==
T-—F+-_A=+—BItFEH
147.9%) o B ARE K I E G A%
H_E-_—FEZ_FT_=F5HpIE
0 47 350% X 60% + #A T & = OR
AAFEREFREEEE - B8R
IREESBEAR S _=FEHE
N B HM B AR % BB 1 00 49 240% ¢
AME_ST-_TFNHRTHEL =
=T - — —EZ=FHINHEKEE
HEBMAD R L #82% K% 37% o
MEATFHFEBEY kS RREER

K6330%(ZF = = F :71.71%)
Bt RBEEENEWL - BE &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE
ASSETS (continued)

Impairment assessment of Gaming CGU (continued)
Gaming CGU (continued))

—  Terminal growth rates beyond the five-year period has
taken into account of the historical growth rate of the
gaming industry in Korea, average consumer price index
in the past five years and other relevant economic factors
for the gaming business in which it operates.

- Discount rate is adopted based on the analysis performed
by an independent professional valuer which reflects (i) the
current market assessments of the time value of money
with reference to the relevant industry and comparable
companies in relevant countries, and (i) the risk premium
specific to the Gaming CGU.

The values assigned to the above key assumptions are
consistent with external information sources.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the impairment of
other intangible assets HK$12,943,000 (2022: HK$8,735,000)
were recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
The impairment is mainly a result of the challenging market
environment faced in the post-pandemic period.

If the average growth rate of gross gaming revenue applied
the cash flow projections of the CGU had been 10% lower than
management’s estimates while overall expenses have adjusted
accordingly, the value-in-use of the CGU would be lower than
the estimate amount by approximately HK$36,458,000 (2022:
HK$78,497,000).

If the discount rate applied the cash flow projections of the CGU
had been 1% higher than management’s estimates, the value-
in-use of the CGU would be lower than the estimate amount by
approximately HK$20,985,000 (2022: HK$20,452,000).

If the terminal growth rate applied the cash flow projections of
the CGU had been 1% lower than management'’s estimates,
the value-in-use of the CGU would be lower than the estimate
amount by approximately HK$14,415,000 (2022: HK$15,521,000).

17

Bz 4 B B

7o A e A B T K E (4D

BEEXBRSEEEMURENR ()
BRFBREEELEN ()

- IFHRNRKERITDIE IR
BECENBERERR - BERF
W H B E M ERBUA R E T
RENBEEBOEMAERKER

- WEREXDIREBEBILEEBEMET
DM MR - ZofTRER ()2 ZE
REBERNBEBTERATELR
REHESHREENRTH ST
il RNBEEBREEEEMD
RrERBEE o

RE BB T 2 EEEIBE R
B -

BE-_Z-_=#+-A=t+—HILFE "
H b A ERE A 12,943,000 T( =
T~ 4 :8,7350008 0)RNiEEAERR
NIER - REXTEHMNEBEBEOTISIR
BT mBPKE

WIRBASESEMMNRSRETEANE
TSR F R R ERE G HE
10% - BEBAZCHEFAZ AR
EXBVNEAEEEERGBTSBEEY
36,458,000 7t (— & — — 4 : 78,497,000
BT °

WMiZREEEBEMNNRESREENNITR
EREEBEAS 1% AR EELEN
B R EE B (A 5T € 581K 49 20,985,000
BT (ZE -4 1 20,452,000/ 7T) °

e 3R & B A B ALY IR & 7 8 FROR P (E
WRRERXREEE MG E1% BE
EXBEUMNERBESRMGBASHEED
14,415,000 7T (=& = — 4 : 15,521,000
BITT) e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o 7 B 5 A R i

18 EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED

18 55 2o 4% 40 F ARt A Hfth 2 i

AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER Wt 2 B HE B
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
2023 2022
—E-=5 —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Equity investments designated at fair value EERRATEETAEM
through other comprehensive income EHBEZRERE
Listed equity investments, at fair value ETRRIRERE -
BATER 1,400 13,866

The above equity investments are investments in companies
listed on the Stock Exchange and were irrevocably designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income as the Group
considers these investments to be strategic in nature.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
received dividends of HK$81,000 (2022: HK$85,000) from the
equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

In February 2023, the cancellation price of the equity investment
in Kingston Financial Group Limited was deposited in securities
account upon the completion of its privatisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER

o B 5 A R i

19 TN K IH - EWCE 5k E B I ik

RECEIVABLES JRE Wt 3k JE
2023 2022
—E_=F T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables BUNE 5508 31,985 24,392
Less: Loss allowance for impairment B EWE S IR
of trade receivables BEBERE (350) (359)
Trade receivables, net (Note (i) FEUE 5 F0A
FE8 (PREG) 31,635 24,033
Receivables from gaming customers (Note (ii)) FE B R B P 50 (P 7 (i) 837 3,469
Other receivables (Note (jii)) H At U IE (BT 52 (i) 8,762 77,358
Prepayments TERTRIE 30,369 20,332
Value-added tax recoverable AT UL Bl E R 3 3
Deposits (Note (iv)) HEACIEI)) 2,199 10,091
Restricted deposit for bank borrowing RITIEE ZZREIFER 65,548 96,795
139,353 232,081
Less: Non-current portion S : FEENEAER (70,596) (104,435)
Current portion BNHEAEE 5 68,757 127,646

Notes:

(i) Trade receivables, net

EWESRE  FR

The Group's trading terms with its trade customers are mainly
on credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance
is normally required. The credit period is generally one month,
extending up to three months for major customers. Each customer
has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk and overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group's trade receivables relate
to a large number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest bearing.

AEEREEFEPZEGEARIERE
B EHEPRIN EP—RAREN
e GEH-—RA—MER XEEFPHL
RE=AR - BREPHREEREER
B o REBRORE BB T A R D
Wi UEREREEERRE - fmaHe
HEARRERARTHBRE o EN LA
MEAEEZBKE S FARRES AT
FER STEEEAKEHEERR - &
SEYEAEEWE S HIBERTFTEEM
EIR AT EM IR EEREE - BIRE
HHRBATER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o 7 B 5 A R i

19 PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i) Trade receivables, net (continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance,

19 TN KIH - BEWCE 5k 0E K I ik
g Wk 3 ()

BfeE - (88)

(0]

EWESH0E - FHEE)

RBEHREER  RERAHRNBE
BRERE2S 2 EEE S FHIARKER D40

is as follows: 3k

2023 2022
—E=-= ===

HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
Within 30 days 30BA 27,657 23,303
31 to 60 days 31E60H 2,290 288
61 to 90 days 61290H 1,610 65
Over 90 days 90 B E 78 377
31,635 24,033

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

EWE ZHIRREBEBEBEZENT

2023 2022

—EB_=f —F-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
At beginning of year RELD 359 493
Reversal of impairment recognised, net ERCHR - FHR - (33)
Amount written off as uncollectible WisH AT AT B & 58 = 71)
Exchange realignment I 5 AR 9) (30
At end of year RER 350 359

The Group applies a simplified approach in calculating expected
credit losses. An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a loss rate approach to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on a number of factors which include
(i) debtors’ ageing; (ii) historical repayment behavior of debtors;
(iii) other debtors’ specific information available to the Group;
(iv) likelihood of recovery; and (v) taking into account prevailing
and future economic conditions which are relevant for credit risk
assessment. The credit risk categorisation is adjusted to reflect
subsequent information uncovered to an extent that such information
provides evidence of conditions existed as at the year end date and
forward-looking information. The expected loss rates are estimated
based on the expected cash flows that can be recovered based on
historical recovery ratios.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B 5 A R i

19 PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER 19 TN K IE - BEWCE 5k E R I ik
RECEIVABLES (continued) W Wk I ()
Notes: (continued) T - (8)
(i) Trade receivables, net (continued) (i) FEWESZRE  FEEE)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the ATNEIE BAREE EWE 5 R IEE R R
Group's trade receivable using a provision matrix: HEENEERBROER
As at 31 December 2023 R=B=-=%+=A=+—H
Past due
gl
Within 30 days 31 to 60 days 61 to 90 days Over 90 days Total
30BR 31E60H 61E90H #3890 A Amat
Expected credit loss rate B EEEEX 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 81.78% 1.09%
Gross carrying amount RREARE
(HK$'000) (FA&T) 27,657 2,290 1,610 428 31,985
Expected credit losses TEEEEEE
(HK$'000) (F%&T) = - - 350 350
As at 31 December 2022 R-—R=-=—f+=-A=+-—AH
Past due
#ELHR
Within 30 days 31 to 60 days 61 to 90 days Over 90 days Total
30BA  31E60H  61E90H BB 90 #Et
Expected credit loss rate TEEEE R R R 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 48.8% 1.47%
Gross carrying amount BREAAE
(HK$'000) (F#&T) 23,303 288 65 736 24,392
Expected credit losses REEEEE
(HK$'000) (F#&7TL) - - - 359 359
(i)  Receivables from gaming customers (i) EHEEEFNRE
The Group's trading terms with gaming customers are mainly on REBEBEEP IR GBAETEREE
credit. The credit term is generally 30 days for gaming operations. R -BEEKZEEH-—MKAB30H -
Each gaming customer has a maximum credit limit. Overdue balances BEBYEFPHRAESFERTE - E12
are reviewed regularly by the management. At the end of the [EEHIRET mE AR - MIREHIR - A%
reporting period, the Group has certain concentration of credit risk EREbEAEESRABRERFRE(ZE
as 36% (2022: 89%) and 100% (2022: 100%) of the Group's gaming T D)ABRERPZRERAEETE
receivables represent the Group's highest gaming receivable from BEEHER - 9RMEREBIEYEWRIE
a customer and five (2022: three) highest gaming receivables from 236%(ZF = Z4F :89%) % 100% (=%
customers, respectively. The Group does not hold any collateral or T £ 100%) o A5 [ Rt HOE R e
other credit enhancements over its gaming receivable balances. W I A5 845 B AR 4R S Sk HE AT B b AN
Gaming receivables are non-interest-bearing. RIEERN - BRERURRL TR -
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o 7 B 5 A R i

19 PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(ii)

Receivables from gaming customers (continued)

The ageing analysis of the receivables from gaming customers as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of

19

TE AT SRIH - W B sk EH K AL A
g Wk 3 ()

BEE

(i)

(%)

EREREFKE(E)

RBERREER  BEFAHRNRE
BRERZIIZEBEBEEPKEREKD

loss allowance, is as follows: WanT -

2023 2022
—E-= —E-=

HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FAET
Within 30 days 30HAR 707 3,292
31 to 60 days 31E260H 130 -
61 to 90 days 61290H - 177
837 3,469

Receivables from gaming customers include receivables from
individual gaming players, which are interest-free and repayable on
demand. These balances are granted with reference to their credit
history and track record settlement.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of gaming
receivables are as follows:

FBUEBEEPHARRENBEREE LR
WHE BERBERRERBRERE
B REBBRIE2ZREZERLHER

EREBERSMmMRL -

BYREREREBERERZENT

2023 2022
—EB-=F —T-—

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ET FAT

At beginning of year RELD 311,035 336,260

Impairment losses recognised , net REEIBER - F58E 10,085 19

Amount written off as uncollectible Hiss B AUk el & 58 (112,545) =

Exchange realignment JEE 53 2 (5,058) (25,244)

At end of year RER 203,517 311,035
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the loss allowance of HE_T_=F+_A=+—HBLF
HK$10,085,000 (2022: HK$19,000) was recognised as a result of an B BRBHBBe~THEZBEEKE

increase in gaming receivables which were past due for over 60
days and expected credit loss was adjusted accordingly. As at 31
December 2023, receivables from gaming customers amounting
to HK$203,517,000 (2022: HK$311,035,000) were fully impaired and
provided for.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

(ii)

o B 5 A R i

19 TN K IE - BEWCE 5k E R I ik
JE Wi sk L (48

Notes: (continued) T - (8)
Receivables from gaming customers (continued) (i) EREREEFREGE)
The Group applies a simplified approach in calculating expected REBERBE T EAHEEBEERSE -
credit losses. An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting &S BB AR R R B 1T
date using a loss rate approach provision matrix to measure expected WEI AT EHBREERE - BEXT
credit losses. The provision rates are based on a number of factors BEZHERET  AHREENEBAZ
which include (i) debtors’ ageing; (ii) historical repayment behavior of BRER  (NEBABTERITA : (iVAEE
debtors; (i) other debtors’ specific information available to the Group; AISEMEFAREER  KivEEFER
and (iv) current industry conditions and future economic outlook which BATE A B 2 BT HE AR KR PR A A
are relevant for credit risk assessment. The credit risk categorisation R EERRBRSBELEARE - URBK
is adjusted to reflect subsequent information uncovered to an extent BRREEN  BEEEENREHRER
that such information provides evidence of conditions existed as at FHEBMFEEREZEBRLAIELEER
the year end date and forward-looking information. The expected T8 HA B 18 3 T AR PR R E s Wi [l A E AT e
loss rates are estimated based on the expected cash flows that can be Bl FEHRR @R E fhEt o
recovered based on historical recovery ratios.
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the AT EYI A A S E EREEE P RRE
Group's gaming receivable using a provision matrix: AREEENEERKHELR -
As at 31 December 2023 R-BZ=%+=ZHA=+—H
Past due
pea:G]
Within 30 days 31 to 60 days 61 to 90 days Over 90 days Total
30HA 31Z60H 61Z90H BB 90 H Mgt
Expected credit loss rate ~ TEHAEEEB X 0.00% 0.00% 100.00% 100.00% 99.59%
Gross carrying amount BREAE
(HK$'000) (F#&7T) 707 130 3,013 200,504 204,354
Expected credit losses TRHEEERE
(HK$'000) (FA&T) - - 3,013 200,504 203,517
As at 31 December 2022 R-B-—f+=-A=+—H
Past due
Within 30 days  31to 60 days 61to90days Over 90 days Total
30EA 31Z60H 61Z90H #iB90H et
Expected credit loss rate  TEHAEEEIER 0.00% 0.00% 9.69% 100.00% 98.90%
Gross carrying amount FREAAE
(HK$'000) (F%T) 3,292 - 196 311,016 314,504
Expected credit losses RHEEER
(HK$'000) (F&7L) - - 19 311,016 311,035
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19 PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

188

(iii)

(iv)

Other receivables

Included in the Group's other receivables are receivables from
debtors in non-trade nature. The other receivables balances are
interest-free and repayable on demand. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over its other receivable
balances.

Decrease in balance was mainly due to the settlement of
HK$62,827,000 in relation to the lease-related receivables and
management fee receivables from independent third parties.

The movements in impairment allowance of other receivables are as follows:

19 TN KIE ~ REWCE 5k H & H i
W Wk I ()

BEE

(iii)

(%)

H o FE KR IE

SARKEEMEEFASREEBAZ
HibBIFEHME 2 FH - B EKRKY
REDBRBLERER FAEEAERE
R RIB SRR A AR R TR
IR EEHE M o

HRERLHNIEZERAREEARBYIE =
77 2 TR E R R R IR B R AR R
62,827,000/ 7T °

HA R KRR ERBESNT

2023 2022

—E-= —E2-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHT
At beginning of year RED 9,480 78,520
Reversal of impairment losses recognised, net EEIBRDER  FE (233) (63,168)
Amount written off as uncollectible, net WA E &5 FEEE = (56)
Exchange realignment (EREEE S 254 (5,816)
At end of year RER 9,501 9,480

In the opinion of the directors, the impairment was specific in nature
which was considered in default due to indicators which showed
that the Group was unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amount.

Expected credit losses on the other receivables balances are
estimated by applying a loss rate approach with reference to
historical loss records of the Group. Based on historical loss records
and economic conditions, the directors are of the opinion that the
expected credit losses on the other receivables are minimal.

Deposits

Decrease in balance was mainly due to (i) HK$2,475,000 that has
been pledged as collateral in prior year has been released upon the
finalisation of a lawsuit in Korea, and (i) HK$3,851,000 that has been
deposited in a securities amount has been withdrawn.

SHIN HWA WORLD LIMITED #5654 FR A #]

(iv)

EEZRA AREAURBETRAEETAA
BEUERREEANSE  SREBREBR
EME -

Sft B A T 2 A BB TR
IR RS AR E 2B AR
R E o R AR RS AR
EERB - HAERHOR 2 AE R
BT R -

S

EHRBRINEZERAA(NRBAFEERE
15440 9 2,475,000 B TTER —RER
FARBREE  URGDUBEFSEFTA
93,851,000 BT E M IREN ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER 19
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(v) Other than trade receivables, gaming receivables and other
receivables, the remaining financial assets included in the above
balances relates to receivables for which there was no recent history
of default and past due amounts. As at 31 December 2023 and 2022,
the loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.

The carrying amounts of the Group's prepayments, trade and other
receivables approximated their fair values and are denominated in the
following currencies:

o B 5 A R i

PN IR - MW S sk H K AL A
W Wk I ()

s (&)

(v)  BREWEZHIE - FREKTOR R EME
WRIRSN » sE A Lit k2 HERR BT 15 A
FE BB S 3 58 40 S 8 B SRR R 8 2 FE UK
REER -R_FT_=ZFR_FT__
tTZA=+—R  BEREGTAE] -

AEETAMNFR - BUEZKEAREME
WHIBEZ REEEE N FEBEES - W
THEBHE

2023 2022
—E-=F —F-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
HK$ BT 1,940 6,341
KRW BR[E 127,888 225,641
us$ ET 9,524 98
Others EAth 1 1
139,353 232,081
20 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 20 P
2023 2022
—EC-=HF T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
At the beginning of the year, at cost RELD » REAME 107,536 113,921
Transfer to completed properties for sale ERESFED AN - (498)
Transfer from properties, plant and equipment B B2 - [BE L& E
(Note 14) (PH3E14) - 2,924
Exchange realignment M H TR (2,772) (8,811)
At the end of the year, at cost RER - BRAE 104,764 107,536
Properties under development comprises: BRAMEDLE:
Land use rights T A4 104,764 107,536
Properties under development pending 7% 3 T TR AR
construction expected to be recovered TR ERR—Fi&
beyond more than one year SR BEPYE 104,764 107,536
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W H

20

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
(continued)

The analysis of land costs with an aggregate net carrying

20

b PE ()

FRABRBYE 2 KA ERREFEE

amount included in properties under development is as follows: RE2ZOWNAT -
2023 2022
—EC-=F —F-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FABT
South Korea L
Freehold land KAFERE T 104,764 107,536

RZZB_=F+"_A=+—H  A5EE#L
ARTEI(E /3 104,764,000 (= F ==

107,536,000/ 7T ) Z 3 & ) ¥ H 4R 1
RASEER -—RRTHEZERETE

At 31 December 2023, the Group's properties under
development with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$104,764,000 (2022: HK$107,536,000) was pledged to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 25).

25) °
21 COMPLETED PROPERTIES FOR SALE 21 fFECEEME
2023 2022
—E-=F —=E-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T FET
Completed properties for sale comprises: HEDEBRMERE -

Construction cost and RN A R H At
other capitalised expenditures BEREHAZ 323,344 427,572
Interest capitalised BEARIEFE 9,331 12,021
Land use rights TP 13,132 17,383
345,807 456,976

SFAFECDERYE 2 LKA E R BRE

The analysis of land costs with an aggregate net carrying

amount included in completed properties for sale is as follows: FEBBZTET
2023 2022
—EB-=F T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FABT
South Korea L
Freehold land KAFREL MM 13,132 17,383

AEEZFECERMELANFAE - N
SR - FEC TR FEIZA AR ER
FEZBREESIRK -

The Group's completed properties for sale are located in South
Korea. The completed properties for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value at the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMPLETED PROPERTIES FOR SALE
(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, cost of completed
properties for sale amounted to HK$70,684,000 (2022:
HK$171,945,000) were recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

At 31 December 2023, the Group's completed properties
for sale with a carrying value of HK$191,329,000 (2022:
HK$456,976,000) were pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group (Note 25).

Further particulars of the Group's completed properties for sale
are included on page 219.

21

o B 5 A R i

O R (4)

BE-_ T _=F+_A=+—HLILF
B BHEEERWEXNEIREGEEBER
R 570,684,000 T(ZE - =
171,945,000787T) °

RIE-_=F+_A=+—8 rx&£EE
{8 5191,329,00008 T(Z T = =
456,976,000 7T ) 2 156 B 7&K ¥ F E
EAAEEER —RFETHRE 2R
$X25) o

AEBFECERYEE—FFFER
F£2198 o

INVENTORIES 22 8
2023 2022
—E=HE = F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FET
Raw materials EA 45,133 48,490
Finished goods RIEY G 11,524 8,428
56,657 56,918
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 23 Bla K BlaEEY K3z IR &
RESTRICTED CASH
2023 2022
—E-=HE =4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FET
Cash and bank balances B NMIRTTHE R 235,831 332,514
Short-term time deposits HHITE HAE R 30,212 170,907
Restricted cash for the Cash Incident (Note)  IRE&FHSEHIIR D (MsE) 61,174 62,793
327,217 566,214
Less: Restricted cash for W IREEHZRHIRE
the Cash Incident (Note) (K5E) (61,174) (62,793)
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBReEED 266,043 503,421
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192

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
RESTRICTED CASH (continued)

Note:

On 4 January 2021, management of the Group discovered that certain funds
amounting to KRW14,555,000,000 (equivalent to HK$103,713,000) belonging
to the Group kept in Jeju, South Korea was missing (the “Cash Incident”).
The Group was unable to reach the employee-in-charge of the funds and the
Cash Incident was reported to the police in South Korea.

Based upon the Investigation Progress Notification issued by Jeju Special
Self-Governing Provincial Police Agency of Korea (the “Jeju Police”) to the
Group in March 2021, the Jeju Police revealed that KRW13,400,000,000
(equivalent to retranslated amount of HK$80,762,000 as at 31 December
2023) (the “Seized Money") was seized by them in accordance with the
due process of Korean law, and are being kept in the deposit account of
a bank under the name of the Jeju Police. According to the legal opinions
from independent lawyers, the Seized Money is expected to be part of the
amount of the Group missed as a result of the Cash Incident and will be
retained by the Jeju Police until the investigation process is complete.

Based on the report of factual findings issued by an independent external
auditor in Korea in 2021, the cash balance in relation to the Cash Incident
located in a premises of the Group in Korea and under the Group's
possession as at 31 December 2020 was KRW10,150,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$72,325,000). Accordingly, a loss of KRW4,405,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$28,961,000) was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2020. The Seized Money, found in the
premises of the Group of KRW10,150,000,000 (equivalent to HK$72,325,000)
and elsewhere of KRW3,250,000,000 (equivalent to HK$23,158,000), is
anticipated to be part of the missing fund. In October 2023, the police
investigation was suspended. As at 31 December 2023, the police
investigation was pending for further evidence and recommencement.
As at 31 December 2023, the balance of this restricted cash amounted to
KRW10,150,000,000 (equivalent to HK$61,174,000) (2022: KRW10,150,000,000)
and it has been reclassified from a current asset to a non-current asset as the
investigation is not expected to concluded within a year.
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23

Bl R B & 5 Y & 32 IR B &
(%)

B3

NR-ZBE-_—F—ANE AEEEBEEXRER
N5 B 8RB N R B B9 B T 5K IE 14,555,000,000
% E(H & 1K103,7130008 T ) BERX(R &=
) AEBREHEAEZENENEE - I
ERIREEHRERLETHRE -

RZZEZ—F=F BEBEEMNEREREE
RE((BNESFAALEERENASERRA
M ENEREBRHDREZRBEZAZNEER
Fr #0348 13,400,000,000 8B (HER T -=4
+ZA=+—BZEMLRE$*80,762,000% T)
(T4N483R ) - WLUBEMZ R R BT RARITH
GREFY - REBUZMAEEZER - 1MWK
B ARBE S HEAERENR 2 IMH KK
WHBHENESREEERKNAESRFTRK

BIER - - —FRBENPBIZERANER
AEHE R_TE-_TF+-_A=+—HB K
SEGEHRERNMESTHAEEREEBE
& E R IR € 4 # 510,150,000,000 8% [E (8 &
772,325,000 7T ) o B It + 18 55 4,405,000,000
EE(HAER2891,00FT)EREE_Z=
TE+ A=+ HILFERABRRRNER -

E$¢lﬁﬁ¢%%&ﬁfmtﬂzmﬁz@mm ) B BE
7 5l £10,150,000,000%% B (18 & # 72,325,000

7 7T ) }%3,250,000,000 ¥% [E (# & 7 23,158,000
BIL) BRI ARFN—BH  R=ZT==
F+A EFHEEHAE R=ZTE==F+=A
=+t—R EFNSEFE—LBBEREMASL -
R-ZE-_=ZF+-_A=+—08 UEZREBEE
£ /410,150,000,000%% [ (8 & 1 61,174,00075
7T)(=ZF = — 4 :10,150,000,000 F8 [ ) o f A1t
ABEFTERNFALER  LIZREIBEE AR
HEEENDERIERBEE -
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R B R M R
23 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 23 H& KRB EEFEY &2k E
RESTRICTED CASH (continued) (%)
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily RITRES BT ARITERMNERFTE ZZH
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for FIRBREF S - MEAE TR ZHARA
varying periods of between 1 month and 3 months depending BAZE3IEATE  SFREE AR
on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn THRME - WIRE B 2 5 HIE 7 5A
interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. The EERERA S o SRITA SR EE REFERTT
bank balances and short-term time deposits are deposited with BMREERFATHATEENTE 2R
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. 1T
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following Re MRS EEBYATINEEE -
currencies:
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
HK$ BT 50,654 227,245
GBP R 653 654
KRW 5% [E 201,744 260,130
SGD N 294 7,940
uss$ Ep 10,283 5,478
PHP FREER 1,632 1,885
Others HAtb 783 89
266,043 503,421
24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24 AT B B ask I B Bt WA K IR
2023 2022
—EC-=5 —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Trade payables (Note) EARESE (W) 6,136 7,584
Deposit received BUWET® 14,624 8,877
Accrued expenses FEETHISZ 75,146 77,864
Accrued employee benefits fEEH R EEF 57,195 52,969
Other tax payables HAb ERHIE 30,526 35,105
Other payables (Note) E e~ FE (e sE) 64,038 84,724
Contract liabilities (Note 5) AHaERITES) 81,675 69,057
329,340 336,180
Less: Non-current portion S - FEENEAER (18,417) (12,783)
Current portion BNERER 5 310,923 323,397
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24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 24 JE A 5 sk H M At E £ 5k 0H
(%)
Note: Bzt -
Trade payables and other payables are non-interest bearing and have an BNESREREMENRELELS - FTHHR
average term of 1 month. RIER -
Trade and other payables are denominated in the following FERTE 5 3 IE R E A R RRIE A T 5| &%
currencies: =E :
2023 2022
—EC-=F —F-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FABT
HK$ BT 4,901 4,934
KRW PR 324,299 331,015
SGD N TT 102 84
Others HAtb 38 147
329,340 336,180
25 INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWING 25 FFESITHE
2023 2022
—E-cF —ZT--F
Effective Effective
interest rate Maturity HK$'000 interest rate Maturity HK$'000
Gk BRI
(%) B4R TER (%) 38R TAT
Current Il
Bank loan — secured RITER— H# - - - 275% 2023 31937
+Korea
Commercial
Paper rate
- - 2758 St 2
+BERE
B vl
Non-current FENH
Bank loan — secured RITEH—ER 2.75% 2025 1,417,489 2.75% 2025 1,524.213
+Korea +Korea
Commercial Commercial
Paper rate Paper rate
2758 otk - 2758 S 2
+BEEE +BERE
EBN= REME
1,417,489 1,556,150
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25 INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWING

o B 5 A R i

25 wFESRAT R 8 (4])

(continued)
2023 2022
—EB-=F —F-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Analysed into: DT
Bank borrowing repayable: RTFIEREEE 2
RITER
Within one year —FR - 31,937
In the second year FE 1,417,489 =
In the third year E=F - 1,524,213
1,417,489 1,556,150
Less: Amount repayable within one year W R—FARERS A
and classified as current portion BNEAE D& %8 = (31,937)
Amount classified as non-current portion 5 AIEBNERE o ) & 58 1,417,489 1,524,213

The bank borrowing is secured by the Group's property,
plant and equipment amounting to HK$1,776,727,000 (2022:
HK$1,645,152,000) (Note 14), investment properties amounting
to HK$96,090,000 (2022: HK$89,102,000) (Note 15), properties
under development amounting to HK$104,764,000 (2022:
HK$107,536,000) (Note 20) and completed properties for sale
amounting to HK$191,329,000 (2022: HK$456,976,000) (Note 21).

BRUTBENAEEDE BERZEA
1,776,727,0007 7o( = T = — 4 : 1,645,152,000
BIL) (3E14) ~ REME B 96,090,000 7T(=
T £ 89,102,000 7T ) (M= 15) « EEHH
% 5104,764,00078 70 (= = = F : 107,536,000
BIT) (M 3E20) R B ERZK M E A 191,329,000
BIL(ZT - 6 ¢ 456,976,00075 7T ) (s 21) 1

iR o
2023 2022
—E-=F —EF-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFET
KRW B2 [E 1,417,489 1,556,150

Annual Report 2023 4F#t 195



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 7 B 5 A R i

26 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 26 EAEBIIE £

FA - Ret RAARBRE ALEER A B RE
HREBZBERLT  EERBEEZFHN

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year,
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances

within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: T
Accrued Fair value
expenses adjustments Others Total
Bt ATEERE Hit #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THERT THET THET
At 1 January 2022 R-ZE--—A—H 11,637 16,678 16,049 44,364
Deferred tax debited to the RERELERIBELE
statement of profit or loss BaRR
during the year 2,369 - - 2,369
Deferred tax debited to FRELREE R
equity during the year ZIEER IR = 79 = 79
Exchange realignment [E 7 A (610) (813) (907) (2,330)
At 31 December 2022 and R=B==F
1 January 2023 +T=ZA=+—-HBRK
—E-=%—A—H 13,396 15,944 15,142 44,482
Deferred tax credited to the RENBERIBRLZA
statement of profit or loss BamE
during the year (451) - - (451)
Deferred tax debited to FABLERER
equity during the year ZIEERIE - 1,004 - 1,004
Exchange realignment [ 7 A (348) (351) (391) (1,090)
At 31 December 2023 R-ZB=-=F
+=A=t+—-A 12,597 16,597 14,751 43,945
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and ?fi%ﬁu By BETERERBEENRAGD
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of RERE BN RELE - U T ARRNEESE
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred MBmE RN EEHIBELARIEL 29
tax balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes: 1
2023 2022
—EB-=fF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the WG B ARR R R
consolidated statement of financial position EIEFIIE & EFRE 43,945 44,482
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unrecognised
tax losses to be carried forward against future taxable income
amounted HK$1,647,915,000 (2022: HK$1,595,979,000). Included
in unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$1,647,176,000
(2022: HK$1,595,240,000) that will expire as follows. Other losses
may be carried forward indefinitely. As at 31 December 2023,
deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been
loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilised.

o B 5 A R i

26 JEAE B 608 (4]

RBEERR AEEBRERE &
LmﬁﬁETﬁ%%X$&MWA
#1,647,915000% T(=Z T = = F:
1,595,979,000/8 7T ) - KR B E 18
B 351,647,176,00078 7T(Z FE = =
1,595,240,000 % 7T ) K 518 - R T
MEE] - EfhEIEr LAER A E - N
%—:¢+—HZ+—H BRI EM B

RAEEBEE—BREEARAEEERD &
PRSI 8 A 2 RMIEEE - R &3t
W EEERRELEHIBEE

2023 2022

—E-=F —E -4

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

2029 “E-NF 217,621 292,535
2030 —E=FTHF - 209,955
2031 —E=—4F - 341,996
2032 :%E:i - 202,376
2035 —E=FF 204,543 -
2036 —EBE=REF 357,453 305,660
2037 —E=tF 433,621 242,718
2038 —EBE=N\EF 433,938 -
1,647,176 1,595,240

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. At 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, no
unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of
the Group's subsidiaries established in Mainland China. At 31
December 2023 and 31 December 2022, no deferred tax has
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding
taxes of the Group's subsidiaries established in Mainland China.
In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable that these
subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future.

RIEF B ERBRE « AR BIRREER
ZINE R ERINEIRE BT IR 2R B A
M10% 2 BT - BEARER=_ZZN
F-—A—BEBEN BEEANR=-ZZTLHF
TZA=F+—BEZBH o 4K EEE
WI&é%%E?%&EJﬁE%(@
ARz BB EAERE - R

Z=F+=ZA=+— E&_;::¢+_
A=+—8  AEBEREZENHEKREZH
BRBIWEAIELR  BF RZFT==
F+-_A=+—RBEkRZZE-_—_F+=A
=+—8  REBRZRNF B KRE 2B
P EVERT AR E L AR B TENR M
T WAMRBEMELERE -EERA

ZEWNBARNAIRERIREFEAT 2
ATREMET K o
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fR A S AR B
27 SHARE CAPITAL 27 AR
Shares % 2
2023 2022
—EC=F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT T
Authorised: EE
1,000,000,000,000 ordinary shares 1,000,000,000,000 A% &R &
of HK$0.01 each 0.01 BTz L@ 10,000,000 10,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR :
4,226,252,310 ordinary shares of 4,226,252,310 %
HK$0.01 each FIRME0.01 B LAk 42,263 42,263
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o B 5 A R i

28 RESERVES 28 flifhi

Fair value

reserve of

financial assets

at fair value

Capital  Contributed Asset  through other

Share  redemption surplus Exchange Other  revaluation comprehensive  Accumulated

premium reserve (Note) reserve reserve reserve’ income losses Total

RAVEE

TARH2E

W 2B

U N BE  BEZLY
B EE ROt (GGEY E i AtEE  EfRE EERE ZitER @it
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR T TR TR TR TR T TR

At 1 January 2023 WZBZ=%£-F-A 14,283,793 6,503 3,460,931 (701,047) (518,841) 7721 (305,149) (8,228,341) 8,075,120
Loss for the year EEER - - - - - - - (522,439) (522,439)
Other comprehensive EREMEEEE
loss for the year:
Revaluation of property, RERERENER
plant and equipment upon Eft% BR
transfer to investment LR
properties, net - - - - - 14,303 - - 14,303
Deferred tax debited to REEERBENR
asset revaluation reserve ZERHE - - - - - (1,004) - = (1,004)
Remeasurement of employee ~ EX:TEEERFIER
benefit obligation - - = = (8,662) = - - (8.662)
Changes infairvalue of equity ~ RATEEFALMZE
investments at fair value W REREZ
through other comprehensive ~ AFEEEE)
income - - - - - - 249 - 249
Exchange differences on BEENHL
translation of EXZ®
foreign operations - - - (194,109) - - - - (194,109)
Total comprehensive EEREFELR
loss for the year - - - (194,109) (8,662) 13,299 29 (522,439) (7111,662)

Release of resenve of equity WL ERTARATEE
investments designated at AR ERE

fair value through other RERER
comprehensive income pEapd-1 - - - - - - 305,150 (305,150) -
At 31 December 2023 RZ8=z%
tZA=t-R 14,283,793 6,503 3,460,931 (895,156)* (527,503 90,570* 250* (9,055,930) 7,363,458
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28 RESERVES (continued)

Capital  Contributed

28  filiffii (48)

Fair value

reserve of

financial assets

at fair value

Asset  through other

Share  redemption surplus Exchange Other revaluation  comprehensive  Accumulated
premium reserve (Note) reserve reserve reservet income osses Total
BATEE
AARMEE
g 28
v NGl BE  BELRY
Bl &E RO (H&) ERfA A Efifh [EfEkE ZHEE a5t
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
Tin TEn Fin Thn Thn Thn Thn T Thn
At 1 January 2022 R=%=z%-§-8 14,283,793 6503 3460931 (224981) (522450) 76,766 (301,058) (8,011,430) 8,768,072
Loss for the year EEER - - - - = = = [216911) 216911)
Other comprehensive EREMEEES
loss for the year:
Revaluation of property, RERERENER
plant and equipment upon Btz BR
transfer to investment RN
properties, net - - - - - 584 - - 584
Deferred tax debited to REEERBENR
asset revaluation reserve ZEREHE - - - = = 79 = = 79)
Remeasurement of employee ~ EX:TEEERFIER
benefit obligation - - - - 361 - - - 36
Changes infairvalue of equity ~ RATEEFALMZE
investments at fair value W REREZ
through other comprehensive AT E{EEE)
income - - - = = = (4.091) = (409
Exchange differences on BEENSHERZE
translation of
foreign operations - - - (476,849) - - - - (476,849)
Release of exchange BNHBATRE
reserve upon deregistration B RERER R
of foreign subsidiaries = o = 783 - - - - 783
Total comprehensive ERRERRES
loss for the year - - - (476,066) 3611 505 (4 2169M) (692,952)
At 31 December 2022 ik St 3
tZA=t-A 14,283,793* 6,503* 3460931 (701,047)* (518,841 . (305,149 (8228341) 8075120
Note: Contributed surplus of the Group was arisen from the Company's it REE Y MRS T A AR S EABAT

capital reorganisation.

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves
of HK$16,419,388,000 (2022: HK$16,303,461,000) in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

# The asset revaluation reserve arose from a change in use from an

owner-occupied property to an investment property carried at fair
value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B 5 A R i

29 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS

(@) Major non-cash transactions

(i)  The Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities of HK$4,205,000 (2022:
HK$84,000) and HK$4,205,000 (2022: HK$84,000),
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for

a leased motor vehicle, machineries and leased

29 HA BT R RN

(a) EXERERS

NEBGAERE - HWESRE
MEFHERHMm D BRI
REeERBEEFRAREERTE
8 1&4,2050008 (2 ==
£ : 84,0007 7T ) & 4,205,000

U]

premises. BI(ZF Z Z F : 84,0008
JT) e
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) METBELENEBERL
activities
2023 —EB=H
Interest-
bearing bank Lease
borrowing liabilities
STEBITREE HESE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THET
At 1 January 2023 R=-ZE-=%—H—H 1,556,150 1,748
Changes from financing cash flows MERTREE (99,205) (1,598)
Changes from operating cash flows EEREanEH 1,229 -
New lease HHEE - 4,205
Interest expense FEFAZ - 192
Exchange realignment PE 5 % (40,685) 19
At 31 December 2023 R-E-=%
+=A=t+—8H 1,417,489 4,566
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29 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 29

OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities (continued)

w0 Bl & i R M R (A

(b)

MEFHELNRER ()

2022 —E-__—F
Interest-
bearing bank Lease
borrowing liabilities
FERITEE HEAE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FABT
At 1 January 2022 R-ZBE-_—_F—HF—H 2,114,515 3,327
Changes from financing cash flows MERTREZD (431,537) (1,691)
Changes from operating cash flows LEREREF 1,411 -
New lease HE = 84
Interest expense FEFAX = 81
Exchange realignment PE 5 FH % (128,239) (53)
At 31 December 2022 R-EE-—F
+=A=+—8H 1,556,150 1,748
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HEERSRHMAZE

The total cash outflow for leases included in the

FAERTAERTEANHERS

consolidated statement of cash flows is as follows: MR T

2023 2022
—E-=F —=E-—

HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT AT
Within operating activities REEBNA 6,494 4,183
Within financing activities BEEBA 1,598 1,691
8,092 5,874
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B R M R
COMMITMENTS 30 7R
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of REBERHREHRE THIERAE
the reporting period:
2023 2022
—E=F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Contracted, but not provided for: EHEMNEESY -8
Property, plant and equipment W - WE R&E - 259
Properties under development BERAPYE 66,961 39,016
66,961 39,275
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31 BB RS
Compensation of key management personnel of the Group, AEEFEERAEHFH(REFBEHR
including directors’ remuneration as detailed in 9 to the e mAMTINESME)INT :
consolidated financial statements, is as follows:
2023 2022
—E-=F T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Short-term benefits (Note) 5ERR A (P EE) 7,126 7,820
Note: s -
The amounts represented remuneration of directors of the Company during EHASBIEARAEZERNFAZEHM - HEEM
the year, which was determined by the Remuneration Committee having ZESRTEAXRBRRTSBEMETE

regard to the performance of individuals and market trends.
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i B B s R M
32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 32 HEEE g2 ME TA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial EUMBTEERNRE AR REEN
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: TS ¢
Financial assets MBEE
2023 —ECD=HF
Financial assets
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income
BROVEETA
Hitt2HKE 2
MBEE
Equity  Financial assets
investments at amortised cost Total
R AT IR
RERE MKEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTET FHET
Equity investments at BAFEES AR MEE
fair value through other Was 2 RIERE
comprehensive income 1,400 - 1,400
Financial assets included in SAERFIE - ERES
prepayments, trade and FOE R H A EWRIE 2
other receivables MBEE - 108,981 108,981
Restricted cash ERERE - 61,174 61,174
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReFEY = 266,043 266,043
1,400 436,198 437,598
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32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)

Financial assets (continued)

2022

32 BRI 2 P T H (4])

MBEE (&)
—E-_—F

Financial assets
at fair value
through other
comprehensive

income
BATEEA
Htv2ERE 2
IS EE
Equity ~ Financial assets
investments at amortised cost Total
R ATER 2
Prigi & B EE BEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHET FHET
Equity investments at WA FEEFARGEE
fair value through other Wias 2 R iR &
comprehensive income 13,866 - 13,866
Financial assets included in FFAEMRIE  BRES
prepayments, trade and PR R E MR Z
other receivables B EE = 211,746 211,746
Restricted cash ZRHIRE = 62,793 62,793
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREFEY = 503,421 503,421
13,866 777,960 791,826
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32

33

206

S 75 A A ik

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 32 BB 2 W LR ()
(continued)
Financial liabilities g 3=k
Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
REBHERATECHEERE
2023 2022
—E—=F —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET
Financial liabilities included in trade STARNESFHIER
and other payables Hib BN RIE B aE 159,944 179,049
Interest-bearing bank borrowing FHRRTEER 1,417,489 1,556,150
Leases liabilities HERRE 4,566 1,748
1,581,999 1,736,947

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, the current portion of trade and
other receivables excluding non-financial assets, the current
portion of trade and other payables excluding non-financial
liabilities and the current portion of interest-bearing bank
borrowing approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to
the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group's finance department headed by the Financial
Controller is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The Financial Controller reports directly to the
directors and the Audit Committee. At each reporting date, the
finance department analyses the movements in the values of
financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied
in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the
directors. The valuation process and results are discussed with
the Audit Committee for financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale.

SHIN HWA WORLD LIMITED #5654 FR A #]
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EEEBCHERERASEEY R
B - BWE 5 IR K E Al IR 2 B
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MBEEE) ARG EBRITEE ZEIHES
ZAVEE EREEEREREERS X
ZANZETASREHAZE -

AEBEmPBRETECHBHMaEE
EVBTARFEEFEZBRRIEFR °
MHBEERNETREZZEQER -
RERESEH - MBI THETAE
E2S YBEGHETERZEIZHAK
B MERESERRIE - FERFR
EREEBRZZBENH - MMELPB®R

=)

MBEERBBEZ A TFEEAZIARE
B 575 (MIFRBHBFREE)ENRS
TZARSEBEALK -



33

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate
the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of trade and other
receivables excluding non-financial assets, the non-current
portion of trade and other payables excluding non-financial
liabilities and the non-current portion of interest-bearing bank
borrowing have been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The
changes in fair value as a result of the Group’s own non-
performance risk for trade and other receivables excluding
non-financial assets, trade and other payables excluding non-
financial liabilities and interest-bearing bank borrowing as at 31
December 2023 were assessed to be insignificant. Management
has assessed that the fair value of the non-current portion of
trade and other receivables excluding non-financial assets,
the non-current portion of trade and other payables excluding
non-financial liabilities and the non-current portion of interest-
bearing bank borrowing approximate to their carrying amount.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
market prices.

The following table presents the Group's financial assets and
liabilities that are at fair value at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Bz 4 B B

33 WEHLHZAPEMEENFEE
S (H)

REAEERFEERERATINERRR

FEUWE 55008 I H b JE W sk IE 2 FERNHR 0
D(TBRIEEVBEE) BNESFIEK
HoAth B 50E 2 IEBVEAER 5 (B 1A FEET
BEE) AR BIRITEE ZIERNEIH S
ZAFEEDFAEEEMUER  EER
SRFGER s TEZIREEX - BhIRTE
HRFBERETESH - AEBR=-Z
=+ -_A=+—HEHEEKE SFE
FEMERGKIB(TEIEEMEEE)
EREZRIBAREMENFKIBE(TEIEIE
PHaE) AR BRTEEZ ARG TRE
HEREBHHAFEBRSSHETEATE
R BEREETHERZEZFEREM
JEUGRIE 2 JERNERE o (R B IEIEH &
E) ENESZRIEREMENRIECH]E
BVERER » (M BIEEM B A E) A RET R
TEEZENBEHRs 2 AFEE - HEE
EAEBRMEMRR -
ETRERE 2 A EETIETSRER
ﬁ o
TREINAEBR-_FT_=FR=_F=_—
F+ A=+ HEAFEEFAZ2Z2VH
BEKAE -

Fair value measurement using

BERUTRABEZAFEETE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
AERBME EATERE EXTATER
Z8BE WABE WABE
(F—#) (=4 (B=4) e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FTERT
At 31 December 2023 R=F==
+T=RA=t+—H
Financial assets HMBEE
Equity investments at fair value & A F(EEFA
through other Hih 2wz
comprehensive income g tER & 1,400 = - 1,400
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33 FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 33 WM THZAFEMEEAFEAE
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) A (5)

Fair value measurement using

ERATBAZREZ A FHEENE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant

active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

WERME EAAUBRE EATHEER
Z$RE B ABUIER LN ¢

(F—%H) (B=8) (B=5) BET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT THIT BT T
At 31 December 2022 R-B-ZF
+=A=+—H
Financial assets BKEE
Equity investments at fair value & AF(EEFTA
through other Hih2mias 2
comprehensive income e tER & 13,866 = = 13,866
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair RZBEZ=FRZT__FF+ZA=1+—
value as at 31 December 2023 and 2022. B AEBEWEEAIZEAFEETECH
HaIE-
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value RER - BBEERMBEERENSE —
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers HEE—_FRAERENFLEBETE - TES
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial MBEEMMBAGBEBARBEE=R
liabilities (2022: Nil). TR F I E) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are market risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central finance department
(the “Finance Department”) headed by the Financial Controller
of the Group. The Finance Department identifies and evaluates
financial risks in close co-operation with the Group's operating
units to cope with overall risk management as well as specific
areas such as market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

(@) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group's foreign currency transactions are
mainly denominated in HK$ and KRW. The majority
of assets and liabilities are denominated in HK$
and KRW, and there are no significant assets and
liabilities denominated in other currencies. The
Group is subject to foreign exchange rate risk arising
from future commercial transactions and recognised
assets and liabilities which are denominated in
a currency other than HK$ and KRW, which are
the functional currencies of the major operating
companies within the Group. The Group currently
does not hedge its foreign currency exposure.

Bz 4 B B

34 BB )EBE A B H BR B BUR

KEAKET B TANTIRRER ST SR
R(BIESNER R - A RE R M AREER
RAk) - FERRERBDESRR KK
EEERREERRERTREMMEZ
RRAIFEAINE - Y SKEEREUAEEY
BRRE R BETFZE -

Rk EEHAREMBAERE 2 F R
BEPF (R R 88 1) 7T - M5 AR AN &R
B REBMET AN AR RFHEY
R - AR EERETE R E R
(Bl - mEREAR - EERRERBHES
RRR)

(a) WEREMR
(i) INEEE

AEBZINEZXHERNET
REEE KBHEERE
BABTREEE HE
MNEMEBECEREER
BE - AEBERAIRKREER
5 LA R LA T Ko 5 B (B AN 5=
BETNEZEERRZNEER
BININEEFEZDERE
ENMBEMELZINERR
ZRER B B A S EL S E

@ o
HA
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

210

AND POLICIES (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(ii)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group's income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates as the Group has no significant
interest-bearing assets except for bank deposits,
which earn low interest rate. The Group's interest
rate risk arises mainly from borrowing. Borrowing
obtained at fixed rate exposes the Group to fair
value interest rate risk.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price
risk because of investments held by the Group are
classified on the consolidated statement of financial
position at financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income. The Group is not exposed
to commodity price risk. To manage its price risk
arising from investments in equity securities, the
Group diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the
portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set by
the Group.

As at 31 December 2023, for the listed equity
investments included in financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income, the impact
is deemed to be on the fair value reserve (non-
recycling). If the price of the listed equity investments
increased/decreased by 5% (2022: 5%), with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s other
components of equity will increased/decreased by
HK$70,000 (2022: HK$693,000) mainly as a result of
the fair value change of these investments.
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(a)

% R (&)

(ii)

(iii)
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2REREE - EREESAEAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to equity
investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income, financial assets included in
prepayments, trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash. Credit risk is managed
on a group basis, except for credit risk relating to trade
receivables and receivables from gaming customers.

The Group has policies and guidelines in place to assess
the credit worthiness of customers from the Gaming
Business to ensure that credits are made to parties
with an appropriate credit history and a good history
of performance records. As at 31 December 2023, the
gaming receivables representing 0.77% (2022: 1.64%) of
the Group's total financial assets included in prepayments,
trade and other receivables. The Group monitors the
issuance of credit on an ongoing basis to minimise
the exposure to credit risk. The activities of individual
credit account are monitored regularly for management
to decide if the credit facility should be continued,
changed or cancelled. Management regularly evaluates
the allowance for doubtful receivables by reviewing the
collectability of each balance based upon the age of the
balance, the customer’s financial condition, collection
history and any other known information.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, trade and other
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Bz 4 B B

34 S R RS BE H AR R BOR (%)

(b)

FERR

AEBEEERARIZRBIEERRK
NFEEFARMEE RS 2 IE
BE - STATRNFE - BRESHK
BREMERRAZMBEE ]
EhBRCFEVRZRFRE - F
ERBREEEREE  EARME
WESHRAREREYEFKIAZ
EERBRERIN

NEBINFIBHE KIES| - AT
BEEBREFZEE  BRAMEA
BEEERBRRUTEALHZE
FREEE RZT-_=F+=A
=+—8 - BREEZEHRENRK
EECHUBEEERBZ077%(=
T~ —F:1.64%) Tt AFE A
RIE - EUE 5 5RIE I H fth R Uk R
B ARERBBEERREEE &
KBREREEERR - AAEEE
FREETHER  NEEEER
TRELHE NEXBEEEE
E-EREREBASBREKR BPZ
FSARR WS R EAEME
ME R A S B 2 AT iR E 12
& fim e BT (A IR U R AR B4 -

AEEEERAREBEEZF=
FETEE ARBZRRRAA
BEENEEHETEREZER B
ARRXEEERIER - W B
B 5 R K o R WK IR A R R R
XEE MAKBEEEEZRER
YAERX -
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group's
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year end staging classification
as at 31 December. The amounts presented are gross
carrying amounts for financial assets.

As at 31 December 2023

34 W R B BE H AR R O (4)

(b)

EERE(E)
REREERRFE A EEER

Ti‘«%iﬁ—\ﬁﬁ/\$ﬁlﬁf§ﬂ(§ﬁ2%
EEEMREREERR  TENE
ﬁﬁﬁﬂ?%%ﬁ(ﬁ%#‘f&?\ﬁ%i@
ZRAEB N2 BERTESEME
) RR+TZA=+—BF&RM
BEER - FM2ISB/VBEEL
AREARE -

R-EB-=%+-A=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 A&
FEBR 2HERFEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E—ER EER FEZRER [k (273 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FTHET FHET FHET FET
Trade receivables* FEWE 5 FRIE * - - - 31,985 31,985
Gaming receivables* ﬁ%ﬂ&zﬁﬁ%?ﬁﬁ* - = - 204,354 204,354
Financial assets included in ST AT R
prepayments, deposits and Ze &ﬁfﬁﬁ@lﬁl
other receivables HIAZ M EE
— Normal** —IEH ** 76,509 - - - 76,509
— Doubtful** — R ER ** - 5,805 - = 5,805
Restricted cash ZRHIRS
— Not yet past due — A AR R 61,174 - - - 61,174
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEED
— Not yet past due — & AR 8 HA 266,043 = = = 266,043
403,726 5,805 - 236,339 645,870
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(b)

o B 5 A R i

34 S R RS BE H AR R BOR (%)

Credit risk (continued) (b) EEREMK(E)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) BEERERRFESHEEER (&)
As at 31 December 2022 R-ZB-_—F+=-A=+—H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 A TE A7
FEEE > HFEAEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
FE—PRER EREE E=PRER SRz “Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FAT FAT FAxT
Trade receivables* JEWE S FRIE* - = = 24,392 24,392
Gaming receivables* e U1 R 5R0E * = = = 314,504 314,504
Financial assets included in T ATERIE
prepayments, deposits and Re REAM R
other receivables HIBZMBEAE
— Normal** Il e 7 184,244 - - - 184,244
— Doubtful** —RAR > - 5,817 - - 5,817
Restricted cash ZREIF S
— Not yet past due — AR B ER 62,793 - - - 62,793
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY
— Not yet past due — AR 503,421 = = = 503,421
750,458 5,817 - 338,896 1,095,171
@ For trade and gaming receivables to which the Group applies 2 BAS B A R E T A8 ER

the simplified approach for impairment, information based on
the provision matrix is disclosed in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

xx The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables is considered
to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no
information indicating that the financial assets had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise,
the credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be
"doubtful”.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
and gaming receivables are disclosed in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Cash flow forecasting is performed in the operating
entities of the Group and aggregated by the Finance
Department. The Finance Department monitors rolling
forecasts of the Group's liquidity requirements to
ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs
while maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn
committed borrowing facilities at all times.

BHREREEFANS  ERE
B A M N AR A B IS MR M AT
19458 -

= fFFATRNFOR e RE M EK
BrRVBEERVISHRREER
BARIEEN EREEEERAIE
B BRERMBEEZERER
RBIREE] -

BERAEBAERKE S HEK
FEWIEEREEENEERBRME
— S EBEBBEREE VB REM T
19455 o

BenERATNRAEEIKEE
BT LM EEEATAK - Bt
BHMERASERDESHTRKIR
FIEA - REFEERHZIRS N
MRREEBRE  UHBHERE
REEARZEERERRA TR
PREE -
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 34 [0 &\ B 45 22 H A K B0 (4)

AND POLICIES (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk

At the reporting date, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents of HK$266,043,000 (2022: HK$503,421,000)
(Note 23) and trade and other receivables, net, of
HK$41,234,000 (2022: HK$40,370,000) (Note 19) that are
expected to readily generate cash inflows for managing
liquidity risk.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use
of an interest-bearing bank borrowing. None of the
Group's debts would mature in less than one year as at
31 December 2023 (2022: 2.1%) based on the carrying
value of borrowings reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

More than

1 year but

Less than less than
1 year 2 years
BB

SR—F {EOREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT  FEX

(c)

REE SRR

RBEBH ~EEREHEES KRR
& EE Y A 266,043,0008 L (==
— — £ :503,421,0007 7T )(Ft 5
23) LA KB E 5 503 K EH At FE UL 3K
THH 58 /541,234,000 0 (-2 - —
£ : 40,370,00078 7T ) (F1EE19) + 18
U EE RS ESRBAIREE
WEMA ©

REEMNEBE R RS BEATERT
BEEHFESHEUERBEREZ
MOFE R =F+= A
=+—B ' AEEVESHEEN—
FREP(ZZFEZZF:21%) * Ty
BERGEVBEHREARBRNESR
IREE °

AEEMBRERBSHRRES
HIRREZR M RRE BB ANT

More than
2 years but
less than Over
5 years 5 years Total
BBWF
EBELREE  BBIF #at

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FERT FERT

At 31 December 2023 R=ZB==%

+=HA=+—H
Trade and other JENE SHIER
payables H 3R 142,179 3,904 13,340 521 159,944
Lease liabilities HESE 1,865 1,181 2,077 = 5,123
Interest-bearing bank 5T 83R7T
borrowing ER= 101,159 1,474,457 - - 1,575,616
245,203 1,479,542 15,417 521 1,740,683
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

More than
1yearbut 2 years but

o B 5 A R i

34 S R RS BE H AR R BOR (%)

(c) mBESZERE(E)

More than

Less than less than Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5years Total
R M
SR—F BIRME BLRLF AR et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET THET FHBT
At 31 December 2022 RZZE-_#f
+=HA=+-H
Trade and FERTE ZRIAR
other payables H fth fE AT 508 167,281 7,259 949 179,049
Lease liabilities HESE 1,026 47 = 1,803
Interest-bearing bank 5T 83R7T
borrowing ER= 161,407 1,600,955 - 1,887,825
329,714 1,608,261 949 2,068,677
Capital management BEXER

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain optional capital ratios in order to support its
business, maximise shareholders’ value, provide benefits for
other stakeholders and reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2023 and 31 December 2022.

AEBEEAERZ TEABERREALE
FEREZRENL R ARBERLE - A
XREEY BERREESKL  RE
M5 AR IR M s SR K B 2 A -

BREBUFABREAREE  AEERSHE
MERERNZBEESE MBRREESE
K~ BT S HEEEUREER -
REBEE_ZE-_=F+_A=+—HKZ=Z
——H+-_A=+—HILFE BEEX
FBEZ - BURSBIEWEED) o
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35.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. Net debt is
calculated as an interest-bearing bank borrowing less cash and
cash equivalents and restricted cash. Total capital is calculated
as equity attributable to owners of the parent. The gearing
ratios as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

34

St 85 Dl B A B R % BOSR ()

EXEE(E)
AEEEABBELRERER  ZHLXR
B F IR AR E A RERSFR 2 AnEt
o ERFRESTERTEERRER
RESEYRERGRETE - BERZ
BAREEAREERHE - RZF==
FR-F__Ft-A=t+—HZAREL
ESUNNE

2023 2022
—E-=F —E- &
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR
Interest-bearing bank borrowing FRIRITREE

(Note 25) (FfaE25) 1,417,489 1,556,150

Less: cash and cash equivalents B HERREEBEYMR
and restricted cash (Note 23) ZRRHIIRE (FizE23) (327,217) (566,214)
Net debt ERHER 1,090,272 989,936
Total equity R 7,405,721 8,117,383
Capital and net debt BRRERFHE 8,495,993 9,107,319
Gearing ratio BELX 12.8% 10.9%

As at 31 December 2023, the gearing ratio is 12.8% (2022:
10.9%).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 20 March 2024, the Company completed the allotment
and issuance of 845,250,000 ordinary shares (the “Subscription
Shares”) under the general mandate to Resplendence
Investment Development Limited (the “Subscriber”), who
is an independent third party, at the subscription price of
HK$0.034 per share pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
subscription agreement dated 1 March 2024, entered between
the Company and the Subscriber and Subscriber’s guarantor.
The Subscription Shares representing approximately 16.67%
of the issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by the
allotment and issuance of the Subscription Shares immediately
upon completion.

SHIN HWA WORLD LIMITED #5654 FR A #]
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RZZEZ=F+=ZA=+—H  BELX
B12.8%(ZFE==4F : 10.9%) °

e o 1% 3R

RZZEZWFE=A=1+H  AREREA
RATHERBARRBEAZERAGI LA
HAE—T-_NF=ZA—BZREBZHNIK
REAEH  RERRBEE0.034 B TR IE
— AR 3% 1 5T A BC 25 % 3517 845,250,000 A%
L@k ([RBRD ) FBILE = HRAER
BRRARAA(RBAD - RERMDHE
BN BT B AR R B ITRER M E
RZBRRBBBEITRAL 16.67% °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

THE COMPANY

36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 36

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting date is as follows:

o B 5 A R i

7% 2> ) B 5 IR Dl 2

RS RER  ERARAMBRREZ
AR :

2023 2022
—EBE—=£F —F-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiE5 FHT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHBREZIEE 2,024,931 2,156,239
Property, plant and equipment Y E R S 344 697
Amount due from a subsidiary FEUL — A B B A B FR A 4,409,980 7,091,709
Equity investments designated at fair value EERBRATEERA
through other comprehensive income Hth 2 s 2 BRAERE = 12,079
Total non-current assets IEmBIEERE 6,435,255 9,260,724
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURH B A R FRIE 447,927 1,231,870
Prepayments and other receivables TEAS FRE K E A e W SR IR 689 4,803
Cash and cash equivalents BeNIBEEEY 19,418 86,806
Total current assets MENEERE 468,034 1,323,479
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAEE
Other payables E bR 508 2,370 2,374
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE A1 B /B & R RKIE 188,328 167,171
Total current liabilities mEBEEE 190,698 169,545
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 277,336 1,153,934
Net assets EEFE 6,712,591 10,414,658
EQUITY s
Share capital [N 42,263 42,263
Reserves (Note) R (M aE) 6,670,328 10,372,395
Total equity R 6,712,591 10,414,658
Chan Mee Sze Wong Hoi Po
BRER EimR
Acting Chairperson and Executive Director Executive Director
ERFEFENTESE HITESE
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36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 36 AN HEIMEARDE(H)
THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: B E
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RARHEBENT -

Fair value
reserve of
financal
assets at
fair value
through
Capital other
Share  redemption  Contributed Other  comprehensive  Accumulated
premium reserve surplus reserve income losses Total
EOYERE
AR
2EREZ
HHEEL
Bita® EAEOGERE LN Rt  DYREERS Efy ] &t
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thx TR TR Tihx TR TR T

At 1 January 2022 RZBZZ%-f-H 14,283,793 6,503 3,460,931 193,993 (301,548) (6,714,134) 10929,538
Loss for the year FEEE = - - - = (552,905) (552,905)
Changes in fair value of equity investments ~ BATFEE AEMZE

at fair value through sz RERE

other comprehensive income ATEEEY - - - - (4,238) - (4,238)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FE2AFRLE - - - - (4.238) (552,905) (557,143)
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023~ W=ZF==%+=f=+-AR

ZE-=f¥-8-H 14,283,793 6,503 3,460,931 193,993 (305,786) (7,267,039 10,372,395

Loss for the year FEEE - - - - = (3,702,703) (3,702,703)
Changes in fair value of equity investments ~ ZATEEFAZMZE

at fair value through sz RERE

other comprehensive income NTEEED - - - - 636 - 636
Total comprehensive loss for the year FE2AFRLEE - - - - 636 (3,702,703) (3,702,067)
Release of reserve of equity investment REEREARATEEA

designated at fair value through other B2 Ele RERER

comprehensive income BEzEE - - - - 305,150 (305,150) -
At 31 December 2023 WZBZ=E+-A=1-H 14,283,793 6,503 3,460,931 193993 - (11,274,892) 6,670,328

37 APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 37 #itu Bt #sHk

The financial statements were approved and authorised for MBMERTE-_MF=A =+ AKE
issue by the board of directors on 27 March 2024. EEhE KRR -
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MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP
ARLEHFrA 2 LR %

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES B"EWE

Attributable

interest of

Location Use Tenure the Group
wE A& FHHA AEBEEGERS
Units at Jeju Shinhwa World, Andeok-myeon, Shops/commerecial Freehold 100%
Seoguipo City, Jeju Special, Self-Governing
Province, South Korea
FIERE N R B8 B P R T Andeok-myeon B KA EHRE
SEE N 18 5 T R %% (Bl B2 s
Flat A, 38th & 39th Floors, Tower 1, Residential Medium term lease 100%
Larvotto, No.8, Ap Lei Chau Praya Road,
Hong Kong
BEBRINEGSE8RME 1 B3B8 RIIVEAE F= AR EATE Y
COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE RECERYE

Attributable

interest of
Location Total GFA Usage the Group
NE WEREMB A& REBELER
(‘000 sg.m.)
(FEHK)

Seogwang-ril in Andeog-myeon, Seoguipo City, 19 Residential 100%
Jeju Special, Self-Governing Province,
South Korea
FRREMNER B e AR ET F=

Andeog-myeon Seogwang-ril
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
S P R 2L

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the M TNAAEBEEZE=-"ZT—NLF —ZT=-ZTF .

—= =

five years ended 31 December 2019, 2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023, —ET=—F  ZT-_—FR-_FT-_=F+_-A
as extracted from the published audited consolidated financial =+—BItAAFEZXE EERAGER
statements, is set out below. Z - DEsEE NERERREMB®RE

Year ended 31 December
BE+-BA=1+—-HLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
=B =F —T-__F B ZTTF ZET-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT FET FET FABT

RESULTS S
Revenue Wz 1,036,268 1,386,800 1,349,996 788,011 815,533
Loss for the year FREEE (522,439) (216,911)  (1,055,766)  (2,115,001)  (2,132,855)
Attributable to: FEfh

Owners of the parent BAREERA (522,439) (216,911)  (1,055,766)  (2,115,001)  (2,132,855)

At 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—B-=f —T-—fFf B —T-TFE —T-HF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FAT FAT FAT FAT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERE&EE

Total assets BERE 9,201,068 10,056,022 11,509,972 13,548,542 15,119,840
Total liabilities BEBE (1,795,347)  (1,938,639)  (2,699,637)  (3,101,925)  (3,235,073)
Net assets BESFE 7,405,721 8,117,383 8,810,335 10,446,617 11,884,767
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